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PART I
INFORMATION SENT TO SECURITY HOLDERS

Ttem 1. Home Jurisdiction Documents

(a) The following documents have been delivered to holders of securities or published in
the home jurisdiction of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC (the “Company”) and are required
to be disseminated to U.S. security holders or published in the United States:

¢ Prospectus of the Company dated August 12, 2005, a copy of which is furnished as
Exhibit 1.(1) to this Form CB; and

o Circular of the Company dated August 12, 2005, a copy of which is furnished as
Exhibit 1.(2) to this Form CB.

(b)  Not applicable.
Item 2. Informational Legends

A legend complying with Rule 801(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is
included in the Prospectus furnished as Exhibit 1.(1) to this Form CB and in the Circular
furnished as Exhibit 1.(2) to this Form CB.

PART I
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED TO BE SENT TO SECURITY HOLDERS

(a) The following documents have been made publicly available in connection with the
transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Company’s home jurisdiction but need
not be disseminated to security holders:

e Press Release of the Company dated August 12, 2005, a copy of which is furnished
as Exhibit 11.(1) to this Form CB.

1) The following documents are incorporated by reference into the home jurisdiction
documents:

¢ Annual Report and Accounts 2002 of the Company, a copy of which is furnished
as Exhibit I1.(2) to this Form CB; and

e Annual Report and Accounts 2003 of the Company, a copy of which is furnished
as Exhibit I1.(3) to this Form CB; and

e Interim Report and Accounts 2004 of the Company, a copy of which is furnished
as Exhibit I1.(4) to this Form CB; and

e Annual Report and Accounts 2004 of the Company, a copy of which is furnished
as Exhibit IL.(5) to this Form CB; and

e Interim Report and Accounts 2005 of the Company, a copy of which is furnished
as Exhibit I1.(6) to this Form CB; and
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o Listing Particulars of the Company dated October 3, 2003, a copy of which is
furnished as Exhibit I1.(7) to this Form CB; and

¢ Offering Circular of the Company dated March 8, 2005, a copy of which is
furnished as Exhibit I1.(8) to this Form CB; and

¢ Prospectus of the Company dated June 3, 2005, a copy of which 1s furnished as
Exhibit I11.(9) to this Form CB.
PART III
CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

The Company is filing with the Commission a written irrevocable consent and power
of attorney on Form F-X concurrently with the furnishing of this Form CB.
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PART IV
SIGNATURES

After due inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the
information set forth in this statement is true, complete and correct.

ABERDEEN ASSET MANAGEMENT PLC

By

Name: W. J. Rattray
Title: Director

Date: August 15 , 2005
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Exhibit
L(1)
L(2)
IL(1)
IL(2)
IL.(3)
IL(4)
IL(5)
1L(6)
1L(7)
1L(8)
1L.(9)

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description
Prospectus of the Company dated August 12, 2005.
Circular of the Company dated August 12, 2005.
Press Release of the Company dated August 12, 2005.
Annual Report and Accounts 2002 of the Company.
Annual Report and Accounts 2003 of the Company.
Interim Report and Accounts 2004 of the Company.
Annual Report and Accounts 2004 of the Company.
Interim Report and Accounts 2005 of the Company.

Listing Particulars of the Company dated October 3, 2003.

Offering Circular of the Company dated March 8§, 2005.
Prospectus of the Company dated June 3, 2005.
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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt
as to the action you should take or about the contents of this document, you should immediately consult an
independent financial adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (or, in the case of
recipients outside the United Kingdom, a stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent
financial adviser) without delay.

If you sell or have sold or otherwise transferred (other than ex-rights) all of your Ordinary Shares in Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC (“the Company”) held in certificated form before 1 September 2005 (“the ex-rights date”), please
forward this document together with the accompanying documents at once to the purchaser or transferee or to the stockbroker,
bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the purchaser or transferee. If you sell
or have sold or otherwise transferred your Ordinary Shares held in uncertificated form before the ex-rights date, a claim
transaction will automatically be generated by CRESTCo which, on settlement, will transfer the appropriate number of Nil
Paid Rights to the purchaser or transferee,

A copy of this document, which incofporates 4 prospectus relating to the Company and which has beéd prepared in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the Prospectus Rules made under Section 73A of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 has been filed with the FSA in accordance with rule 3.2 of the Prospectus Rules. The attention of Shareholders who
are resident in, or citizens of, territories outside the United Kingdom is drawn to the paragraph headed “Overseas
Shareholders™ in Part 1 of this document. In particular, Shareholders who are resident in Canada, Australia, Japan, New
Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland should note that this document is being sent for information purposes only. The
distribution of this document in jurisdictions other than the United Kingdom may be restricted by law and therefore persons
into whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about and observe any of those restrictions. Any failure
to comply with any of those restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities laws of any such jurisdiction. The
Provisional Allotment Letter will not and should not be, forwarded to, or transmitted in or into, Canada, Australia, Japan, New
Zealand, South Africa or the Republic of Ireland.

ABERDEEN ASSET MANAGEMENT PL

(Registered in Scotland No. SC82015)

A

Aberdeen

Proposed Acquisition of certain Fund Management Busme\
and Contracts of Deutsche Bank AG and 3:for 2 Rights Issue( of
up to 486,000,000 New Ordinary Shares at 63p per Share

JPMorgan Cazenove which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority is
acting exclusively for the Company in connection with the Proposals and not for any other person and will not be
responsible to any other person for providing the protections afforded to customers of JPMorgan Cazenove or for
providing advice in relation to the Proposals, the contents of this document and the accompanying documents or any
arrangements referred to therein,

Bridgewell Securities which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority is
acting for the Company as co-broker in connection with the Proposals and not for any other person and will not be
responsible to any other person for previding the protections afforded to customers of Bridgewell Securities or for
providing advice in relation to the Proposals, the contents of this document and the accompanying documents or any
arrangements referred to therein.

PERSONS RECEIVING A COPY OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE DIRECTED TOWARDS THE SECTION HEADED
“RISK FACTORS” ON PAGES 11 TO 14 OF THIS DOCUMENT.

The Existing Ordinary Shares have been admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority and to trading on the
London Stock Exchange’s Main Market and have been admitted to the official list of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority for the New Ordinary Shares to be admitted to the Official
List, the London Stock Exchange to be admitted to trading on its Main Market and application will be made to Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the New Ordinary Shares to be listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited’s market for listed securities. It is expected that Admission will become effective and that dealings in the New
Ordinary Shares will commence nil paid at 8.00 a.m. on 1 September 2005.

12 August 2005

Exhibit L.
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It is expected that: (a) Provisional Allotment Letters will be despatched to Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders on 31 August
2005 and (b) Qualifying CREST Shareholders (who will not receive a Provisional Allotment Letter) will receive a credit to
their appropriate stock accounts in CREST in respect of the Nil Paid Rights on | September 2005. The Nil Paid Rights so
credited are expected to be enabled for settlement by CRESTCo as soon as practicable after admission of the Nil Paid Rights
to the Official List has become effective.

Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders should retain this document for reference pending receipt of a Provisional Allotment
Letter. Qualifying CREST Shareholders should note that they will receive no further written communication from the
Company in respect of the Rights Issue. They should accordingly retain this document for, inter alia, details of the action they
should take in respect of the Rights Issue. Qualifying CREST Shareholders who are CREST sponsored members should refer
to their CREST sponsors regarding the action to be taken in connection with this document and the Rights Issue.

None of the Nil Paid Rights, Fully Paid Rights or the New Ordinary Shares have been or will be registered under the relevant
securities laws of any country other than the United Kingdom and may not, subject to certain exceptlons be offered, sold,
taken up or delivered, directly or indirectly, in or into any country other than the United Kingdom or, in the case of the Nil
Paid Rights and Fully Paid Rights renounced or transferred in favour of or to a person in any country other than the United
Kingdom. Further details are set out in Part 1 of this document. The directors of the Company, whose names appear on
page 15 of this document, and the Company accept responsibility for the information contained in this document. To the best
of the knowledge and belief of the Directors and the Company {who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the
case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the
import of such information.

Holdings of Ordinary Shares in certificated and uncertificated form will be treated as separate holdings for the purpose of
calculating entitlements under the Rights Issue.

This document does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to acquire New Ordirary Shares or to take up
entitlements to Nil Paid Rights in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is unlawful, The New Ordinary Shares,
the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the Provisional Allotment Letters have not been and will not be tegistered under
the Securities Act or under any relevant securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the United States. The New
Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the Provisional Allotment Letters will be issued pursuant to an
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 801 thereunder. The New Ordinary
Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the Provisional Allotment Letters have not been approved or
disapproved by the US Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities commission in the United States or any
other US regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of
the New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the Provisional Allotment Letters or the accuracy or
adequacy of this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States. The attention of
recipients of this document who are residents or citizens of any country other than the United Kingdom or who have a
contractual or other obligation to forward this document or the Provisional Allotment letter to a jurisdiction outside the United
Kingdom is drawn to section 6 of Part 1 of this document.

No action has been taken or will be taken under any regulatory or other requirements of any jurisdiction other than the United
Kingdom to permit a public offering of the New Ordinary Shares or the distribution of this prospectus. The distribution of this
prospectus and the offering of the New Ordinary Shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose
. . possession this prospectus comes are required by the Company, and JPMorga.n Cazenove to inform themselves about and to
=+ 7 observe any suchrestrictions. This prospectus may not be used for or in connection with any offer to or solicitation by-anyone -
in any jurisdiction in any circumstances in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or is unlawful..For a description of
certain further restrictions on offers and sales of the New Ordinary Shares and distribution of this prospectus, see Part 1 of this
document.

i
5

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this prospectus in connection
with the issue or sale of the New Ordinary Shares and any information or representation not so contained must not be relied
upon as having been authorised by or on behalf of the Company. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any offer, sale or
delivery made in connection with the issue of the New Ordinary Shares shall, under any circumstance, constitute a
representation that there has been no change or development likely to involve a change in the condition (financial or
otherwise) of the Company or the Group since the date hereof or create any implication that the information contained herein
is correct as of any date subsequent to the date hereof or the date as of which that information is stated herein to be given.
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NOTICE TO US INVESTORS

The New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the Provisional Allotment
Letters have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or under the securities laws of
any state of the United States. The New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and
the Provisional Allotment Letters will be issued pursuant to an exemption from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 801 thereunder.

The Rights Issue is made for the securities of a UK company. The offer is subject to the disclosure
requirements of a foreign country that are different from those of the United States. Financial
statements included in the document have been prepared in accordance with non-US accounting
standards that may not be comparable to the financial statements of United States companies.

It may be difficult for you to enforce your rights and any claim you may have arising under the federal
securities laws, since the issuer is located in the UK, and some or all of its officers and directors may
reside outside of the US. You may not be able to sue a UK company or its officers or directors in a non-
US court for violations of US securities laws. It may be difficult to compel a UK company and its
affiliates to subject themselves to a US court’s judgment.

The rights granted in the Rights Issue may not be transferred by US holders except in accordance with
the provisions of Regulation S (Rules 901 through 905) under the Securities Act. Shares acquired
pursuant to the Rights Issue and described in this prospectus are “restricted securities” within the
meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Securities Act to the same extent and proportion that the Ordinary
Shares held by the Shareholder as of the Record Date for the Rights Issue were restricted securities.
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SUMMARY

THIS SUMMARY IS DERIVED FROM, AND SHOULD BE READ AS AN INTRODUCTION
TO AND IN CONJUNCTION WITH, THE FULL TEXT OF THIS DOCUMENT. Prospective
investors’ attention is drawn to the risk factors set out on pages 11 to 14 of this document. Any
decision to invest in New Ordinary Shares should be based on consideration of this document
(and the documents incorporated by reference) as a whole by the investor.

Where a claim relating to.the information contained in a prospectus is brought before a court,
the plaintiff investor might, under the national legislation of the EEA States, have to bear the
costs of translating the prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated. Civil liability
attaches to those persons who are responsible for this summary, including any translation of this
summary, but only if this summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together
with the other parts of this document.

1. Introduction

On 7 July 2005, the Board of Aberdeen announced that it had entered into an agreement with Deutsche
Asset Management Group Limited to acquire the Target Businesses for cash consideration. Aberdeen
will pay Deutsche Asset Management up to £200 million in cash on the Closing Date in respect of the
London Fixed Income Business, the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and the OEIC Business. A
further deferred payment in respect of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business of between nil and
£45 million will be made on 31 March 2006". The total adjusted consideration will not exceed
£245 million plus payment on a pound for pound basis for any excess of the net asset value of the
Target Businesses at the Closing Date over £35 million. The net asset value of the Target Businesses at
the Closing Date is expected to be between £35 million and £60 million. Therefore, the consideration is
expected to be no greater than £270 million, on the basis that the net asset value of the Target
Businesses at the Closing Date is no more than £60 million. The final amount payable by Aberdeen
will depend in part on the actual run-rate management fees of the Target Businesses compared with
certain target run-rate management fees. The minimum amount payable for the Target Businesses will
be £111.5 million, including the net asset value payment. This Acquisition is being financed by a
£216 million® fully underwritten Rights Issue (net of expenses) on the basis of three New Ordinary
Shares for each two Existing Ordinary Shares.

The Acquisition will be effected by the transfer of certain legal entities to Aberdeen (the ““Target
Companies”), the novation of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and Aberdeen taking on
employees from Deutsche Asset Management, which collectively are referred to as the “Target
Businesses”. L R

2. Benefits of the Proposals

Aberdeen’s corporate strategy is to be recognised as an active manager of equities and fixed interest
securities, delivering consistent performance and adopting a differentiated investment process that is
the choice of investors in both mainstream asset categories and in the specialist niche funds in which
the Aberdeen Group has expertise. The Board firmly believes in providing high quality client service
based on remaining an independent fund manager focused on delivering the needs of the investor.

In addition, Aberdeen has sought to grow and diversify its recurring revenue streams across a range of
asset classes whilst leveraging off the Group’s efficient cost base and operating model. The Acquisition

is therefore consistent with this strategy and provides the following benefits for Aberdeen and its
shareholders:

Asset diversification and increased scale:

L investment strengths of the Target Businesses complement Aberdeen’s investment strengths

. ~added depth to the product offering of the Aberdeen Group

(1) As set out in the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information on page 67 of this document, the Company’s prudent estimate of the
deferred payment in respect of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business is £38.9 million.

(2) Based on the issue of 362,873,245 New Ordinary Shares (being the issue of 3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary Shares
" at the date of this document when there were 241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares in issue) at 63 pence per New Ordinary Share, less
expenses of £12.6 million.
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. broadens Aberdeen’s mix of assets under management

Value creation for Shareholders:

. application of Aberdeen’s operating model and efficient cost structure to significantly increased
Group revenues

L exploits Aberdeen’s skills and strong track record in integrating businesses

] the Acquisition is expected to be earnings enhancing (before any amortisation of intangible
assets) from the date of completion of the Acquisition

The benefits of the Rights Issue are:

L reduction in Aberdeen’s gearing ratio
o continuance of Aberdeen’s focus on improving balance sheet strength
. the net proceeds will finance the Acquisition and therefore ensure that the Shareholders benefit

from those points stated above

The Board of Aberdeen expects the Acquisition to be materially earnings enhancing (before any
amortisation of intangible assets) in Aberdeen’s financial year to 30 September 2006.

The consideration payable upon completion of the Acquisition will be financed out of the net proceeds
of the Rights Issue with any incremental consideration in respect of excess net assets financed from
bank borrowings. The deferred consideration payable in respect of the acquisition of the Equities/
Multi-Asset Business will be financed from bank borrowings.

The Rights Issue is conditional, inter alia, upon the passing of the Resolution set out in the EGM
Notice. However, in the event that the Rights Issue proceeds, but the Acquisition does not subsequently
complete, your Board expects that it would return to Shareholders the net proceeds of the Rights Issue
in the most cost effective manner practicable. Until the net proceeds could be returned, they would be
held on deposit or invested in short-term liquidity including, but not limited to, short-dated government
bonds.

3. Summary of the Terms of the Rights Issue

New Ordinary Shares will be provisionally allotted by way of nghts at 63 pence per New Ordinary
Share to Qualifying Shareholders on the basis of:

3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary Shares

held on the Record Date and so in proportion for any other number of shares held. Provisional
Allotment Letters will need to be received at the latest by 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005. All the
New Ordinary Shares will, when issued and fully paid, rank pari passu in all respects with the Existing
Ordinary Shares. The Rights Issue is underwritten by JPMorgan on behalf of JPMorgan Cazenove.

The Rights Issue is conditional inter alia on the passing of the Resolution at the EGM, certain
conditions of the Underwriting Agreement being fulfilled and admission of the New Ordinary Shares to
the Official List of the UKLA. The Rights Issue is not conditional on the Acquisition completing.

4, Key Information

The financial information set out below has been extracted, without material adjustment, from the
published Annual and Interim Reports and Accounts, as described in Part 5 of this document.
Qualifying Shareholders should read the whole of this document and should not rely solely on key or
summarised information.

‘
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(@)  Summarised historical financial information on Aberdeen

6 months 6 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
to 31 March to 31 March to 30 Sept to 30 Sept to 30 Sept
2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
Unaudited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Turnover. ... ... ... £729m £73.4m £1400m £1423m £192.1m

Pre-tax profit (loss)

(before goodwill amortisation, impairment

provisions & exceptional items) ........... £10.4m £ 55m £ 151m £ 50m £ 41.7m
(after goodwill amortisation, impairment

provisions, gain on disposals & exceptional

HEMS) . .t e £ 59m £(96m) £(@7.6m) £ (6.4m) £ 183m
Earnings (loss) per share

(before goodwill amortisation, impairment

provisions & exceptional items) ........... 3.41p 1.56p 4.Tp 3.1p 16.5p
(after goodwill amortisation, impairment

provisions, gain on disposals & exceptional

HEIMS) . oo e e 1.49p (5.61p) (34.9p) (8.8p) 3.3p
Dividend pershare ..................... 2.20p 2.0p 4.0p 4.0p 6.0p
Assets under management

Attheperiodend ....................... £25.4bn £23.4bn £ 22.1bn  £20.6bn  £23.7bn

(b) Sﬁmmary unaudited pro forma financial information

Presented below is summary pro forma financial information for the Group, which gives effect to the
Proposals as if such transactions had occurred on 31 March 2005 and is prepared in accordance with
UK GAAP, and has been extracted from the Unaudited Pro forma Financial Information relating to the
Aberdeen Group on pages 65 to 67:

Group Consolidated Pro forma
Balance Sheet Consolidated
31 March 2005 Balance Sheet
(£°000) (£°000)
TOtal ASSEES . v vt vttt e e 494,667 4,893,845
Equity shareholders’ funds ........... ... ... .. i il 130,952 346,988

GeariNg . ... e 128.4% 48.5%

(c)  Listing and Admission

Application will be made for the New Ordinary Shares and the Nil Paid Rights to be admitted to the
Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Main Market at 8.00 a.m. on 1 September
2005.

(d)  Dividends

The New Ordinary Shares issued pursuant to the Rights Issue will rank pari passu for any final
dividend for the year to 30 September 2005. Aberdeen intends to rebase future dividend payments per
Ordinary Share, including any final dividend for the year to 30 September 2005, to reflect the bonus
element of the Rights Issue. '

(e)  Risk Factors

- Qualifying Shareholders should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties listed below. If any or a
combination of these risks actually occurs, the price of the Ordinary Shares could decline and investors
may lose all or part of their investment.

(i)  Risks associated with the Group’s business

Split Capital Trusts — Following Aberdeen’s announcement on 26 February 2004 that it
had received details from a FOS adjudicator of a provisional assessment in respect of a
complaint brought by one investor in Progressive, Aberdeen has exercised its right to
refer provisional assessments made by FOS adjudicators in connection with complaints
brought by investors in Progressive to an Ombudsman for determination. Aberdeen, on
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the basis of robust legal advice, is vigorously contesting these cases. Were FOS
ultimately to make a final decision against the Aberdeen Group, the Aberdeen Board
considers it impossible to make any reasonable estimate of any potential liability of the
Aberdeen Group over and above the cost of the Uplift Plan. The board of REO has issued
proceedings against the Aberdeen Group and a non-Aberdeen party, seeking damages in
respect of losses incurred on its income portfolio. The proceedings will be vigorously
defended and the Aberdeen Group will counterclaim. It is not possible to quantify any
exposure to damages in this regard. The liquidator of the special purpose vehicle of
Aberdeen Preferred Income Trust Limited wrote to Aberdeen in 2004 indicating that it
was considering a claim. However, no further detail has been forthcoming.

Some speculation exists that legal proceedings may be brought against a range of parties
who have been involved in the Splits Sector. Other than as stated above, no notice of any
legal proceedings related to Aberdeen has been served and any such proceedings would
be defended robustly.

(i)  Risks associated with the Group’s business and the Target Businesses

Employees — the loss of key members of the Aberdeen Group (as enlarged by the
Acquisition) could have a material adverse effect on its performance.

Financial Markets — fluctuations in the financial markets in which the Aberdeen Group
operates may adversely affect the performance of both the Aberdeen Group and the
Target Businesses.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations — the turnover of the Aberdeen Group and of the Target
Businesses is subject to fluctuations between local currencies, particularly the US dollar
and sterling.

Regulation — the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ operations are subject to
financial regulations in each of the jurisdictions in which they operate.

Economic Environment — the future results of the Aberdeen Group and the Target
Businesses will be dependent on factors outside their control which could have a
substantial positive or negative effect on future results.

(iii) Risks relating to the Rights Issue

The value of an investment in the Company and the income derived from it, if any, may
go down as well as up and an investor may not get back the amount invested.

Market Price — the market prices of the New Ordinary Shares may not reflect the
underlying value of the Group.

Disposal — the price at which investors may dispose of their New Ordinary Shares in the
Company may be influenced by a number of factors, some of which may pertain to the
Company, and others of which may be outside of its control. Investors may realise less
than the original amount invested.

Payment of Dividends — the ability of the Company to pay any dividends in respect of
the New Ordinary Shares will depend on the level of income received and on the Group
continuing to meet bank covenants.

Borrowings — the amount of borrowings by the Group may increase the volatility of the
New Ordinary Shares.

Market Fluctuation — the market price of the Ordinary Shares could be subject to
significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors, interest rates, inflation and
variations in the Group’s performance. Developments in, and changes in securities
analysts’ recommendations regarding the fund management sector may also influence and
bring volatility in the market price of the Units, New Ordinary Shares and the Ordinary
Shares.

US Securities — the New Ordinary Shares will not be registered under the Securities Act
and will be issued pursuant to an exemption from registration requirements under such
legislation. \
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Nil Paid Rights — the trading period for the Nil Paid Rights is expected to commence on
1 September 2005 and end on 23 September 20085, but an active trading market may not
develop in that period. The trading price of the Nil Paid Rights will be subject to the same
risks as the New Ordinary Shares

Non-Guarantee of Tax Treatment — there is no guarantee that existing taxation
legislation will continue to apply.

Completion of Acquisition — the Rights Issue is not conditional upon the completion of
the Acquisition and if the Acquisition does not complete for any reason, then the costs
associated with a return of capital or other mechanism to effect a return of capital may
result in Shareholders receiving significantly less than the value of their original
investment.

(iv)  Risks relating to the Acquisition

Financial effects of the Acquisition — The financial effects of the Acquisition will depend
upon the level of clients retained by the Target Businesses and the Company’s ability to
manage costs in line with the revenues finally secured.

Outsourcing — Aberdeen intends to enter into outsourcing arrangements with BNP
Paribas Securities Services and failure to outsource in accordance with the planned
timetable and on acceptable terms could have an adverse effect on the speed and success
of the integration process.

5. Current Trading of Aberdeen

Aberdeen announced its interim results on 3 May 2005. The Group earned a profit before taxation,
goodwill amortisation and exceptional items of £10.4 million for the first half year, compared to
£5.5 million for the same period in 2004, Continued steady investment performance and a
demonstrably robust investment process enabled the Group to win net new business of £2 billion in the
first half year.

The Group continues to benefit from strong new business flows, leading to improved revenues.
Improved revenues and the Group’s focus on cost efficiencies should help ensure that the Group’s
operating margin continues to improve.

Assets under management at 31 May 2005 totalled £25.9 billion. Taking account of mandates awarded
but not yet funded would increase assets under management as of the same date to £26.6 billion.

6. Information on the Target Businesses

The Target Businesses comprise the London-based Fixed Income Business, Philadelphia-based
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts, the OEIC Business, the London-based UK and Global Equities
Business and a London-based Multi-Asset Business.

As at 31 May 2005, the Target Businesses had assets under management of £46.3 billion with
annualised run-rate management fees at that date of £119.3 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, under Deutsche Bank’s ownership, the Target Businesses made
losses before tax of £35.9 million. Aberdeen expects to operate the Target Businesses from a much
reduced cost base. As at 31 December 2004, the Target Businesses had gross assets of £252.8 million,
excluding unit-linked long term life assurance assets held on the balance sheet.

The investment styles and products of the Target Businesses are complementary to those of the Group
and the Target Businesses also contribute strong domestic products and global capabilities.

7. Management and Board

The London Fixed Income Business and the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts will be managed
under the leadership of Steve Ilott, currently Head of Fixed Income at the Target Businesses, who will
become Aberdeen’s Head of Fixed Income and join Aberdeen’s Executive Committee. There will be
no change to Aberdeen’s Board of Directors as a result of the Acquisition.
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8. Additional Information
(a)  Share capital
Following the Rights Issue, the maximum issued share capital of the Company will be £68,478,874

divided into 604,788,742 Ordinary Shares and 80,000 Preference Shares (assuming there are
241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares in issue at the Record Date).

The rights attaching to the New Ordinary Shares will be identical to the rights attaching to the Existing
Ordinary Shares.

The Rights Issue will result in adjustments being made to the conversion prices of the 2007 Bonds, the
2010 Bonds and the Warrants issued in connection with the Convertible Preference Share Units in
accordance with their terms..

(b)  Working capital statement

The Company is of the opinion that, having regard to the cash balances and existing bank and other
facilities available to the Aberdeen Group, and having taken into account the net proceeds of the Rights
Issue receivable by the Company, the working capital available to the Aberdeen Group is sufficient for
its present requirements, that is for at least the next 12 months following the date of this document.

(c) Significant changes

There have been no significant changes in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31 March
2005 or the Target Businesses since 31 December 2004.
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RISK FACTORS

Before deciding whether or not to take up their rights under the Rights Issue or whether to invest in the
Company, prospective investors should carefully consider all the information set out in this document,
together with the risks normally associated with companies of a similar nature to the Company and, in
particular, those risks described below. If any of the following risks actually materialise, Aberdeen’s
business, financial condition and share price could be materially and adversely affected to the detriment
of Aberdeen and its Shareholders. Further risks and uncertainties which are not presently known to the
Directors at the date of this document, or that the Directors currently deem immaterial, may also have
an adverse effect on the business, financial condition or results of the Group.

1. Risks associated with the Group’s business
Split Capital Trusts

On 24 December 2004, Aberdeen announced that the near three-year-long investigation into the
marketing and management of split capital funds had been concluded with an omnibus settlement
between the majority of the firms involved in the sector, the FSA, the Jersey Financial Services
Commission and the Guernsey Financial Services Commission. The terms of the settlement entail no
admission of liability and effectively conclude the Group’s exposure to the regulators in respect of
these matters. Aberdeen contributed £35 million to a central fund. This fund will be used to provide a
cash distribution for retail investors in the zero dividend preference shares issued by split capital
investment companies. In total, approximately £143 million was committed to the central fund by
18 companies involved in the sector, including Aberdeen’s own contribution supported by a payment
made by Aberdeen’s insurers in full and final settlement of any liability those insurers might have
under the relevant insurance policies. Aberdeen issued an Uplift Plan for investors in Progressive (a
retail unit trust which, since its launch in August 2000, has invested primarily in zero dividend
preference shares of listed multi-class closed end collective investment vehicles) at an estimated cost of
£43.3 million. In the two years to 30 September 2004, the Group incurred legal and other external costs
of over £7 million in relation to these issues.

The Uplift Plan was offered to all investors who held units in Progressive which were issued by the
managers on or before 28 June 2002 and gave those investors the opportunity to receive the initial cost
of their investment on the redemption of their holdings on or around the fifth anniversary of their
investment. Eligible Investors (as defined in the Uplift Plan) who had previously sold their holdings
were also offered payments at a discounted rate.

Eligible Investors who accepted the offer of participation in the Uplift Plan have done so on condition
that they relinquish their rights to take any other action in relation to their holding in Progressive.
Eligible Investors who have chosen not to participate in the Uplift Plan may pursue a complaint via
FOS.

Acceptance by an investor of the Uplift Plan enabled Aberdeen to crystallise the extent of its liability to
that investor. By the time that the Uplift Plan closed to further acceptances on 3 June 2005 acceptances

had been received from Eligible Investors representing some 94.4 per cent. by value of those entitled to
participate.

Aberdeen announced on 26 February 2004 that it had received details from a FOS adjudicator of a
provisional assessment in respect of a case being examined by FOS in relation to a complaint brought
by one investor in Progressive. There have been further similar provisional assessments. The
provisional assessments, which are not binding on either party, set out the FOS adjudicator’s view on
these complaints. The provisional assessments proposed that the dispute between Aberdeen Unit Trust
Managers Limited and the complainants be resolved by the payment of compensation to the
complainants. After careful consideration of the provisional assessments, the Aberdeen Board believed
the provisional assessments did not reflect the weight of evidence which Aberdeen had supplied to
substantiate its position. Whilst remaining sensitive to the distress suffered by investors in Progressive
and wishing to provide support to them on a voluntary basis, the Aberdeen Board could not agree with
the FOS adjudicator’s opinion. Aberdeen is therefore exercising its right to have the cases referred to
an Ombudsman for determination. Aberdeen, on the basis of robust legal advice, will vigorously
contest any cases on which FOS may issue adverse findings.

Were FOS ultimately to make a final decision against the Aberdeen Group, any compensation would
have to take into account the circumstances of individual cases. In this regard, given the advice of
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Aberdeen’s solicitors, and the lack of information as to both the number and quantum of cases which
will be subject to any determination by FOS, the Aberdeen Board considers it impossible to make any
reasonable estimate of any potential liability of the Aberdeen Group over and above the cost of the
Uplift Plan.

On 28 June 2005, proceedings were issued against Aberdeen and Aberdeen Asset Managers Jersey
Limited (together the “Aberdeen Parties’™) and a non-Aberdeen party, in the High Court in London by
Real Estate Opportunities Limited (“REO”). In 2003, the board of REO announced, with respect to
the Aberdeen Parties, that REO had terminated its management contract with immediate effect and
indicated that it held the Aberdeen Parties liable for damages in respect of losses incurred on REQ’s
income portfolio. The Aberdeen Parties do not accept the validity of REO’s termination without notice.
The Aberdeen Parties believe that the claim is without merit. The Aberdeen Parties will vigorously
defend the proceedings and counterclaim for their accrued fees and the fees relating to the 12 months’
notice period provided for in the management contract. It is not possible to quantify any exposure to
damages with respect to these proceedings.

In April 2004, the liquidator of the special purpose vehicle of Aberdeen Preferred Income Trust
Limited wrote to Aberdeen indicating that it was considering a claim. However, no further detail has
been forthcoming.

The speculation that legal proceedings may be brought against a range of parties who have been
involved in the Splits Sector continues. Other than as stated above, no notice of any legal proceedings
related to the Aberdeen Group’s involvement in the Splits Sector has been served against any member
of the Aberdeen Group and any such proceedings would be defended robustly.

2, Risks associated with both the Group’s business and the Target Business
Employees

The success of the Aberdeen Group and the Target Businesses depends, inter alia, upon the support of
its employees and, in particular, the executive directors and fund managers. The loss of key members of
the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ staff could have a material adverse effect on its -
performance. In addition, the success of the enlarged Group following the Acquisition will depend
upon a number of key employees who are transferring to Aberdeen with the Target Businesses. The

success of the integration of the Target Businesses may be adversely affected if such key employees
were to leave.

Financial Markets

The income of the Aberdeen Gioup and- of the Target-Businesses is subject to change as a result of
fluctuations in the financial markets in which they operate which directly affect the level of funds under
management and which may adversely affect the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’
performance. Equity and bond markets have been extremely volatile over recent times. A sustained
further fall in equity and/or bond markets would reduce the Group’s revenues and significantly
diminish its prospects of obtaining new funds to manage.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations

A significant proportion of the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ turnover is generated
overseas and, because the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ reporting currency is sterling,
the fluctuations between local currencies, particularly the US dollar, and sterling may have an adverse
effect on the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ performance.

Regulation

The Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ operations are subject to financial regulations in
each of the jurisdictions in which they operate. Alterations to the regulatory requirements in any
jurisdiction may adversely affect the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ performance. In
addition, any breach of relevant regulatory requirements may result in regulatory sanction.

Economic Environment

The future results of the Group and the Target Businesses will be dependent on factors outside the
Group’s control such as general economic conditions, competition and regulation. These factors could
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have a substantial positive or negative effect on the future results of the Group and the Target
Businesses.

3. Risks relating to the Rights Issue

The value of an investment in the Company and the income derived from it, if any, may go down as
well as up and an investor may not get back the amount invested.

Market Price
The market prices of the New Ordinary Shares may not reflect the underlying value of the Group.

Disposal

The price at which investors may dispose of their New Ordinary Shares in the Company may be
influenced by a number of factors, some of which may pertain to the Company, and others of which
may be outside of its control. Investors may realise less than the original amount invested.

Payment of Dividends

While it is the intention of the Directors to continue to pay dividends to Shareholders, the ability of the
Company to pay any dividends in respect of the New Ordinary Shares will depend on the level of
income received, any dividends which have been declared on the Preference Shares and on the Group
continuing to meet bank covenants. Accordingly, the amount of the dividends paid to Shareholders
may fluctuate. Any change in the tax or accounting treatment of dividends or investment income

received by the Company, as the case may be, may also reduce the level of yields received by
Shareholders.

If a dividend on the New Ordinary Shares is not paid, or is paid only in part, the holders of the New
Ordinary Shares shall have no claim in respect of such non-payment or non-payment in part, as
applicable.

Borrowings

The amount of borrowings by the Group may increase the volatility of the New Ordinary Shares.
Should Aberdeen breach any of the covenants contained in its borrowings, it may be required to repay
such borrowings forthwith together with attendant costs including the costs of breaking any fixed
interest arrangements.

Market Fluctuation ’ : : ) - -

The market price of the New Ordinary Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to,
among other factors, interest rates, inflation and variations in the Group’s performance. Developments
in, and changes in securities analysts’ recommendations regarding the fund management sector may
also influence and bring volatility in the market price of the New Ordinary Shares.

US Securities Laws

The New Ordinary Shares have not been nor will they be registered under the Securities Act or the
securities laws of any other jurisdiction. The New Ordinary Shares will be issued pursuant to an
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 801 thereunder.
Subject to certain exceptions, the New Ordinary Shares may not be offered, sold, delivered, pledged or
otherwise transferred in any jurisdiction where such registration may be required.

Nil Paid Rights trading

The trading period for the Nil Paid Rights is expected to commence on 1 September 2005 and end on
23 September 2005. Aberdeen does not anticipate the Nil Paid Rights being traded on any exchange
other than the London Stock Exchange and Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. However,
an active trading market in the Nil Paid Rights may not develop on the London Stock Exchange or
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited during that period. In addition, since the trading price
of the Nil Paid Rights depends on the trading price of the New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights
may be volatile and subject to the same risks noted above under “market fluctuation” above. The
existing volatility of the Shares may also magnify the volatility of the Nil Paid Rights.
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Non Guarantee of Tax Treatment

The information in this document is based on existing taxation legislation. There is no guarantee that
the tax treatment described in this document will continue to apply.

Completion of Acquisition

The Rights Issue is not conditional upon the completion of the Acquisition and therefore it is possible
that the Acquisition may fail to complete after New Ordinary Shares have been issued under the Rights
Issue. In the event that the Acquisition fails to complete after the issue of New Ordinary Shares under
the Rights Issue, whilst it is the Director’s intention to return funds to Shareholders in as cost effective
manner as practicable, the costs associated with a return of capital or other mechanism to effect a
return of capital may result in Shareholders receiving significantly less than the value of their original
investment.

4. Risks associated with the Acquisition
Financial effects of the Acquisition

The financial effects of the Acquisition upon the Group will depend upon the level of clients retained
by the Target Businesses and the Company’s ability to manage costs in line with the revenues finally
secured. Clients of the Target Businesses are under no commitment to transfer the management of their
assets to Aberdeen. Material client losses prior to completion of the Acquisition would lead to a drop in
the amount of revenues transferred.

Outsourcing

Aberdeen intends to enter into outsourcing arrangements with BNP Paribas Securities Services under
which the Target Businesses’ back-office platform will be migrated to BNPP SS in accordance with
Aberdeen’s stated outsourcing policy. Failure to outsource the back-office platform identified for
migration in accordance with the planned timetable, and on similar terms to existing arrangements that
Aberdeen currently has in place with BNPP SS, could have an adverse effect on the speed and success
of the integration process.
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PERSONS RESPONSIBLE, DIRECTORS, SECRETARY AND ADVISERS

1. Persons responsible

The Directors, whose names appear below, and the Company accept responsibility for the information
contained in this document. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors and the Company
(who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this
document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such

information.

2, Directors, Company Secretary and Registered Office

Directors

Chairman .........coiiiireieneennnaneennn.
Chief Executive ..............coviinienn..
Executive Director ............. .. . vt
Finance Director. .. ............ ... ....o..,
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director . .. ..
Independent Non-Executive Director ...........
Independent Non-Executive Director ...........
Independent Non-Executive Director ...........
Independent Non-Executive Director ...........

all of 10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen, AB10 1YG

(1) Member of the Nominations Committee
(2) Member of the Audit Committee

(3) Member of the Remuneration Committee

Company Secretary

Scott Edward Massie

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
10 Queen’s Terrace

Aberdeen

AB10 1YG

Registered Office

10 Queen’s Terrace
Aberdeen
ABI10 1YG

3. Advisers and Others
Sponsor, Financial Adviser and Broker

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
20 Moorgate ‘
London

EC2R 6DA
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Charles Leonard Anthony Irby FCAY"
Martin James Gilbert MA LLB LLD CA
Andrew Arthur Laing MA LLB

William John Rattray MA CA

Donald Henry Waters OBE CA®?

Roger Courtenay Cornick®

Anita Margaret Frew BA Hons MPhil®
Rt. Hon. Sir Malcolm Rifkind QC MP®)
Christopher Giles Herron Weaver FCA®®
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Co-broker

Bridgewell Securities Limited
0ld Change House

128 Queen Victoria Street
London

EC4V 4BJ

Solicitors to the Company

Maclay Murray & Spens
5 Old Bailey

London

EC4aM 7JX

Auditors and Reporting Accountants of the Company

KPMG Audit Plc
37 Albyn Place
Aberdeen

ABI10 1JB

Principal Bankers of Aberdeen

The Governor and Company of the Bank of Scotland

Corporate Banking
3/5 Albyn Place
Aberdeen

AB10 1YP

Agent

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
Trinity Tower

9 Thomas Moore Street
London

EIW 1Y

Registrar

Lloyds TSB Registrars Scotland
PO Box 28448

Finance House

Orchard Brae

Edinburgh

EH4 1WQ

Receiving Agent

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex

BN99 6DA

Underwriter

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
125 London Wall

London

EC24 5A]
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EXPECTED TIMETABLE

Record Date for entitlements under the Rights Issue

Latest time for receipt of Forms of Proxy for the Extraordinary
General MEBUNE ... ov ittt

Extraordinary General Meeting .. .............coiiiiiiiia..

Despatch of Provisional AHotment Letters (to Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders only)

Admission and commencement of dealings in New Ordinary
Shares, nil paid, on the London Stock Exchange

Nil Paid Rights credited to stock accounts in CREST (Qualifying
CREST Shareholders only)

Shares marked “ex-rights” by the London Stock Exchange .....

Latest recommended time and date for requesting withdrawal of
Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights from CREST (i.e. if your Nil
Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights are in CREST and you wish to
convert them to uncentificated form) ........................

Latest time and date for depositing renounced Provisional
Allotment Letters, nil paid or fully paid, into CREST or for
dematerialising Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights into a
CREST $tock account ........vvviviiiienniniiiiennen...

Latest time and date for splitting. Provisional Allotment Letters,
nilpaidorfullypaid ........... ... ..o il

Latest time and date for acceptance and payment in full and
registration of renounced Provisional Allotment Letters .....

Expected date on which New Ordinary Shares issued pursuant to
the Rights Issue will be credited to CREST stock accounts in
uncertificated form ... .. o oo ool

Expected date for delivery of definitive share certificates for New
Orndinary Shares ..... e e

Notes:

2005

close of business on 26 August

10.30 a.m. on 29 August
10.30 a.m. on 31 August

as soon as practicable on 31 August
8.00 a.m. on 1 September

as soon as practicable after 8.00 a.m. on 1 September

8.00 am. on 1 September
4.30 p.m. on 19 September

3.00 p.m. on 20 September
3.00 p.m. on 21 September

11.00 a.m. on 23 September

8.00 a.m. on 26 September

by 3 October

(i) Each of the times and dates in the above timetable and mentioned throughout this document, the Circular and the Provisional Allotment
Letter may be adjusted by the Aberdeen Group, in which event details of the new dates will be notified to the UK Listing Authority and

to the London Stock Exchange and, where appropriate, to Shareholders.

(ii) References to times in this document are to London time

RIGHTS ISSUE STATISTICS

Rights Issue Price per New Ordinary Share..........
Number of Existing Ordinary Shares ...............
Maximum number of New Ordinary Shares to be issued
Number of New Ordinary Shares to be issued........
Net proceeds of Rights Issue.............. ... ....

Notes:

......................... 63p
......................... 241,915,497

........................ 486,000,000

......................... 362,873,245*%
......................... £216

million*

* This figure is illustrative only and assumes that there are no further issues of Ordinary Shares prior to the Record Date and after the date of
this document, and therefore does not represent the maximum number of New Ordinary Shares that could be issued under the Rights Issue.
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PART 1
DETAILS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

YOU ARE RECOMMENDED TO RETAIN THIS DOCUMENT AS YOU MAY NEED TO REFER
TO IT FOLLOWING RECEIPT OF A PROVISIONAL ALLOTMENT LETTER OR CREDIT OF
YOUR STOCK ACCOUNT WITHIN CREST OF NIL PAID RIGHTS

1. Terms and Conditions of the Rights Issue

Subject to the fulfilment of the conditions referred to below, the Company is proposing to raise
approximately £216 million, net of expenses, through a Rights Issue of New Ordinary Shares at 63p
per share. The New Ordinary Shares are being offered by way of rights at 63p per New Ordinary Share
to Qualifying Shareholders on the basis of

3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary Shares

held on the Record Date and so in proportion for any other number of shares held. Holdings of Existing
Ordinary Shares in certificated and uncertificated form will be treated as separate holdings for the
purpose of calculating entitlements under the Rights Issue. Fractions of New Ordinary Shares will not
be allotted to Qualifying Shareholders and, where necessary, entitlements to New Ordinary Shares will
be rounded down to the nearest whole number. The rights to such fractional entitlements to New
Ordinary Shares will be aggregated and sold in the market for the benefit of the Company.
Accordingly, Qualifying Shareholders with fewer than two Existing Ordinary Shares at the close of
business on the Record Date will not be entitled to any New Ordinary Shares.

The attention of Overseas Shareholders and any person (including, without limitation,
custodians, nominees and trustees) who has a contractual or other legal obligation to forward
this document into a jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom is drawn to paragraph 6 below.

The New Ordinary Shares will, when issued and fully paid, rank pari passu with the Existing Ordinary
" Shares and will rank for all dividends or other distributions declared, made or paid in the future and
will rank pari passu for any final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2005. The New Ordinary
Shares were created under the Companies Act. There are no restrictions on the transferability of New
Ordinary Shares.

The Rights Issue is underwritten by JPMorgan on behalf of JPMorgan Cazenove and is condmonal
'upon the fulfilment of the followmg condmons - , TN

(i)  the Underwriting Agreement becoming unconditional in all respects and not havmg been
terminated in accordance with its terms prior to Admission;

(ii)  the passing of the Resolution set out in the EGM Notice;
(iii)  the provisional allotment of the New Ordinary Shares; and
(iv)  Admission of the New Ordinary Shares to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority.

Under the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, further details of which are set out in
paragraph 14.1(b) of Part 10 of this document, the Underwriting Agreement shall cease and terminate,
if, inter alia, the Company breaches any of its warranties, representations or undertakings under the
Underwriting Agreement at any time up to Admission and the commencement of dealings in the Nil
Paid Rights.

Provisional Allotment Letters in respect of New Ordinary Shares will be despatched to Qualifying
Non-CREST Shareholders (other than, subject to certain exceptions, Overseas Shareholders) at their
own risk on 31 August 2005. Provisional Allotment Letters constitute temporary documents of title.

Applications will be made for the Nil Paid Rights and Fully Paid Rights to be admitted to CREST 1o
enable Shareholders to hold Nil Paid Rights and Fully Paid Rights in uncertificated form. It is expected
that the Nil Paid Rights and Fully Paid Rights will be enabled for settlement in, and admitted to,

CREST, as soon as practicable after Admission of the Nil Paid Rights to the Official List has become
effective.
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The Existing Ordinary Shares are already admitted to CREST and no further application for admission
to CREST is accordingly required for the New Ordinary Shares, all of which, when issued and fully
paid, may be held and transferred by means of CREST.

Subject, inter alia, to the conditions referred to in paragraphs (i) to (iv) above being satisfied and save
as provided in paragraph 6 below, it is intended that:-

(a) Provisional Allotment Letters in respect of Nil Paid Rights will be despatched to Qualifying
Non-CREST Shareholders at their own risk on 31 August 2005;

(b) Lloyds TSB Registrars will instruct CRESTCo to credit the appropriate stock accounts of
Qualifying CREST Shareholders with such Shareholders’ entitlements to Nil Paid Rights, as
soon as practicable after 8.00 a.m. on 1 September 2005;

(c) the Nil Paid Rights and Fully Paid Rights will be enabled for settlement by CRESTCo on
1 September 2005, as soon as practicable after the Company has confirmed to CRESTCo that all
the conditions for Admission of such rights to CREST have been satisfied;

(d) New Ordinary Shares will be credited to the relevant Qualifying CREST Shareholders (or their
renouncees), who validly take up their rights, as soon as practicable after 8.00 a.m. on
26 September 2005; and

(e)  share certificates for the New Ordinary Shares will be despatched to relevant Qualifying
Non-CREST Shareholders (or their renouncees), who will validly take up their rights, at their
own risk by 3 October 2005.

The offer of New Ordinary Shares to Qualifying CREST Shareholders will be made, on the terms and
conditions set out in this document, at the time when (such Shareholders’ stock accounts having been

credited as described in paragraph (b) above) the Nil Paid Rights are enabled for settlement as
described in paragraph (c) above.

Shareholders taking up their rights by completing a Provisional Allotment Letter, or by sending a
Many-to-Many (“MTM?”) instruction to CRESTCo will be deemed to have given the representations
and warranties set out in paragraphs 2.2.2(d) and 6.3 of this Part 1 below, unless such requirement is
waived by Aberdeen.

The ISIN code for the Nil Paid Rights is GBOOBODOLK34 and for the Fully Paid Rights is
GB0OBODOMS884.

2; Action to be taken

The action to be taken in respect of New Ordinary Shares depends on whether, at the relevant
time, the Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights in respect of which action is to be taken are in
certificated form (that is, are represented by Provisional Allotment Letters) or are in
uncertificated form (that is, are in CREST). ‘

CREST sponsored members should refer to their CREST sponsor, as only their CREST sponsor
will be able to take the necessary action specified below to take up their entitlements or otherwise
to deal with their Nil Paid or Fully Paid Rights. CREST members who wish to take up their
entitlements in respect of, or otherwise to deal with, Nil Paid or Fully Paid Rights held by them in
CREST should refer to the CREST Manual for further information on the CREST procedures referred
to below.

2.1  General

2.1.1 Nil Paid Rights represented by Provisional Allotment Letters

The Provisional Allotment Letters are expected to be dispatched on 31 August 2005 and will set out the
holding of Existing Ordinary Shares on which a Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder’s entitlement to
New Ordinary Shares has been based, the aggregate number of New Ordinary Shares which have been
provisionally allotted and the procedures to be followed if a Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder
wishes to dispose of all or part of their entitlement or to convert all or part of their entitlement into
uncertificated form.
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The Provisional Allotment Letters will also include instructions regarding acceptance and payment,
consolidation, splitting and registration of renunciation. On the basis that Provisional Allotment Letters
are posted on 31 August 2005, and that dealings commence at 8.00 a.m. on 1 September 2005, the
latest time and date for acceptance and payment in full and registration of renounced Provisional
Allotment Letters will be 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005. If the Rights Issue is delayed so that
Provisional Allotment Letters cannot be despatched on 31 August 2005, the expected timetable as set
out at the front of this document will be adjusted accordingly and the revised dates will be set out in the
Provisional Allotment Letters.

2.1.2 Nil Paid Rights in CREST

Subject as provided for in paragraph 6 below under “Overseas Shareholders”, each Qualifying CREST
Shareholder is expected to receive a credit to a stock account in CREST of their entitlement to Nil Paid
Rights as soon as practicable after 8.00 a.m. on 1 September 2005. The stock account to be credited
will be an account under the participant ID and member account ID that apply to the Existing Ordinary
Shares held on the Record Date by the Qualifying CREST Shareholder in respect of which the Nil Paid
Rights are provisionally allotted.

The Nil Paid Rights will constitute a separate security for the purposes of CREST and can accordingly
be transferred, in whole or in part, by means of CREST in the same manner as any other security that is
admitted to CREST. If the Rights Issue is delayed so that stock accounts of Qualifying CREST
Shareholders cannot be credited, or the Nil Paid Rights enabled, on 1 September 2005, the expected
timetable as set out in this document will be adjusted accordingly.

If for any reason it is impracticable to credit the stock accounts of Qualifying CREST Shareholders or
to enable the Nil Paid Rights, PALs shall, unless the Company and JPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove
agree otherwise, be sent out in substitution for the Nil Paid Rights which have not been so credited or
enabled and the expected timetable as set out in this document may, with the consent of JPMorgan and
JPMorgan Cazenove, be adjusted as appropriate.

References to dates and times in this document should be read as subject to any such adjustment.
The Company will make an appropriate announcement to a regulatory news service giving details of

any revised dates but Qualifying CREST Shareholders may not receive any further written
communication.

CREST members who wish to take up all or part of their entitlements in respect of, or otherwise to
transfer all or part of, their Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights held by them in CREST should refer to
the CREST Manual for further information on the CREST procedures referred to below. Qualifying
Shareholders who are CREST sponsored members.should consult their CREST sponsors if they wish
to take up their entitlement as only their CREST sponsor will be able to take the necessary action to
take up their entitlements or otherwise to deal with their Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights.

2.2  Procedures for acceptance and payment

2.2.1 Holders of Provisional Allotment Letters

Holders of Provisional Allotment Letters who wish to take up their entitlement, in whole or in part,
must return the Provisional Allotment Letter, together with a remittance for the full amount payable on
acceptance, in accordance with the instructions printed thereon, by hand or by post, to Lloyds TSB
Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA, so as to arrive as soon as possible and
in any event so as to be received by not later than 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005. If you post your
Provisional Allotment Letter within the United Kingdom by first class post it is recommended that you
allow at least three days for delivery.

If payment is not received in full by 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 20035, the provisional allotment will
be deemed to have been declined and will lapse. The Company reserves the right, but shall not be
obliged, to treat as valid (i) Provisional Allotment Letters and accompanying remittances which are
received through the post not later than 11.00 a.m. on 24 September (the cover bearing a legible
postmark not later than 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005) and (ii} applications in respect of which
remittances are received prior to 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005 from an authorised person (as
defined in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000) specifying the Nil Paid Rights concerned and
undertaking to lodge the relevant Provisional Allotment Letter duly completed in due course.
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All subscription monies must be in sterling and cheques or banker’s drafts should be made payable to
“Lloyds TSB Bank plc — A/C Aberdeen Asset Management PLC” and crossed “A/C payee only”.
The name of the first-registered Shareholder and their post code must be written on the reverse of the
cheque. Cheques or banker’s drafts must be drawn on a bank or building society or branch of a bank or
building society in the United Kingdom or Channel Islands which is either a settlement member of the
Cheque and Credit Clearing Company Limited or the CHAPS Clearing Company Limited or a member
of either of the Committees of the Scottish or Belfast Clearing Houses or which has arranged for its
cheques and banker’s drafts to be cleared through the facilities provided by any of those companies or
comimittees and must bear the appropriate sort code in the top right hand corner. Cheques or banker’s
drafts will be presented for payment upon receipt. The Company reserves the right to instruct the
Registrars to seek special clearance of cheques and banker’s drafts to allow the Company to obtain
value for remittances at the earliest opportunity. No interest will be allowed on payments made before
they are due. It is a term of the Rights Issue that cheques shall be honoured at first presentation and the
Company may elect to treat as invalid acceptances in respect of which cheques are not so honoured.

The Company may (in its sole discretion) treat a Provisional Allotment Letter as valid and binding on
the person(s) by whom or on whose behalf it is lodged even if it is not completed in accordance with
the relevant instructions or is not accompanied by a valid power of attorney where required.

Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders wishing to deal in Fully Paid Rights or to split or transfer their
Fully Paid Rights following acceptance will need to have their fully paid PAL returned to them by the
Registrars after acceptance has been effected. To do this, Shareholders are requested to indicate their
request by placing a cross in Box 4 on page 4 of the PAL and following the instructions thereon.

For details on how to split a Provisional Allotment Letter and take up only part of the New Ordinary
Shares provisionally allotted in a Provisional Allotment Letter, you are referred to paragraph 2.5 below
entitled “Renunciation and Splitting of Provisional Allotment Letters”.

2.2.2 Nil Paid Rights in uncertificated form (that is, in CREST)
(a)  Many-to-Many Instructions

CREST members who wish to take up all or part of their entitlement in respect of Nil Paid Rights in
CREST must send (or, if they are CREST sponsored members, procure that their CREST sponsor
sends) an MTM instruction to CRESTCo which, on its settlement, will have the following effect:-

(i)  the crediting of a stock account of Lloyds TSB Registrars under the participant ID specified
below, with the number of Nil Paid Rights to be taken up;

(i)  the creation of an assured payment obligation, in“accordance Wwith thé CREST assured payment
arrangements, in favour of the payment bank of Lloyds TSB Registrars in respect of the full

amount payable on acceptance in respect of the Nil Paid Rights referred to in paragraph (i)
above; and

(iii) the crediting of a stock account of the accepting CREST member (being an account under the
same participant ID and member account ID as the account from which the Nil Paid Rights are
to be debited on settlement of the MTM instruction) of the corresponding number of Fully Paid
Rights to which the CREST member is entitled on taking up their Nil Paid Rights referred to in
paragraph (ii) above.

(b)  Contents of Many-to-Many Instructions

The MTM instruction must be properly anthenticated in accordance with CRESTCo’s specifications
and must contain, in addition to the other information that is required for settlement in CREST, the
following details:-

. the number of Nil Paid Rights to which the acceptance relates;
. the participant ID of the accepting CREST member;

. the member account ID of the accepting CREST member from which the Nil Paid Rights are to
be debited;

. the participant ID of Lloyds TSB Registrars. This is 6RAQ4;
. the member account ID of Lloyds TSB Registrars. This is RA104601;
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. the number of Fully Paid Rights that the CREST member is expecting to receive on settlement
of the MTM instruction (note: this must be the same as the number of Nil Paid Rights referred to
in (i) above);

. the amount payable by means of the CREST assured payment arrangements on settlement of the
MTM instruction. This must be the full amount payable on acceptance in respect of the number
of Nil Paid Rights referred to in (i) above;

. the intended settlement date. This must be on or before 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005; and

. the Corporate Action Number for the Rights Issue. This will be available by reviewing the
relevant corporate action details in CREST.

(¢)  Valid Acceptance

An MTM instruction complying with the requirements as to authentication and contents set out in sub-
section (b) of this paragraph 2.2.2 will constitute a valid acceptance where either:-

(A) the MTM instruction settles by not later than 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005; or

B @ the MTM instruction is received by CRESTCo by not later than 11.00 am. on
23 September 2005; and

(ii)  a number of Nil Paid Rights at least equal to the number of Nil Paid Rights inserted in the
MTM instruction is credited to the member account of the accepting CREST member
specified in the MTM instruction at 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005.

An MTM instruction will be treated as having been received by CRESTCo for these purposes at the
time at which the instruction is processed by the Communications Host at CRESTCo of the network
provider used by the CREST member (or by the CREST member’s CREST sponsor). This will be
conclusively determined by the input time stamp applied to the MTM instruction by the
Communications Host (as defined in the Glossary to the CREST Manual).

(@)  Representations, warranties and undertakings of CREST members

A CREST member or CREST sponsored member who makes a valid acceptance as described in

paragraph 2.2.2(c) above represents, warrants and undertakes to the Company that they have taken (or
577 e procured to be taken), and will take (or will procure to be taken), such action as shall be required to be” " .
taken by them or by their CREST sponsor (as appropriate) to ensure that thé MTM ’instruction ™"~ '
concerned is capable of settlement at 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005 and remains capable of
settlement at all times thereafter until 2.00 p.m. on 23 September 2005 (or until such later time and
date as the Company may determine). In particular, the CREST member or CREST sponsored member
represents, warrants and undertakes that, at 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005 and at all times thereafter
until 2.00 p.m. on 23 September 2005 (or until such later time and date as the Company may
determine), there will be sufficient Headroom within the Cap (as those terms are defined in the
Glossary to the CREST Manual) in respect of the cash memorandum account to be debited with the
amount payable on acceptance to permit the MTM instruction to settle. CREST sponsored members
should contact their CREST sponsor if they are in any doubt.

(¢)  CREST procedures and timings

CREST members and (where applicable) their CREST sponsors should note that CRESTCo
does not make available special procedures, in CREST, for any particular corporate action.
Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of an MTM
instruction and its settlement in connection with the Rights Issue. It is the responsibility of the
CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST sponsored member,
to procure that his CREST sponsor takes) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a valid
acceptance is received as stated above by 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005, In this connection
CREST members and (where applicable) their CREST sponsors are referred in particular to
those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and
timings.
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(f)  CREST member’s undertaking to pay

A CREST member who makes a valid acceptance in accordance with the procedures set out in
paragraph 2.2.2 of this Part 1 will thereby (i) undertake to pay to the Company the amount payable on
acceptance in accordance with the above procedures or in such other manner as the Company may
require (it being acknowledged that, where payment is made by means of the CREST assured payment
arrangements, the creation of an assured payment obligation in favour of the Registrar’s payment bank
in accordance with the CREST assured payment arrangements shall, to the extent of the obligation so
created, discharge in full the obligation of the CREST member to pay to the Company the amount
payable on acceptance) and (ii) request that the New Ordinary Shares to which he will become entitled
be issued to him on the terms set out in this document and subject to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company.

(g)  Discretion as to rejection and validity of acceptances
The Company may in its sole discretion:-

(A) reject any acceptance constituted by an MTM instruction which is otherwise valid in the event
of breach of any of the representations, warranties and undertakings set out or referred to in
paragraph 2.2 of this Part 1. Where an acceptance is made, as described in paragraph 2.2 above,
which is otherwise valid, and the MTM instruction concerned fails to settle by 2.00 p.m. on
23 September 2005 (or by such later time and date as the Company has determined), the
Company shall be entitled to assume, for the purposes of its right to reject an acceptance
contained in this paragraph (A), that there has been a breach of the representations, warranties
and undertakings set out or referred to in this Part 1 unless the Company is aware of any reason
outside the control of the CREST member or CREST sponsor (as appropriate) concerned for
the failure to settle;

(B) treat as valid (and binding on the CREST member concerned) an acceptance which does not
comply in all respects with the requirements as to validity set out or referred to in this
paragraph 2.2 of Part 1;

(C)  accept an alternative properly authenticated dematerialised instruction from a CREST member
or (where applicable) a CREST sponsor as constituting a valid acceptance in substitution for or
in addition to an MTM instruction and subject to such further terms and conditions as the
Company may determine;

treat a properly authenticated dematerialised instruction (in this sub-paragraph the “first
instruction”) as not constituting a valid acceptance if, at the time at which Lloyds TSB oy
~Registrars feceives a properly authenticated dematerialised instruction giving details of the first T
instruction, either the Company or Lloyds TSB Registrars have received actual notice from

CRESTCo of any of the matters specified in Regulation 29(5)(a) in relation to the first

instruction. These matters include notice that any information contained in the first instruction

was incorrect or notice of lack of authority to send the first instruction; and

(E)  accept an alternative instruction or notification from a CREST member or CREST sponsored
member or (where applicable) a CREST sponsor, or extend the time for acceptance and/or
settlement of an MTM instruction or any alternative instruction or notification, in the event that,
for reasons or due to circumstances outside the control of any CREST member or CREST
sponsored member or (where applicable) CREST sponsor, the CREST member or CREST
sponsored member is unable validly to take up all or part of their Nil Paid Rights by means of
the above procedures. In normal circumstances, this discretion is only likely to be exercised in
the event of any interruption, failure or breakdown of CREST (or of any part of CREST) or on
the part of the facilities and/or systems operated by the Registrars in connection with CREST.

2.3 Dealings in Nil Paid Rights

Dealings on the London Stock Exchange in the Nil Paid Rights are expected to commence at 8.00 a.m.
on | September 2005. A transfer of Nil Paid Rights can be made:-

2.3.1 in the case of Nil Paid Rights in certificated form, by renunciation of the Provisional Allotment
Letter in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and delivery of such letter to the
transferee; and
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2.3.2 in the case of Nil Paid Rights in uncertificated form, by means of CREST in the same manner as
any other security that is admitted to CREST. The Nil Paid Rights are expected to be disabled in
CREST after the close of CREST business on 23 September 2005.

2.4  Dealings in Fully Paid Rights

After acceptance and payment in full in accordance with the provisions set out in this document and
(where appropriate) the Provisional Allotment Letter, the Fully Paid Rights may be transferred:-

2.4.1 in the case of Fully Paid Rights in certificated form, by renunciation of the relevant Provisional
Allotment Letter and lodging of the same by hand or by post, with Lloyds TSB Registrars, The

Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA, by not later than 11.00 a.m. on 23 September
2005; and

2.4.2 in the case of Fully Paid Rights in uncertificated form, by means of CREST in the same manner
as any other security that.is admitted to CREST. The last time for settlement of any transfer of
Fully Paid Rights in CREST is expected to be 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005. The Fully Paid

Rights are expected to be disabled in CREST after the close of CREST business on
23 September 2005.

After 23 September 2005, the New Ordinary Shares will be in registered form and transferable in the
usual way (see paragraph 2.9 of this Part 1 below).

2.5 Renunciation and Splitting of Provisional Allotment Letters

A Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder entitled to a provisional allotment of New Ordinary Shares
who wishes to transfer all the Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights comprised in a Provisional
Allotment Letter may (save as required by the laws of certain foreign jurisdictions) renounce such
allotment by completing and signing Form X on such letter and handing the entire letter to the
transferee or to the broker or bank who acts for such holder in the transaction. Once a Provisional
Allotment Letter has been renounced, the letter will become a negotiable instrument in bearer form.
The latest time and date for registration of renunciation is 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005.

If the Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholder wishes to have only some of such New Ordinary Shares
registered in their name and to transfer the remainder, or wishes to transfer all the Nil Paid Rights or
Fully Paid Rights but to different persons, they may have the Provisional Allotment Letter split, for
which purpose they or their agent must complete and sign Form X on such letter. The Provisional
Allotment Letter must then be ‘lodged;iwith- Lloyds TSB Registrars, 3rd Floor, Princess House,
1 Suffolk Lane, London EC4R DAX by net later than 3.00 p.m. on 21 September 2005 to be cancelled
and exchanged for the split PALs required. To split or transfer Fully Paid Rights in certificated form,
Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders will need to have their fully paid PAL returned to them after the
acceptance has been effected (in accordance with paragraph 2.2.1 above) by the Registrars. The
number of split PALs required and the number of Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights to be comprised

in each should be stated in an accompanying letter. Form X on split letters will be marked “Original
Duly Renounced” before issue.

Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights in CREST may be transferred (in whole or in part) in the same

manner as any other security that is admitted to CREST, as explained in paragraphs 2.3 and 2.4 of this
Part 1 above.

2.6  Registration in names of Qualifying Shareholders

A Qualifying Shareholder who wishes to have all the New Ordinary Shares to which they are entitled
registered in their name must accept and make payment for such allotment in accordance with the
provisions set out in this document and (where appropriate) the Provisional Allotment Letter.

2.7  Registration in names of persons other than Qualifying Shareholders originally entitled

In relation to Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights in certificated form, the renouncee or their agent(s)
must complete Form Y on page 4 of the Provisional Allotment Letter (unless the renouncee is a
CREST member who wishes to hold such New Ordinary Shares in uncertificated form, in which case
form X and the CREST Deposit form (both on page 4 of the PAL) must be completed) and lodge the
entire PAL with Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA by not later

24 Aberdeen 0029




than 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005. Nil Paid or Fully Paid Rights in CREST may be transferred in
the same manner as any other security that is admitted in CREST, as explained in paragraphs 2.3
and 2.4 above. After 23 September 2005, the New Ordinary Shares will be transferable in the usual
way.

2.8  Deposit of Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights into, and withdrawals of such Rights
from, CREST

Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights which are represented by Provisional Allotment Letters may be
converted into uncertificated form, that is, deposited into CREST (whether any such conversion arises
as a result of a transfer of such Rights or otherwise). Similarly, Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights
held in CREST may be converted into certificated form, that is, withdrawn from CREST. Normal
CREST procedures (including timings) apply in relation to any such conversion, subject (in the case of
a deposit into CREST) as set out in the Provisional Allotment Letter. You are recommended to refer to
the CREST Manual for details of such procedures.

Holders of Nil Paid Rights who are proposing so to convert any such Nil Paid Rights are recommended
to ensure that the conversion procedures are implemented in sufficient time to enable the person
holding or acquiring the Nil Paid Rights following the conversion to take all necessary steps in
connection with taking up the entitlement prior to 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005. In particular,
having regard to normal processing times in CREST and on the part of Lioyds TSB Registrars, the
recommended latest time for depositing a renounced Provisional Allotment Letter with the CREST
Courier and Sorting Service, where the renouncee wishes to hold the Nil Paid Rights represented by
such Provisional Allotment Letter in uncertificated form, is 3.00 p.m. on 20 September 2005, and the
recommended latest time for receipt by CRESTCo of a dematerialised instruction requesting
withdrawal of Nil Paid Rights from CREST is 4.30 p.m. on 19 September 2005, in either case so as to
enable the person acquiring or (as appropriate) holding the Nil Paid Rights following the conversion to
take all necessary steps in connection with taking up the entitlement prior to 11.00 am. on
23 September 2005.

CREST sponsored members should contact their CREST sponsor.

2.9  Issue of New Ordinary Shares in CREST and certificated form

Fully Paid Rights in CREST are expected to be disabled in CREST after the close of CREST business
on 23 September 2005 (the latest date for settlement of transfers of Fully Paid Rights in CREST). New
Ordinary Shares will be issued in uncertificated form to those persons registered as holding such Fully
Paid Rights in CREST at the close of business on the date on which the-Fully Paid Rights are disabled.
Lioyds TSB Registrars will instruct CRESTCo to ctedit the appropriate: stock dccounts of such persons
with such persons’ entitlements to New Ordinary Shares with effect from the next business day
(expected to be 26 September 2005). The stock accounts to be credited will be accounts under the same
participant [Ds and member account IDs that apply to the Fully Paid Rights held by the persons
concerned in respect of which the New Ordinary Shares (in definitive form) are issued.

In relation to Fully Paid Rights in certificated form after the close of CREST business on 23 September
2005 (the latest date for registration of renunciation), the New Ordinary Shares to which the holders of
those Fully Paid Rights are entitled will be issued in certificated form. Share certificates are expected to
be despatched by post on 3 October 2005 to the persons entitled thereto. After 11.00 a.m. on
23 September 2005, Provisional Allotment Letters will cease to be valid for any purpose whatsoever.
After 23 September 2005 and pending the issue of definitive share certificates, instruments of transfer
will be certified by Lloyds TSB Registrars against lodgement of fully paid Provisional Allotment
Letters and/or, in the case of renounced Provisional Allotment Letters, against the registration receipt,
Form Y, bearing the stamp of Lloyds TSB Registrars.

2.10 Posting

All documents and cheques posted to or by the allottees or their renouncees (or their agents, as
appropriate) will be posted at their risk.

2.11 Right to allot/issue in certificated form

Notwithstanding any other provision of this document, the Company reserves the right to allot and/or
issue any Nil Paid Rights, Fully Paid Rights or New Ordinary Shares in certificated form. In normal
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circumstances, this right is only likely to be exercised in the event of any interruption, failure or
breakdown of CREST (or of any part of CREST) or on the part of the facilities and/or systems operated
by Lloyds TSB Registrars in connection with CREST.

2.12 Governing law

The terms and conditions of the Rights Issue, as set out in this document and (where appropriate) the
Provisional Allotment Letter, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
England.

3. Procedure in respect of New Ordinary Shares not taken up

If an entitlement to New Ordinary Shares is not validly taken up by 11.00 a.m. on 23 September 2005,
in accordance with the procedure laid down for acceptance and payment, then that provisional
allotment will be deemed to have been declined and will lapse. JPMorgan Cazenove, acting as agent for
the Company, will endeavour to procure, by not later than 5.00 p.m. on 27 September 2005, subscribers
for such New Ordinary Shares if a premium over the aggregate of the Rights Issue Price and the
expenses of procuring such subscribers (including any value added tax thereon) can be obtained. It will
be a term of such subscription that such premjum shall be paid (subject as provided in this
paragraph 3):-

(a)  where the provisional allotment was, at the time of its lapsing, represented by a Provisional
Allotment Letter, to the person whose name and address appeared on page 1 of the Provisional
- Allotment Letter; and

(b)  where the Nil Paid Rights were, at the time of their lapsing, in uncertificated form, to the person
registered as the holder of such Nil Paid Rights at the time of their disablement in CREST.

New Ordinary Shares for which subscribers are procured on this basis will be re-allotted to such
subscribers and the premium (being the amount paid by such subscribers after deducting the Rights
Issue Price and the expenses of procuring such subscribers including any value added tax thereon) will
be paid (without interest) to those persons entitled (as referred to above) pro rata to the relevant lapsed
provisional allotments, save that amounts of less than £5.00 per holding will not be so paid but will be
aggregated and retained for the benefit of the Company.

Any transactions undertaken pursuant to this paragraph 3 shall be deemed to have been undertaken-at

the request of the persons entitled to the lapsed provisional allotments and neither the Company nor

JPMorgan Cazenove nor any person procuring such subscribers shall be responsible for any loss arising
e oggmamee .o from the terms or timing of any such subscription. Cheques for the amount due will*be sent, at the risk «. .
swnoigs e b of the person(s) entitled, to their registered addresses (thé régistered address of the-first named-in the ** -

' case of joint holders), provided that, where any entitlement concerned was held in CREST, the amount

due will, unless the Company (in its absolute discretion) otherwise determines, be satisfied by the

Company procuring the creation of an assured payment obligation in favour of the relevant CREST

member’s payment bank in respect of the cash amount concerned in accordance with the CREST

assured payment arrangements. If subscribers cannot be procured on the basis outlined above, the

relevant New Ordinary Shares will be subscribed for by JPMorgan or subunderwriters at the Rights
Issue Price.

4. Money Laundering Regulations 2003
4.1  Holders of Provisional Allotment Letters

It is a term of the Rights Issue that, to ensure compliance with the Money Laundering
Regulations 2003, the Registrars may at their absolute discretion require verification of identity from
any person lodging a Provisional Allotment Letter (the “applicant™) including, without limitation, any
applicant who (i) tenders payment by way of cheque or banker’s draft drawn on an account in the name
of a person or persons other than the applicant, or (ii) appears to the Registrars to be acting on behalf of
some other person. In the former case, verification of the identity of the applicant may be required. In
the latter case, verification of the identity of any person on whose behalf the applicant appears to be
acting may be required.

Return of an Provisional Allotment Letter with the appropriate remittance will constitute a warranty
from the applicant that the Money Laundering Regulations 2003 will not be breached by the
acceptance of the remittance and an undertaking from the applicant to provide verification of identity to
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the Company’s Registrars, if so requested. Failure to provide satisfactory evidence of identity if-

requested to do so may result in a delay in the issue of New Ordinary Shares.

The verification of identity requirements will not usually apply:

(a)  if the applicant is an organisation required to comply with the Money Laundering Directive (the
Council Directive on prevention of the use of the financial system for the purpose of money
laundering (no. 91/308/EEC));

(b)  if the applicant (not being an applicant who delivers their application in person) makes payment
by way of a cheque drawn on an account in the applicant’s name; or

(¢)  if the aggregate subscription price for the relevant New Ordinary Shares is less than €15,000 (or,
its equivalent, being approximately £9,500).

In other cases the verification of identity requirements may apply. Satisfaction of these requirements
may be facilitated in the following ways:

(i)  if payment is made by building society cheque (not being a cheque drawn on an account in the
name of the applicant) or banker’s draft, by the building society or bank endorsing on the
cheque or banker’s draft the applicant’s name and the number of an account held in the
applicant’s name at such building society or bank, such endorsement being validated by a stamp
and an authorised signature;

(ii) if payment is not made by cheque drawn on an account in the name of the applicant and
(i) above does not apply, the applicant should enclose with their Provisional Allotment Letter
evidence of their name and address from an appropriate third party, for example, a recent bill
from a gas, electricity or telephone company or a bank statement, in each case bearing the
applicant’s name and address (originals of such documents (not copies) are required which will
be returned in due course); and

(iii)  if the Provisional Allotment Letter is lodged with payment by an agent which is an organisation
of the kind referred to in (a) above or which is subject to anti-money laundering regulation in a
country which is a member of the Financial Action Task Force (the non-European Union
members of which are Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, Gulf Co-operation Council, Hong
Kong, Iceland, Japan, Mexico, New Zealand, Norway, Singapore, Switzerland, Turkey and the
United States), the agent should provide with the Provisional Allotment Letter written
confirmation that it has that status and that it has obtained and recorded evidence of the identity
of the person for whom it acts and that it w111 on demand make such evidence available to the

) Regls“trars
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If you dehver your Provmonal Allotment Letter personally by hand, you should ensure that you have
with you evidence of identity bearing your photograph (for example your passport).

If, within a reasonable period of time following a request for verification of identity, Lloyds TSB
Registrars have not received evidence satisfactory to it as aforesaid, the Company may at their absolute
discretion reject the relevant application, in which event the monies submitted in respect of that
application (to the extent provided) will be returned (without interest) to the account at the drawee bank
or building society from which such monies were originally debited (without prejudice to the rights of
the Company to undertake proceedings to recover in respect of the loss suffered by it as a result of the
failure to produce satisfactory evidence as aforesaid).

Neither the Company shall be responsible for or have any liability for loss or damage (whether actual
or alleged) arising from the election by the Company to treat an application in respect of New Ordinary
Shares as invalid or terminate the contract of allotment as a result of the Registrars, not having received
evidence reasonably satisfactory to it as to the identity of the persons lodging the Provisional Allotment
Letter within a reasonable period of time of Lloyds TSB Registrars having requested such information.
The Company reserve the right to instruct Lloyds TSB Registrars to seek special clearance of cheques
and banker’s drafts to allow the Company to obtain value for remittances at the earliest opportunity.

4.2 Nil Paid Rights in CREST

If you hold your Nil Paid Rights in CREST and apply to take up all or part of your entitlement as agent
for one or more persons and you are not a UK or European Union regulated person or institution (e.g. a
bank or a broker), then, irrespective of the value of the application, Lloyds TSB Registrars is obliged to
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take reasonable measures to establish the identity of the person or persons on whose behalf you are
making the application. You must therefore contact Lloyds TSB Registrars before sending any MTM or
other instruction so that appropriate measures may be taken.

Submission of an MTM instruction which constitutes, or which may, on its settlement, constitute, a
valid acceptance as described above constitutes a warranty and undertaking by the applicant to provide
promptly to Lloyds TSB Registrars such information as may be specified by Lloyds TSB Registrars as
being required for the purposes of the Money Laundering Regulations. Pending the provision of
evidence satisfactory to Lloyds TSB Registrars as to identity, Lloyds TSB Registrars may in its
absolute discretion take, or omit to take, such action as it may determine to prevent or delay settlement
of the MTM instruction. If satisfactory evidence of identity has not been provided within a reasonable
time, then Lloyds TSB Registrars will not permit the MTM instruction concemned to proceed to
settlement but without prejudice to the right of the Company to take proceedings to recover any loss
suffered by it as a result of failure to provide satisfactory evidence.

s, Taxation
Information regarding taxation in respect of the Rights Issue is set out in Part 9 of this document.

Qualifying Shareholders who are in any doubt about their tax position or are subject to tax in a
jurisdiction other than the UK should consult their professional adviser.

6. Overseas Shareholders

6.1  General

(i)  The making or acceptance of the offer of New Ordinary Shares by way of rights pursuant to the
Rights Issue to or by persons who are resident in or are citizens of, or have a registered address
in countries other than the United Kingdom may be affected by the laws of the relevant
Jjurisdictions. Such persons should consult their professional advisers as to whether they require
any governmental or other consents or need to observe any other formalities to enable them to
take up their entitlements.

(ii)) New Ordinary Shares will be provisionally allotted to all Qualifying Shareholders, including
Qualifying Shareholders with a registered address in Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand,
South Africa or the Republic of Ireland.

(iil) Subject to certain exceptions, the Provisional Allotment Letters will not be sent to and Nil Paid
Rights will not be credited to; CREST accounts of Overseas Shareholders who are in, or who
Have registefed addresses in, Canada, Australia, Japan, New' Zealand, South Africa or the
Republic of Ireland or to their agent or intermediary except that Provisional Allotment Letters
may be sent to certain of these Overseas Shareholders if they can prove to the satisfaction of the
Company that such action would not result in a contravention of any applicable legal or
regulatory requirements in any such jurisdiction.

(iv)  Receipt of this document and/or a Provisional Allotment Letter or receiving a credit of Nil Paid
Rights to a stock account in CREST will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it
would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, this document and/or a
Provisional Allotment Letter either will not be sent or, will be deemed to have been sent for
information only, and should not be copied or redistributed. No person receiving this document
and/or a Provisional Allotment Letter and/or receiving a credit of Nil Paid Rights to a stock
account in CREST in any territory other than the United Kingdom may treat the same as
constituting an invitation or offer to them, nor should they in any event use such an Provisional
Allotment Letter or deal with Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights in CREST unless, in the
relevant territory, such an invitation or offer could lawfully be made to them and such
Provisional Allotment Letter or Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights in CREST could lawfully
be used without contravention of any unfulfilled registration or other legal requirements. This
document is being sent to such persons for information.

(v)  Any person (including, without limitation, nominees and trustees) outside the United Kingdom
wishing to apply for New Ordinary Shares must satisfy themselves as to full observance of the
laws of any relevant territory in connection therewith, including obtaining any requisite
governmental or other consents, observing any other requisite formalities and paying any issue,
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transfer or other taxes due in such territory. Any Ordinary Shareholder who is in any doubt as to
their position should consult their professional adviser.

(vi) Persons receiving a Provisional Allotment Letter or whose stock account in CREST is credited
with Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights should not, in connection with the Rights Issue,
distribute or send the same in or into, or transfer Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights to any
person in or into any jurisdiction where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws
or regulations. If a Provisional Allotment Letter is received by any person in any such
jurisdiction or by the agent or nominee of such a person, they must not take up the entitlement
referred to in such Provisional Allotment Letter or in this document except pursuant to an
express agreement with the Company. Any person who does forward a Provisional Allotment
Letter in or into any such jurisdiction (whether pursuant to a contractual or legal obligation or
otherwise) should draw the attention of the recipient to the contents of this paragraph.

(vii) Subject to paragraph 6.2 below, any person (including, without limitation, agents, nominees and
trustees) outside the United Kingdom wishing to take up their rights under the Rights Issue must
satisfy themselves as to full observance of the applicable laws of any relevant territory including
obtaining any requisite formalities and paying any issue, transfer or other taxes due in such
territories. The comments set out in this section are intended as a general guide only and any
Qualifying Shareholder who is in any doubt as to their position should consult their professional
adviser without delay.

(viii) In cases where Overseas Shareholders do not or are unable to take up their rights under the
Rights Issue or where Provisional Allotment Letters are treated as having been declined or
invalid, the provisions relating to fractional entitlements set out in this Part 1 will apply. Subject
to prior agreement with the Company, the Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any
acceptance or purported acceptance of the offer of New Ordinary Shares which appears to the
Company or its agents to have been executed, effected or despatched in a manner which may
involve a breach of the legislation or regulations of any jurisdiction or if, in the case of a PAL, it
provides for an address for delivery of the share certificates in or, in the case of a credit of New
Ordinary Shares in CREST, the CREST member or CREST sponsored member whose
registered address would be in any other jurisdiction outside the UK in which it would be
unlawful to deliver such share certificates or, if it believes or its agents believe that the same may
violate applicable legal or regulatory requirements or that it does not meet the warranty set out
in the Provisional Allotment Letter. The attention of Qualifying Shareholders with registered
addresses in the United States or holding Shares on behalf of persons with such addresses is
drawn to the section entitled “Notice to US, Investors,’.on,page. 3 of this document.

(ix) Notwithstanding any other provision of this docunieiit or the Provisional Allotment Letter, the™
Company reserves the right to permit any Qualifying Shareholder to apply for their entitlement
to New Ordinary Shares if the Company in its sole and absolute discretion is satisfied that the
transaction in question is exempt from or not subject to the legislation or regulations giving rise
to the restrictions in question or would not result in the contravention of any applicable legal or
regulatory requirements.

{x)  Overseas Shareholders who wish and are permitted to take up their entitlements should note that
payments must be made in pounds sterling as described in section 2.2.1 (Qualifying Non-
CREST Shareholders) and 2.2.2 (Qualifying CREST Shareholders) of this Part 1.

6.2  United States, Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa and the Republic of
Ireland

Copies of this document may be sent to Qualifying Shareholders resident in Canada, Australia, Japan,
New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland for information purposes only. The Provisional
Allotment Letter, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the New Ordinary Shares have not
been and will not be registered under the Securities Act 1933 of the United States or other applicable
state law. The New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the Provisional
Allotment Letters will be issued pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act provided by Rule 801 thereunder. The relevant clearances have not been and will not be
obtained from the securities commission of any province of Canada and no prospectus has been or will
be lodged with, or registered by, the Australian Securities Commission. Accordingly, subject to certain
limited exceptions, the Provisional Allotment Letter, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the
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New Ordinary Shares may not be offered, sold, taken up, resold, renounced, exercised, transferred or

delivered, directly or indirectly, in or into Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or the
Republic of Ireland.

Until 40 days after the commencement of the Rights Issue, an offer, sale or transfer of the New
Ordinary Shares, Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights within the United States by a dealer (whether or

not participating in the Rights Issue) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act
1933,

Accordingly, the offer by way of rights is not being made in Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand,
South Africa or Republic of Ireland, and neither the Circular, this document nor the Provisional
Allotment Letter constitutes an offer, or an invitation to apply for, or an offer or invitation to acquire
any New Ordinary Shares, Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights in Canada, Australia, Japan, New
Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland. Subject to certain limited exceptions, Provisional
Allotment Letters will not be sent to, and Nil Paid Rights will not be credited to CREST accounts of,

any Qualifying Shareholder with a registered address in Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South
Africa or Republic of Ireland.

Subject to certain limited exceptions, envelopes containing Provisional Allotment Letters should not be
postmarked in Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland or
otherwise despatched from Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of
Ireland, and all persons acquiring New Ordinary Shares and wishing to hold such shares in registered
form must provide an address for registration of the New Ordinary Shares issued upon exercise thereof
outside Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland.

Subject to certain limited exceptions, any person who acquires New Ordinary Shares, Nil Paid Rights
or Fully Paid Rights will be deemed to have declared, warranted and agreed, by accepting delivery of
this document or the Provisional Allotment Letter and delivery of the New Ordinary Shares, Nil Paid
Rights or. Fully Paid Rights, that such person is not, and that at the time of acquiring the New Ordinary
Shares, Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid Rights it will not be, in Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand,
South Africa or Republic of Ireland.

The Company reserves its right to treat as invalid any Provisional Allotment Letter which appears to
the Company, or their agents to have been executed in, or despatched from, Canada, Australia, Japan,
New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland or in a manner which may involve a breach of the
legislation of any jurisdiction or which does not provide a representation and warranty that the person’
taking up his entitlements or accepting or renouncing the PAL (i) is not a North American person or a
T resident of Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland;and isnot acting with a .

A e oo o7 view to offering, selling, reselling, transferring, distributing or delivering any of such NIL Paid Rights,’
Fully Paid Rights or New Ordinary Shares, directly or indirectly, in or into Canada, Australia, Japan,
New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland or to or for the account or benefit of any North
American person or resident of Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland and
(ii) is not in any other territory in which it is unlawful to make or accept an offer to subscribe for the
New Ordinary Shares or use the Provisional Allotment Letter, and the Company shall not be bound to
allot (on a non-provisional basis) or issue any New Ordinary Shares, Nil Paid Rights or Fully Paid
Rights in respect of any such PALs. In addition the Company and JPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove
reserve the right to reject any MTM Instruction sent by or on behalf of any CREST member with a
registered address in Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland in
respect of Nil Paid Rights.

For the purpose of this Part 1 and the Provisional Allotment Letter: (i) “North American
Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, trust or other entity resident in Canada
or receiving the offer by way of rights in Canada, and (ii) “Australia” means the Commonwealth
of Australia, its territories and possessions, and “resident of Australia” includes corporations
and other entities organised under the laws of Australia (but not including a permanent
establishment of such corporation or entity located outside of Australia).

6.3  Representations and warranties relating to Overseas Shareholders
1) Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders

Any person accepting and/or renouncing a Provisional Allotment Letter or requesting registration of
the New Ordinary Shares comprised therein represents and warrants to the Company and JPMorgan
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and JPMorgan Cazenove that, except where proof has been provided to the Company’s satisfaction that
such person’s use of the Provisional Allotment Letter will not result in the contravention of any
applicable legal requirements in any jurisdiction, (a) such person is not accepting and/or renouncing the
Provisional Allotment Letter, or requesting registration of the relevant New Ordinary Shares, from
within Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or Republic of Ireland, (b) such person is
not in any territory in which it is unlawful to make or accept an offer to acquire New Ordinary Shares
or to use the Provisional Allotment Letter in any manner in which such person has used or will use it,
(c) such person is not acting on a non-discretionary basis for a person located within any territory
referred to in paragraph 6.2 above at the time the instruction to accept or renounce was given, and
(d) such person is not acquiring New Ordinary Shares with a view to offer, sale, resale, transfer,
delivery or distribution, directly or indirectly, of any such New Ordinary Shares into any territory
referred to in paragraph 6.2 above. The Company may treat as invalid any acceptance or purported
acceptance of the allotment of New Ordinary Shares comprised in, or renunciation or purported
renunciation of, a Provisional Allotment Letter if it (a) appears to the Company to have been executed
in or despatched from any territory referred to in paragraph 6.2 above or otherwise in a manner which
may involve a breach of the laws of any jurisdiction or if it believes the same may violate any
applicable legal or regulatory requirement, (b) provides an address in any territory referred to in
paragraph 6.2 above for delivery of definitive share certificates for New Ordinary Shares (or any
jurisdiction outside the UK in which it would be unlawful to deliver such certificates), or (c) purports to
exclude the warranty required by this section.

(i)  Qualifying CREST Shareholders

A CREST member or CREST sponsored member who makes a valid acceptance in accordance with
the procedures set out in paragraph 2.2.2 of this Part 1 represents and warrants to the Company and
TPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove that, except where proof has been provided to the Company’s
satisfaction that such person’s acceptance will not result in the contravention of any applicable legal
requirement in any jurisdiction, (a) they are not within any territory referred to in paragraph 6.2 above,
(b) they are not in any territory in which it is unlawful to make or accept an offer to acquire New
Ordinary Shares (c) they are not accepting on a non-discretionary basis for a person located within any
territory referred to in paragraph 6.2 above at the time the instruction to accept was given, and (d) they
are not acquiring New Ordinary Shares with a view to the offer, sale, transfer, delivery or distribution,
directly or indirectly, of any such New Ordinary Shares into any territory referred to in paragraph 6.2
above.
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PART 2
SUMMARY OF THE TERMS OF THE ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

1. Date and Parties

The Acquisition Agreement is dated 7 July 2005 and is between (1) Deutsche Asset Management and
(2) Aberdeen.

2. Acquisition and Purchase Price

Aberdeen will pay Deutsche Asset Management up to £200 million in cash on the Closing Date in
respect of the London Fixed Income Business, the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and the OEIC
Business. A further deferred payment in respect of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business of between nil
and £45 million will be made on 31 March 2006'". The total adjusted consideration is not expected to
exceed £245 million plus payment on a pound for pound basis for any excess of the net asset value of
the Target Businesses at the Closing Date over £35 million. The net asset value of the Target
Businesses at the Closing Date is expected to be between £35 million and £60 million. Therefore, the
consideration is expected to be no greater than £270 million, on the basis that the net asset value of the
Target Businesses at the Closing Date is no more than £60 million. The final amount payable by
Aberdeen will depend, in part, on the final run-rate management fees of the Target Businesses
compared with certain target run-rate management fees. The minimum amount payable for the Target
Businesses will be £111.5 million, including the net asset value payment.

3. Conditions and Closing

The Acquisition Agreement is conditional upon (inter alia) the satisfaction of the following conditions:
(i)  approval by the Deutsche Bank supervisory board (such approval having now been granted);
(ii)  the parties obtaining all necessary regulatory and competition consents;

(iii) the approval of Shareholders at the EGM,;

(iv) the aggregate run-rate management fees of the London Fixed Income Business and the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts being not less than £26.6 million as at the Closing Date;
and

(v)  certain conditions of the Underwriting Agreement being fulfilled.

In the event of conditions (iii) or:(v) not being satisfied, Aberdeen has agreed to pay Deutsche Asset
Management.a break-fee-of £2.9-million (including VAT if applicable).

The Acquisition is expected to close on or about 30 September 2005 subject to all the relevant
conditions being satisfied. In the case of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts, however, this may
be postponed until 30 November 2005 or later to enable relevant client consents to be obtained.

4. Warranties and Indemnities

Deutsche Asset Management has given to Aberdeen a tax covenant and various warranties,
representations and indemnities customary for this type of transaction. The liability of Deutsche Asset
Management pursuant to the warranties and the tax covenant is limited to the lesser of £245 million
and the adjusted consideration payable. Claims in respect of ordinary matters must be made within
18 months and in respect of taxation within 7 years of the Closing Date. Deutsche Asset Management
has also agreed to indemnify Aberdeen against any liabilities incurred by the Aberdeen Group or the
relevant Target Companies under any claims made in respect of certain specified litigation.

S. Key principles for Transitional Services Agreement

Under the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, Aberdeen has agreed with Deutsche Asset Management
the key principles which will be contained in the transitional services agreement (“TSA”), to be

entered into between the parties at or prior to the Closing Date including inter alia the following key
terms:-

(1) As set out in the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information on page 67 of this document, the Company's prudent estimate of the
deferred payment in respect of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business is £38.9 million.
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5.1  Separation — the terms on which the parties will co-operate in the implementation of certain
pre-Closing separation projects (as set out in the Acquisition Agreement) and associated
migration plans, including the allocation of responsibilities between the parties and estimates of
resources required. In addition, the parties will agree to adopt a governance model to monitor
and co-ordinate such implementation.

5.2 Deutsche Services — the services which Deutsche Asset Management is to provide Aberdeen
from Closing (using all reasonable endeavours to provide such services to the same standard as
they were supplied to the Target Businesses immediately before Closing) for a period of not
longer than 18 months from the Closing Date.

5.3 Reverse Services — certain reverse services Aberdeen is to provide Deutsche Asset Management
from Closing for a period of not longer than 18 months from the Closing Date.

5.4  Third Party Qutsourcer — acknowledgement of Aberdeen’s intention to outsource to its
preferred third party service provider certain office functions required by the Target Businesses,
together with associated IT services.

5.5 Changes to Systems or Services — provisions (save for certain exceptions) that a service
provider under the TSA will not be obliged to change operational aspects of the services
provided, or replace or update systems.

5.6  Information Technology Risk Management — Aberdeen will agree to comply with Deutsche
Asset Management's standard IT risk management policies and procedures and the parties will

take all reasonable steps to prevent unauthorised access or interference with the other’s IT
systems.

5.7  Dependencies — identification of any dependencies that a service provider has on a service
recipient.

5.8  Third Party Contracts —the TSA will contain provisions for (a) assisting in obtaining the
relevant consent; (b) not knowingly causing the service provider to breach its obligations to the
third party; and (c) if either the third party’s consent is withheld, or the contract is terminated for
reasons beyond the reasonable control of the service provider, then the parties will identify
alternative means of continuing the provision of the affected service.

5.9  Provisions to be agreed — the TSA will also make provision inter alia in relation to a number of
further areas of the Target Busmesses ta be agreed between the parties which include, licences
of intellectual property rights; change management procedure "and limitations of liability.

6. Other Provisions

The Acquisition Agreement also contains provisions concerning appropriate indemnities (including in
relation to retirement benefits liabilities), the repayment of intra-group debt, the release of third party
guarantees, responsibility of payment of certain employee incentives and the prohibition of on-sale of
the Target Businesses by Aberdeen for a period of two years from the Closing Date.
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PART 3
DESCRIPTION OF THE ABERDEEN GROUP

History and development of the Company

The Aberdeen Group is an independent international asset management group managing assets around
the world for both institutional and retail clients, including: some 51 open-ended funds domiciled in
the UK, Luxembourg and Dublin and marketed selectively in a number of countries worldwide,
14 open-ended funds domiciled in Singapore and marketed locally, 27 closed-end funds listed in the
UK and Jersey (of which 13 are conventional investment trusts), 7 closed-end funds listed in the US
and Canada, segregated accounts marketed on behalf of a variety of institutions worldwide, several
substantial funds managed on behalf of life companies, a private client business, a substantial private
equity business and an institutional property asset management business.

The Aberdeen Group, which has over 700 employees worldwide, is headquartered in Aberdeen and has
its main investment offices in London, Edinburgh, Glasgow, Singapore, Bangkok and Sydney. It
operates from 20 offices worldwide including offices in 9 towns and cities in the UK, together with
offices in Europe, North America, Asia and Australia. As at 31 May 2005, total assets under
management amounted to approximately £25.9 billion.

The turnover of the Aberdeen Group by category of activity and geographic market for each of the last
three financial years ending 30 September 2004 is as follows:

UK Rest of Europe Rest of World Total

(£ *000) (£ *000) (£ "000) (£ "000)
Year to 30 September 2002
Fund Management Division .............. 113,378 8,174 19,925 141,477
Property Division. ....................., 19,332 31,269 0 50,601
Group Total ........... ...t 132,710 39,443 19,925 192,078
Year to 30 September 2003
Fund Management Division .............. 73,853 5,079 11,141 90,073
Property Division. ...................... 15,592 36,603 0 52,195

Group Total ........ ... .. ... ...t 89,445 41,682 11,141 142,268
Year to 30 September 2004 ’

Sy

@ 91,659 -

Property Division. .. .................... 8,968 39,384 0 48,352
Group Total ... oveeeeeeeein, 75,451 45641 18,919 140,011

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC was formed in 1983, as Aberdeen Fund Managers Limited, to take
over the investment business of an Aberdeen-based firm of solicitors providing fund management and
secretarial services to a quoted investment trust and to a small number of institutions and private
clients. Martin Gilbert, the Company’s chief executive was a founding shareholder. The Company -
continued to grow organically and by acquisition through the 1980’s and by the end of the 1989
financial year had £420 million in funds under management. In 1991 the Company obtained its listing
on the London Stock Exchange under the name of Aberdeen Trust PLC. A secondary listing was
subsequently obtained on the Singapore Stock Exchange in 1997 (now Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited), the same year as the Company announced the acquisition of Prolific Financial
Management which added a further £8 billion of funds to increase total funds under management to
£11.7 billion. The Company also changed its name to Aberdeen Asset Management PLC in 1997.

In 2000, a number of key strategic acquisitions were announced, including Murray Johnstone in the
UK and EquitiLink in Australia which added a further £5 billion of funds. The Company also entered
the market for property fund management in 2000 and as at 30 June 2005 retained some £5 billion in
funds under management in this area through its Swedish headquartered subsidiary Aberdeen Property
Investors AB. In 2003, the Company acquired Edinburgh Fund Managers Group adding a further
£2.1 billion of funds under management. The Company has continued to grow organically and the 2004
financial year saw £2.0 billion of net new business being added.
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Current Business and Prospects
Corporate Strategy

The Aberdeen Group’s corporate strategy is to be recognised as an active manager of equities and fixed
interest securities, delivering consistent performance and adopting a differentiated investment process
that is the choice of investors in both mainstream asset categories and in the specialist niche funds in
which the Aberdeen Group has expertise.

The Board firmly believes in providing high quality client service based on remaining an independent
fund manager focused on delivering the needs of the investor. In addition the Aberdeen Group has
sought to grow and diversify its recurring revenue streams across a range of asset classes whilst
leveraging of the Group’s efficient cost base and operating model.

Financial Information

The accounts of the Aberdeen Group for the three years ended 30 September 2002, 30 September 2003
and 30 September 2004 have been independently audited by KPMG Audit Plc in accordance with
Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board and were reported on without qualification.
The business address of KPMG Audit Plc is 37 Albyn Place, Aberdeen AB10 1JB.

Operating and Financial Review

The Group has faced exceptionally challenging conditions over the last few years, both in the markets
and as a consequence of the FSA investigation into split capital funds. However, the settlement of this
investigation and the high level of acceptances received from investors entitled to participate in the
Uplift Plan enables the Group to crystallise the extent of its liability in relation to the Splits Sector.
Financing of the settlement is now in place following the recent convertible bond issue of the
2010 Bonds and the agreement of a new bank facility.

The Board believes considerable progress has been made since then. The Group recognises that the
ability to deliver consistent investment performance is essential for any asset management business,
and has strengthened its competitive position in the first half of the financial year ending 30 September
2005 due to improved investment performance and buoyant levels of new business generation.

Aberdeen’s balance sheet is benefiting from the delivery of promised cost reductions and the phased
= - ... pay-down of debt via non-core asset sales. The Aberdeen Board is thus confident that the Group is well S
vvot o ir, pOSitioned to return to a pattern of sustamed profitable growth and this is reflected in interim results to ., o
31 March 2005 which disclosed a pre-tax profit of £10.4 million, an 89 per cent. increase on the same
period in 2004. This improvement has continued into the second half of the year and the Group should
continue to benefit from increasing revenues arising from new business flows. Having achieved the
settlement of the split capital issues and having strengthened the balance sheet, the Aberdeen Board
intends to continue to review all appropriate opportunities for profitable growth and is confident that
the Group can deliver improving returns to Shareholders.

The Group’s gross new business for the six months to 31 March 20085, including mandates awarded but
not yet funded, totalled approximately £2.9 billion. The Group’s net new business for the same period,
including mandates awarded but not yet funded, totalled approximately £2.0 billion.

Assets under management of the Aberdeen Group increased by £3.3 billion to £25.4 billion as at
31 March 2005, an increase of 15.0 per cent. on its assets under management as at 30 September 2004.
This increase comprises net new business of £1.5 billion, assets added from corporate acquisitions and
disposals (on a net basis) of £1.2 billion and market movements of £0.6 billion. The assets under
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management of the Aberdeen Group by asset class as at its last year end and as at 31 March 2005 were
as set out below:

As at As at
30 September 31 March

2004 2005
(£ million) (£ million)

Asset Class

BguItieS . . oo e 13,781 14,736
Fixed interest and cash .. .... oo e e 4,405 5,406
PropeIty . oo 3,912 5,270
Total . .. e e 22,098 25,412

Further details of the Aberdeen Group audited accounts for the period to 30 September 2004 and the
unaudited interim period to 31 March 2005 are set out in Part 5 of this document.

Further detail on the financial condition and operating results of the Aberdeen Group can be found in
the Published Annual Report and Accounts for the years ended 30 September 2002, 2003 and 2004 and
Interim Report and Accounts for the six months ended 31 March 2005, which are incorporated by
reference into this document.

Information on the operating results of the Aberdeen Group for the years ended 30 September 2002,
2003 and 2004 can found in the Chief Executive’s Review on pages 9 to 15 of the Annual Report and
Accounts 2002, pages 5 to 9 of the Annual Report and Accounts 2003, and pages 5 to 8 of the Annual
Report and Accounts 2004 respectively.

Information on the financial condition of the Aberdeen Group for the years ended 30 September 2002,
2003 and 2004 can found in the Financial Review on pages 22 to 23 of the Annual Report and
Accounts 2002, pages 16 to 18 of the Annual Report and Accounts 2003, and pages 14 to 18 of the
Annual Report and Accounts 2004 respectively.

Information on the operating results and financial condition of the Aberdeen Group for the first six
months ended 31 March 2005 can found in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 2 to 3 of the Interim
Report and Accounts 2005.

Trend Information

Looking forwa_rd',i the prospiéct's for the Enlarged Aberdeen Group for- the second half of the financial
year remain encouraging with no significant let up in demand for products and a widening client base,

In respect of Aberdeen’s existing fund management operations, inflows to open-ended funds may be
offset to a degree by some profit taking if Asian markets continue to rise, but the incidence of this to
date has been relatively limited despite very significant market rises. Aberdeen continues to be invited
to tender for further institutional mandates and whilst it is hopeful of success, future flows of this
nature are difficult to predict given the individual characteristics of specific mandate tenders.

The Target Businesses continue to see net outflows of assets under management other than in the
London Fixed Income Business and this, to an extent, reflects the uncertainty over the past year
regarding the future ownership of the Target Businesses, past poor investment performance in the
Equities/Multi-Asset Business and the continued preference among clients and consultants for
specialist managers, rather than balanced mandates, where the Multi-Asset Business has been a major
player. The structure of the Acquisition with deferred consideration based on the level of retained
assets, has been designed to reflect the flows that the Equities/Multi-Asset Business has been
experiencing. The performance of the fixed income and OEIC businesses remains satisfactory.

On completion of the Acquisition, the integration of the Target Businesses will commence. The
Company expects that following the integration of the Target Business (expected within one year of
completion), the operating margin achieved by these businesses as part of the Enlarged Aberdeen
Group will be in line with the Company’s current fund management operating margin.

In light of the strong new business flows in Aberdeen’s existing fund management operations and the
expected completion of the Acquisition early in the coming financial year, the Company expects to see
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improving revenues for the coming year. The Group’s focus on cost efficiencies should help ensure that
the Group’s operating margin continues to improve.

Assets under management at 31 May 2005 totalled £25.9 billion. Taking account of mandates awarded,
but not yet funded would increase assets under management as of the same date to £26.6 billion.

Capital resources

Information on the Group’s cash inflows and outflows during the financial years ended 30 September
2002, 2003 and 2004 can be found within the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts for those years on
page 36 in 2002, page 34 in 2003 and page 36 in 2004 and is incorporated by reference herein.

On 10 March 2005 the Group issued £26.57 million 4.50 per cent. convertible bonds 2010. The net
proceeds from this issue were approximately £25.6 million and were used to repay borrowings from
Bank of Scotland under the Group’s working capital facility arrangements at that point in time and to
partially prepay a Bank of Scotland term loan.

As at 31 March 2005, the Group had available a number of facilities with Bank of Scotland which were
utilised in the management of its working capital requirements including a £15.0 million overdraft
facility, which by its nature, is subject to considerable fluctuation of amounts actually drawn and is
repayable on demand. In addition to this facility, the Group had a term loan facility outstanding of
£55,125,000. This term loan was replaced on 13 June 2005 with a revolving loan facility with a limit of
£65,125,000, committed to 16 December 2006. The amount drawn under this facility at 30 June 2005
was £62,625,000. The Bank has subsequently agreed to provide an additional revolving loan facility of
up to £45,000,000, committed to 31 July 2008. Additionally it has agreed to extend the term of the
existing revolving loan facility to 31 July 2007.

On 30 June 2005, Aberdeen (together with Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited) issued £80.0 million
Convertible Preference Share Units (each comprising one Preference Share and one Warrant). The net
proceeds from this issue were used to repurchase £75.0 million of the outstanding 2007 Bonds and pay
accrued interest on the 2007 Bonds up to their repurchase date.

Capitalisation and Indebtedness

At 31 March 2005, the Group’s consolidated net shareholders’ funds were £131.0 million. After adding

_back the deficit on the profit and loss reserve of £116.2 million, total shareholders equity excluding the
. profit and loss account reserve amounted to; £247.1 million. The Company’s. unconsolidated balance

sheet at 31 March 2005 showed net assets of £129.9 million.

The following table sets out the gross indebtedness (calculated in accordance with UK GAAP) of the
Group at 30 June 2005 (extracted from the Group’s unaudited accounting records) and the
capitalisation of the Group at 31 March 2005 (extracted from the Group’s underlying accounting
records which form the basis of the Group’s unaudited Interim Report and Accounts 2005):

£ million
Current debt:
— GUArANtEed . . . 0.6
— Unguaranteed/unsecured . ... ... e e e e —
Total current debt. . .. ... .. e e 0.6
Non-current debt
— GUATANTEEA . . . oot e e e 0.9
— Unguaranteed/unsecured . ... ... .ottt e e e 114.2
Total non-current debt . . ... ... . e 115.1
Total gross indebtedness . .......... ... ... .. . i e 115.7
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£ million
Shareholders equity (excluding the profit and loss account reserve which is in

deficit):

Called-up share capital . . ... ... . i e e 23.6
Share Premitm .. ... ... e e 19.7
OtREr TESEIVES « . ot ittt ittt et e e et e e e e et e 203.8
Total shareholders’ equity (excluding the profit and loss account reserve which is in

deficht) . ... e e e 247.1

The principal movements in capitalisation since 31 March 2005 relate to the issue of £80 million
Convertible Preference Share Units. This resulted in an increase in issued share capital of £8 million,
an increase in share premium of £52 million (after offsetting expenses of the issue) and an increase in
other reserves of £16 million. The net proceeds from this issue were used to repurchase £75 million of
the outstanding 2007 Bonds and pay accrued interest on the 2007 Bonds up to their repurchase date.

The following table sets out the net financial indebtedness (calculated in accordance with UK GAAP)
of the Group at 30 June 2005 (extracted from the Group’s unaudited accounting records):

£ million
107 1] o O 12.1
Liquidity . . ... e e 12.1
Other current financial debt .. ... .. i e e (0.6)
Current financial debt ... .. ... ... .. . (0.6)
Net current financial indebtedness . ............. ... ... ... .. . . . i i 11.5
Non-current bank loans. . ... ..ottt (62.6)
Bonds issued (gross of associated issue COStS) .. .. .vi it e (51.6)
Other non-current 10ans . ... ... it i i e 0.9
Non-current financial indebtedness ............ ... ... .. .. .. .. .. . .. (115.1)
Net financial indebtedness ........... ... .. i i (103.6)

Contingent and Indirect Indebtedness

The disclosures below cover the contingent and indirect indebtedness of the Group and include the
settlement reached in December 2004 covering the marketing and management of split capital funds.
On 24 December 2004, Aberdeen announced that the near three-year-long investigation into the
marketing and management of split capital funds had been concluded with an omnibus settlement
" between the majority of the firms involved in the sector, the FSA, the Jersey*Financial Servicgs
Commission and the Guernsey Financial Services Commission. The terms of the settlement entail no
admission of liability and effectively conclude the Group’s exposure to the regulators in respect of
these matters. Aberdeen contributed £35 million to a central fund. This fund will be used to provide a
cash distribution for retail investors in the zero dividend preference shares issued by split capital
investment companies. In total, approximately £143 million was committed to the central fund by
18 companies involved in the sector, including Aberdeen’s own contribution supported by a payment
made by Aberdeen’s insurers in full and final settlement of any liability those insurers might have
under the relevant insurance policies. Aberdeen issued an Uplift Plan for investors in Progressive (a
retail unit trust which, since its launch in August 2000, has invested primarily in zero dividend
preference shares of listed multi-class closed end collective investment vehicles) at an estimated cost of
£43.3 million. In the two years to 30 September 2004, the Group incurred legal and other external costs
of over £7 million in relation to these issues.

The Uplift Plan was offered to all investors who held units in Progressive which were issued by the
managers on or before 28 June 2002 and gave those investors the opportunity to receive the initial cost
of their investment on the redemption of their holdings on or around the fifth anniversary of their
investment. Eligible Investors (as defined in the Uplift Plan) who previously sold their holdings were
also offered payments at a discounted rate.

Eligible Investors who accepted the offer of participation in the Uplift Plan have done so on condition
that they relinquish their rights to take any other action in relation to their holding in Progressive.

Eligible Investors who have chosen not to participate in the Uplift Plan may pursue a complaint
via FOS. :
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Acceptance by an investor of the Uplift Plan enabled Aberdeen to crystallise the extent of its liability to
that investor. By the time that the Uplift Plan closed to further acceptances on 3 June 2005 acceptances
had been received from Eligible Investors representing some 94.4 per cent. by value of those entitled to
participate.

Aberdeen announced on 26 February 2004 that it had received details from a FOS adjudicator of a
provisional assessment in respect of a case being examined by FOS in relation to a complaint brought
by one investor in Progressive. There have been further similar provisional assessments. The
provisional assessments, which are not binding on either party, set out the FOS adjudicator’s view on
these complaints. The provisional assessments proposed that the dispute between Aberdeen Unit Trust
Managers Limited and the complainants be resolved by the payment of compensation to the
complainants. After careful consideration of the provisional assessments, the Aberdeen Board believed
the provisional assessments did not reflect the weight of evidence which Aberdeen had supplied to
substantiate its position. Whilst remaining sensitive to the distress suffered by investors in Progressive
and wishing to provide support to them on a voluntary basis, the Aberdeen Board could not agree with
the FOS adjudicator’s opinion. Aberdeen is therefore exercising its right to have the cases referred to
an Ombudsman for determination. Aberdeen, on the basis of robust legal advice, will vigorously
contest any cases on which FOS may issue adverse findings.

Were FOS ultimately to make a final decision against the Aberdeen Group, any compensation would
have to take into account the circumstances of individual cases. In this regard, given the advice of
Aberdeen’s solicitors and the lack of information as to both the number and quantum of cases which
will be subject to any determination by FOS, the Aberdeen Board considers it impossible to make any

* reasonable estimate of any potential liability of the Aberdeen Group over and above the cost of the
Uplift Plan.

On 28 June 2005, proceedings were issued against Aberdeen and Aberdeen Asset Managers Jersey
Limited (together the “Aberdeen Parties”) and a non-Aberdeen party, in the High Court in London
by Real Estate Opportunities Limited. In 2003, the board of REO announced, with respect to the
Aberdeen Parties, that REO had terminated its management contract with immediate effect and
indicated that it held the Aberdeen Parties liable for damages in respect of losses incurred on REQ’s
income portfolio. The Aberdeen Parties do not accept the validity of REO’s termination without notice.
The Aberdeen Parties believe that the claim is without merit. The Aberdeen Parties will vigorously
defend the proceedings and counterclaim for their accrued fees and the fees relating to the 12 months’
notice period provided for in the management contract. It is not possible to quantify any exposure to
damages with respect to these proceedings.

.« ”Tn Apml 2004, the hquldator of the spema] purpose vehicle of Aberdeen Preferred Income Trust>
" "Iimited wrote to Aberdeen indicating that it was considering a claim. However, no further detail has ©
been forthcoming.

The speculation that legal proceedings may be brought against a range of parties who have been
involved in the Splits Sector continues. Other than as stated above, no notice of any legal proceedings
related to the Aberdeen Group’s involvement in the Splits Sector has been served against any member
of the Aberdeen Group and any such proceedings would be defended robustly.

Aberdeen Group Overview by division

Open ended funds

The Aberdeen Group has funds domiciled in Luxembourg and Dublin which are distributed
internationally and which are collectively registered for sale in 17 countries. In addition, the Group has
funds domiciled in the UK, Singapore, Austria and Australia which are distributed primarily in the
relevant domestic funds markets. Marketing operations exist in UK, Luxembourg, Austria, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Australia and the U.S., focused primarily on those markets as well as Switzerland
and Chile. Distribution is typically through discretionary fund managers and fund-of-fund providers,
with additional distribution links to banking groups and other third party distributors. A number of
global distribution arrangements have also been secured.
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Institutional
(i)  Segregated Mandates and Pooled Funds

The Aberdeen Group operates in the institutional market primarily in the U.S., UK, Continental
Europe, Asia and Australia, with customer bases in each location.

(iiy Closed-End Funds

The Aberdeen Group has the investment management contracts for 34 closed-end funds domiciled in
the UK, the Channel Islands and North America, including funds listed on UK, US and Canadian stock
exchanges. In recent years, the Aberdeen Group has been involved in a number of fund raisings in the

closed-end market and provides marketing and promotional services to the boards of a number of these
funds.

Private client

The Aberdeen Group offers private client asset management facilities out of offices in Aberdeen,

Glasgow and Jersey. The Aberdeen Group managed approximately £415 million of private client assets
as at 28 February 2005.

Specialist

The Aberdeen Group has specialist fund management capability in both private equity and physical
property in the Nordic region. The former is managed in the form of segregated fund mandates, limited
partnerships and venture capital trusts in the UK, markets in which the Aberdeen Group is active. The
latter is also managed in the form of segregated fund mandates and collective investment vehicles.

Financial regulation

In addition to the UK Listing Authority and stock exchange requirements, respectively, in the
United Kingdom and Singapore to which Aberdeen is subject, a number of companies within the
Aberdeen Group are subject to specific regulations in the countries in which they operate. The principal
authorities whose regulations govern the conduct of such companies are set out below.

United Kingdom™ = ' = ¢ o~ Lo .
In the United Kingdom, t‘he'operating subsidiaries of Aberdeen are authorised and regulated in their
conduct of investment business by the Financial Services Authority.

Europe

In Europe, the operating subsidiaries of Aberdeen are regulated in their conduct of investment business
in Ireland by the Central Bank of Ireland, in Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du
Secteur Financier, in the Isle of Man by the Isle of Man Financial Supervision Commission and in the
Channel Islands by both the Jersey Financial Services Commission and the Guernsey Financial
Services Commission.

Asia Pacific

In the Asia Pacific region, the operating subsidiaries of Aberdeen are regulated in their conduct of
investment business in Singapore by the Monetary Authority of Singapore, in Australia by the
Australian Securities and Investment Commission and in Hong Kong by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission.

United States

In the United States, the operating subsidiaries of the Aberdeen Group are regulated in their conduct of
investment business by the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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PART 4
DESCRIPTION OF THE TARGET BUSINESSES

The Target Businesses comprise part of the former Morgan Grenfell Asset Management operations,
which were acquired by Deutsche Bank in 1989. As at 31 May 2005 the Target Businesses had assets

under management of £46.3 billion with annualised run-rate management fees at that date of
£119.3 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, under Deutsche Bank’s ownership, the Target Businesses
incurred losses before tax of £35.9 million. The Company expects to operate the Target Businesses
profitably from a much reduced cost base. As at 31 December 2004, the Target Businesses had gross

assets of £252.8 million, excluding unit-linked long-term life assurance assets held on the balance
sheet.

The Target Businesses comprise the London Fixed Income Business, the OEIC Business, a London-
based UK and Global Equities Business and a London-based Multi-Asset business. These businesses
operate within the following legal entities, collectively referred to as the Target Companies: Deutsche
Asset Management Life & Pensions Limited, Deutsche Asset Management Limited, DWS Investment
Funds Limited, DWS Funds Management Limited, Deutsche Asset Management (Ireland) Limited and
Deutsche Asset Management Investment Services Limited. The Target Businesses also comprise the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts. The Acquisition will be effected by the transfer of those legal
entities to Aberdeen (the Target Companies), the novation of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts
and Aberdeen taking on employees from Deutsche Asset Management, which collectively are referred
to as the Target Businesses.

The London Fixed Income Business and the business derived from the Philadelphia Fixed Income
Contracts enjoy a strong and long-standing relationship and have been jointly managing portfolios
since 1991. There has been a significant exchange of personnel between the two businesses in the past,
and it is the Company’s intention to continue to manage both as an integrated global fixed income
business reporting to Steve Ilott, who is currently Head of Fixed Income at the Target Businesses and
who will join the Company’s Executive Commitiee continuing as Head of Fixed Income. The
investment styles and products are complementary, and both businesses contribute strong domestic
products and global capabilities, in addition to the jointly-managed products. The two fixed income
businesses together bring a proven capability in UK, US, Euro, global and emerging market bonds
which will fit well with Aberdeen’s own specialisms in Asian, emerging market and European high
yield bonds. R

London Fixed Income Business

The London Fixed Income Business investment platform is established so as to generate investment
performance from credit risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. It has the capability to use derivatives
to generate performance and to manage portfolios according to liability-driven benchmarks. The
business follows a team-based investment culture.

As of 31 May 2005, the London Fixed Income Business managed £16.0 billion (31 December 2004:
£14.7 billion) of assets for more than 200 clients, generating £28.6 million in annualised management
fees. The London Fixed Income Business generated net business inflows of £2.0 billion in 2004 and
£0.6 billion in the first five months to 31 May 2005.

Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

The Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts relate to highly-regarded US investment grade fixed income
products, managed by a well-respected team with an established reputation in the US institutional
marketplace and a growing reputation in the US retail market, with a presence on many major
brokerage platforms. As part of the Acquisition, Aberdeen has made offers to employ members of this
tearn to manage the contracts after completion. These products have consistently generated top quartile
or better returns, with bottom quartile tracking error. The experienced senior management team leads
the disciplined investment process, which follows a distinctive bottom-up, low risk investment
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approach. The contracts are with approximately 200 clients, including the flagship Scudder Fixed
Income Fund which is rated “5-stars” by Morningstar, Inc.

As of 31 May 2005, the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts included £11.7 billion
(31 December 2004: £10.3 billion) of assets under management, generating £30.5 million in annualised
management fees. The Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts generated net business inflows of
£0.2 billion in 2004 and £0.2 billion in the first five months to 31 May 2005.

OEIC Business

The OEIC Business consists of 26 collective investment vehicles (“OEIC funds”) managing
£1.8 billion of assets under management as of 31 May 2005 (31 December 2004: £1.8 billion),
generating £16.5 million in annualised management fees. The OEIC funds are distributed principally
through independent financial advisers, private wealth management firms, and life insurance companies
and are largely managed by the investment professionals associated with the other Target Businesses.

The OEIC Business generated net business inflows of approximately £38 million in 2004, and outflows
of approximately £20 million in the first five months to 31 May 2005.

UK and Global Equities Business

The UK and Global Equities Business provides specialised investment management products, based on
fundamental research and a disciplined and rigorous investment process. Investment performance in
UK equities products weakened in the period from 2001, but has recently stabilised following changes
implemented in October 2004, with good performance in new “high alpha” products. The Global
Equities Business also has an excellent “high alpha” record.

As of 31 May 2005, the UK and Global Equities Business had £3.3 billion (31 December 2004:
£3.3 billion) in assets under management, generating £7.9 million in annualised management fees. In
light of the recent investment performance challenges faced by this business, which has led to
disappointing mandate and asset retention, the consideration to be paid by the Company for this
business will be deferred, and will be contingent on the value of run-rate management fees, aggregated
with those of the Multi-Asset Business, as at 30 June 2006.

_'Multi_-Asset Business

The Multi-Asset Business is constructed from investment management products generated by the
separate fixed income and equities businesses. This business has suffered from a sector-wide decline in

demand for balanced mandates, as well as weak equity performance affecting this product’s track
record.

As of 31 May 2005, the Multi-Asset Business had £13.5 billion (31 December 2004: £13.4 billion) in
assets under management, generating £35.8 million in annualised management fees. In light of the
sector-wide decline and recent investment performance challenges faced by this business, the
consideration to be paid by the Company for this business will be deferred, and will be contingent on
the value of run-rate management fees, aggregated with those of the UK and Global Equities Business,
as at 30 June 2006.

Integration

Fund managers and client-facing staff associated with the Target Businesses will transfer to the
Company. In addition, the Company intends to enter into outsourcing arrangements with BNPP SS
under which the Target Businesses’ back-office platform will be migrated to BNPP SS in accordance
with the Company’s stated outsourcing policy. The arrangements will be based on those already in
place under which BNPP SS supplies back-office services to the Company. BNPP SS’s charges for this
service will be variable, dependent on, inter alia, client numbers and the value of assets under
administration.
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The cost base of the Target Businesses has historically included a high level of central costs charged by
the Deutsche Bank group. On the relevant Closing Date, such charges will cease, leading to a reduction
in the cost base of the Target Businesses.

Employees of the Target Businesses who join the Company and who are based in London will move to
the Company’s existing premises at One Bow Churchyard. It is anticipated that all transferring
employees of the Target Businesses will join the Aberdeen pension scheme and the Company will not
be acquiring any responsibility for the Deutsche Asset Management pension schemes. Certain
transitional services will be provided to the Company by Deutsche Asset Management in relation to the
Target Businesses for a limited period of time. Cost savings are expected to result from the transfer of
staff from the Target Business to the Company or BNPP SS. Furthermore, it expected that there will be
cost savings from the removal of duplicated costs.

The Company intends that the process of integrating the Target Businesses into the Company’s existing
operations will commence on the relevant Closing Date, although planning for this process is already
well advanced. It is expected that the Target Businesses will be integrated within one year of
completion.

The Company expects that following the integration of the Target Businesses, the operating margin
achieved by these businesses as part of the Company will be in line with the Company’s current fund
management operating margin, and thereby contribute to an increase in the overall Aberdeen Group
operating margin.

The Target Businesses will operate under the Company’s brand from the Closing Date.
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PART 5
FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ABERDEEN GROUP

1. Statutory Accounts for the Three Financial Years Ended 30 September 2004

The financial statements for the Aberdeen Group included in the audited reports and accounts of
Aberdeen for the three years ended 30 September 2004 (as filed with the UK Listing Authority) are
incorporated by reference in this Part 5. Statutory accounts of Aberdeen for the three financial years
ended 30 September 2004 in respect of which KPMG Audit Plc issued unqualified reports under
section 235 of the Companies Act (and such reports did not refer to any maters of fundamental
uncertainty), have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in Scotland and such reports did not
contain any statements under sections 237(2) or (3) of the Companies Act. However, the report on the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2003 included the following
paragraphs on contingent liabilities (with a similar statement in the report on the financial statements
for the preceding year):

“In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 29 to
the financial statements concerning the contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of the split
capital closed-end fund sector generally, the Aberdeen Progressive Growth Unit Trust and any
possible action by Real Estate Opportunities Limited, and their potential impact on the Group’s
funding position. In view of the significance of these uncertainties, we consider that they should
be drawn to your attention but our opinion is not qualified in these respects.”

The report for the year ended 30 September 2004 included the following paragraph on funding
arrangements:

“In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 29 to
the financial statements in respect of the Group’s funding of the settlement agreed with the
Financial Services Authority and Uplift Plan available to eligible investors in the Aberdeen
Progressive Growth Unit Trust. In view of the significance of this matter, we consider that it
should be drawn to your attention but our opinion is not qualified in this respect.”

2, Published Annual Report and Accounts for Three Financial Years Ended 30 September
2004

Historical Financial Information

The following list is intended to enable investors to identify easily specific items of information which
are relevant to the Proposals and are incorporated by reference into this document. The page numbers
below refer to the relevant pages of the relevant Annual Report and Accounts:

Annual Report and Accounts for
Year Ended 30 September

2002 2003 2004
Nature of Information Page No(s) Page No(s) Page No(s)
Consolidated profit and loss account ....................ccoovunn.. 34 32 34
Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses ........... 34 32 34
Balance sheet ... ... ... e 35 33 35
Consolidated cash flow statement ............ N 36 34 36
Notes t0 the aCCOUMS. . v vttt 37-59 35-57 37-67
AUditor s TEPOTL . .ottt 31 29 31
Remuneration report . ........ooi i e e e 28-31 23-29 24-29
Corporate social responsibility statement . ............ ... ... ... ... 27 22 23
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3. Unaudited Interim Report for Six Months Ended 31 March 2005

Historical Financial Information

The Company has published an unaudited interim report for the six months ended 31 March 2005.
Such report included unaudited financial information (comprising a profit and loss account, a statement
of total recognised gains and losses, a balance sheet, a cash flow statement and notes to accounts for the
six months ended and as at, as appropriate, 31 March 2005 and comparative financial information for
the six months ended and as at, as appropriate, 31 March 2004) on pages 4 to 11 and an independent
review report on such financial information by KPMG Audit Plc on page 12.
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PART 6
FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE TARGET COMPANIES

1. Accountant’s Report

KPMG Audit Ple Tel. +44 (0) 1224 591000
Transaction Services Fax. +44 (0) 1224 550509
37 Albyn Place DX AB121 Aberdeen 1

Aberdeen AB10 1JB
United Kingdom

The Directors

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
10 Queen’s Terrace

Aberdeen AB10 1YG

12 August 2005

Dear Sirs

Aggregate position of Deutsche Asset Management Limited, Deutsche Asset Management
Investment Services Limited, Deutsche Asset Management Life & Pensions Limited, Deutsche
Asset Management (Ireland) Limited, Deutsche Asset Management (International) Limited,
DWS Funds Management Limited and DWS Investment Funds Limited (together ‘the Target
Companies’)

We report on the financial information set out on pages 47 to 59. This financial information has been
prepared for inclusion in the prospectus and, through incorporation by reference, a Class 1 circular
relating to the acquisition of certain fund management businesses and contracts dated 12 August 2005
of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC (“the Document™) on the basis of the accounting policies set out
in paragraph 6.1. This report is required by Paragraph 13.5.21R of the Listing Rules and is given for
the purpose of complying with that paragraph and for no other purpose.

Responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparing the financial information on the basis of
preparation set out in note 6.1 of the financial information and in accordance with UK accounting
standards. S

It is our responsibility to form an opinion on the financial information and to réport our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Standards of Investment Reporting issued by the
Auditing Practices Board in the United Kingdom. Our work included an assessment of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial information. It also included an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgments made by those responsible for the preparation of the financial
information and whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the entity’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our work so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial information is free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial information gives, for the purposes of the Document, a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Target Companies as at the dates stated and of its losses, cash flows and
recognised losses for the periods then ended in accordance with the basis of preparation set out in
note 6.1 and in accordance with UK accounting standards and has been prepared in a form that is

consistent with the accounting policies adopted in Aberdeen Asset Management PLC’s latest annual
accounts.
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Declaration

For the purposes of Prospectus Rule 5.5.3R(2)(f) we are responsible for this report as part of the
Document and declare that we have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information contained
in this report is, to the best of our knowledge and belief, in accordance with the facts and contains no
omissions likely to affect its import.

Yours faithfully

KPMG Audit Plc

2. Aggregated profit and loss accounts

Years ended 31 December

Notes 2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £2000
TUIMOVEL . . ...t i 6.2,6.3 149,123 150,630 144,948
Continuing operations . . ...............ccoovvi... 6.3 120,842 117,426 117,819
Discontinued Operations . ............ooounrennenn. 6.3 28,281 33,204 27,129
Costofsales .......cooviiiiniinein e, 6.3 (9,562) (9,437)  (14,956)
Grossprofit ........ ... .. ... . i 6.3 139,561 141,193 129,992
Administrative eXpenses ..., 6.3  (153,879) (149,189) (160,812)
Other operating inCome . ...........vvvvveeunnn. . 6.3 9,544 19,329 10,639
Operating profit/(loss). . ........... ... ... ..., 6.3 “4,774) 11,333 (20,181)
Continuing Operations. . ......oov it .., 6.3 (19,794)  (13,363)  (32,321)
Discontinued operations .............ccooviiian.. 6.3 15,020 24,696 12,140
Exceptional items ............ ... oo, 6.7 — — (8,349)
Interest receivable and similar income .............. 6.8 4,236 3,685 4,811
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation .. 6.4 (538) 15,018 (23,719)
Tax on loss/profit on ordinary activities ............. 6.9 35,572 (3,476) 6,747
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation . ... } 35,034 11,542 (16,972} AN THE
Dividends...............cou.nn e 6.10 (59,725)  (34,000) (8,000) -
Retained loss for financial year................... (24,691) (22,458) (24,972)

Turnover and operating profit in the above statement have been analysed between discontinued and
continuing operations. The discontinued operations relate to the parts of the Target Companies not
being acquired by Aberdeen, and which will be transferred to another company within Deutsche Bank
prior to completion of the transaction. No other operations were acquired or discontinued in the period.

Notes 6.1 to 6.24 form part of these accounts
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3. Aggregated net asset statement

Assets of long-term life assurance business. . ...

Current assets
StOCKS . . o

Cash at bank and in hand . ........ R
Deferred tax . ..o oot

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets ...........cooeeveivnnnnennn
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than

18] (T Y N
Provisions for liabilities and charges ..........
Liabilities of long term life assurance business. .

Net assets . ...ttt cae e

Reconciliation of movements in net assets

Balance at 1 January .............. .. ...
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders . ...
Dividends . ...

A
P o2,

48

Notes

6.16

6.11
6.12
6.13
6.14
6.15

6.17

6.18
6.19
6.16

Notes

As at 31 December

2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
4,707,391 5,045,783 4,000,711
11,133 3,539 677
118,711 107,995 106,753
23,122 35,466 29,660
126,411 112,071 112,232
6,714 3,456 3,448
286,091 262,527 252,770
(119,893) (119,002) (132,497)
166,198 143,525 120,273
(229) - —
(9,280) (9,280) (10,998)
(4,707,391)  (5,045,783) (4,000,711)
156,689 134,245 109,275
Years ended 31 December
2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
n/a 156,689 134,245
n/a 11,542 (16,972)
n/a (34,000) (8,000)
n/a 14 2
156,689 134,245 109,275
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4, Aggregated cash flow statements

Years ended 31 December

Notes 2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
Net cash inflows from operating activities
Core cash flow from operating activities ......... 6.22 (593) 16,351 2,508
Effects of short term timing differences on unit
trust settlements. . ......... .. .., (2,824) 8,385 (5,943)
(3,465) 24,736 (3,435)
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interestreceived. . ... ... i 4,236 3,685 4811
Taxation paid .................... ... ... ... (437) (49) (5,473)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of investments .. .................... (4,969) (12,344) 0
Sale of investments . ......covvinrnennenn.. — 7,299 9,290
(4,969) (5,045) 9,290
Equity dividends paid . ...................... (12,725) (47,000) (34,000)
Cash inflow before financing . ................ (17,360) (23,673) (28,807)
Financing
Capital contribution..................... ..., 12,570
Balances with other Deutsche Bank companies . . . 11,844 12,054 30,702
Increase/(decrease) in cashin year . ........... 7,054 (11,619) 1,895
Years ended 31 December
2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in
net debt
Increase/(decrease) in cash in year.............. 7,054 (11,619) 1,895
Repayment of subordinated debt ............... — 229 —
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows o : .
and movement in net debt in the year......... 7,054 (11,390) 1,895
Net funds at 1 January...................... 114,673 121,727 110,337
Net funds at 31 December ................... 121,727 110,337 112,232
5. Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Years ended 31 December
Notes 2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £7000
Loss for the financial year .................... (24,691) (22,458) (24,972)
Total recognised losses ...................... (24,691) (22,458) (24,972)

6. Notes to the financial statements

6.1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
the historical cost convention. They represent an aggregation of the figures for Deutsche Asset
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Management Limited, Deutsche Asset Management Investment Services Limited, Deutsche Asset
Management Life & Pensions Limited, Deutsche Asset Management (Ireland) Limited, Deutsche Asset
Management (International) Limited, DWS Funds Management Limited and DWS Investment Funds
Limited, after eliminating transactions and balances among these entities.

The following principal accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which
are considered material in relation to the aggregated financial statements.

Investments
Listed investments held as current assets are recorded at year end market value.

Stocks — true and fair override

Stocks represent the manager’s box of units, which have been included at bid prices ruling at the period
end and profits and losses arising from this valuation are taken to the profit and loss account. This is not
in accordance with Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 1985 which requires that such assets be stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value, or that if revalued any revaluation differences be taken to
revaluation reserve. The Directors consider that these requirements would fail to give a true and fair
view of the results for the year of a company that holds seed capital in the short-term as current assets.
It is not practicable to quantify the effect on the accounts of all these departures since information on
original cost, being of no continuing relevance to this business, is not readily available.

Turnover

Turnover represents management fees, commissions and other income receivable, exclusive of Value
Added Tax.

Taxation
Tax is charged on all profits and income earned to date, less allowance and relief.

Deferred taxation is provided, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the
treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by
the Balance Sheet date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered against future taxable income.

Pension schemes

Directors of the Target Companies are members of group schemes operated by DB Group Services
Limited, details of which are disclosed in the financialstatéments of that-company.

The expected cost of pensions payable under the group’s funded defined benefit schemes, and of other
unfunded post-retirement benefits, is charged to the Target Companies by the Principal Employer and is
recognised in the Profit and Loss Account so as to spread this cost over the service lives of employees
in schemes. Variations from the regular cost are spread over the expected remaining service lives of
current employees in the schemes and are included in the recharge to the Target Companies. The costs
are assessed in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries; the last formal actuarial valuation was
carried out at 1 January 2003 for pensions and 31 December 2003 for other post-retirement benefits.
The Target Companies are unable to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the
schemes and information regarding any surplus/deficit of the scheme is not currently available as of
31 December 2004.

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at market rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. Income and expenditure in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the transactions or at contracted rates, where such rates exist.
These translation differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

Long term life assurance business

The aggregation includes the results of the Deutsche Asset Management Life & Pensions business by
aggregating shareholders’ entitlements as reflected in shareholders’ funds and the non technical profit
and loss account of that company’s accounts, prepared on a modified statutory basis. The technical
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account, which deals with long term insurance business premiums, claims, investment returns and other
related insurance costs, is not aggregated. Policyholder assets are disclosed as a single item on the
aggregated net asset statement, matched by a liability line item for liabilities of long term life assurance
business, which includes any surplus not recognised in the aggregated accounts. Summaries of the long
term insurance business technical account and balance sheet details are disclosed at note 6.16.

6.2  Segmental information

The Target Companies are involved in the provision of investment management services. These
services are only provided to clients in the United Kingdom.

6.3  Analysis of continuing and discontinued operations

On 7 July 2005, Deutsche Asset Management Group Limited entered into an agreement with Aberdeen
Asset Management PLC to sell certain fund management businesses and contracts, including the Target
Companies. Prior to the disposal, the Private Wealth Management, Absolute Return Strategies and
Global Equities segments of the Target Companies will be transferred to other Deutsche Bank entities.
The trading figures for these segments have been disclosed as discontinued activities in this financial
information as noted below. The net assets of these businesses are discussed in note 6.24.

Years ended 31 December
2002 2003 2004

Continuing Discontinzed Total Continuing Discontinued

Total Continuing Discontinued  Total

£2000 £2000 £000  £000 £7000 £000  £000 £2000 £2000
Turnover ....... 120,842 28,281 149,123 117,426 33204 150,630 117,819 27,129 144948
Cost of sales. .. .. (9,562) — (9,562 (9.437) —  (9437)  (14956) —  (14,956)
Gross profit .. ... 111,280 28281 139,561 107,989 33204 141,193 102,863 27,129 129,992
Administrative
expenses .. .... (140,618) (13,261) (153,879)  (140,681) (8,508) (149,189)  (145,823) (14,989) (160,812)
Other operating
income ....... 9,544 — 954 19,329 — 19,329 10,639 — 10,639
Operating
(lossyprofit. ... (19,794) 15020 (4,774)  (13,363) 24696 11,333 (32321) 12,140 (20,181)
6.4  Loss/profit on ordinary activities before taxation ) » Irw Eo
" - PRI e et s e
2002 2003
£000 £000
Loss/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting)
Auditors remuneration:
Audit work. ... e e 108 105 190
Nomaudit....... oot i i e 18 18 144
Recovery of amounts written off relating to unit trusts ........ — (7,500) —
6.5 Employees
2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
Wages and salaries . ..........c..oiiiiiiiiiiie i 38,116 40,652 49267
Social security Costs .. ... . i 3,994 5,092 4,367
Other pension COSS . .« v v v vt ee et ineeeenn. 2,783 3,158 4,864
44,893 48,902 58,498
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All staff are employed by another Deutsche Bank company and then the costs are recharged to the
Target Companies. The average number of employees employed by the Deutsche Bank company and
recharged to the Target Companies during the year are as follows:

2002 2003 2004
Number Number Number
Average number of employees during the year............... 429 357 331
6.6  Directors’ emoluments
2002 2003 2004
£7000 £000 £000
Directors” emoluments . .........c.oitiitiirienrannenna. 4418 5,243 3,494
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes........ 552 122 —
4,970 5,365 3,494
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes ... 4 4 9
Compensation for loss of office ........................... 429 259 276

During the year, 18 (2002 — 17; 2003 — 17) directors received shares.

The aggregate of emoluments and amounts receivable under long-term incentive schemes of the highest
paid director was £505,613 (2002 — £473,098; 2003 — £463,147). He is a member of a defined
benefit scheme, and the accrued pension to which he would be entitled from normal retirement date if
he were to retire at the year end was £23,004 p.a. (2002 — £11,965; 2003 — £20,188).

Number of directors

"
e
. NI

2002 2003 2004
No No No
Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of
directors under:
Money purchase pension schemes .................... 20 20 17
Defined benefit scheme .. .............. ... ... . ... 5 5 4
" 25 25 21
sl !j‘ ) , ‘ ‘ .
6.7 Exceptional items e
2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
Restructuring provision ..o, — — 8,349

The restructuring provision relates to severance and other staff related costs to become payable under a
fundamental reorganisation that took place in 2004. The tax impact of the profit and loss charge is a tax
credit of £2,448,300.

6.8 Interest receivable and similar income

2002 2003 2004

£000 £000 £000
Interest receivable from other Deutsche Bank undertakings. . 4,188 3,438 4,178
Other interest receivable . ...... ... ..., 48 247 633
4,236 3,685 4,811
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6.9  Taxation

2002 2003 2004
£600 £000 £900
Taxation is based on the results for the year and comprises:

Group relief payable at 30% ............ ... ... 1,295 3,153 (7,222)
Deferred taxation. . ........ciiiiiiinn e, (4,865) 1,260 8
Total current tax (credit)/charge...................... (3,570) 4413 (7,214)
Prior year (over)/under provision of current tax ........... {32,002) (2,935) 467
Prior year over provision of deferred taxation............. — 1,998 —
Total tax (credit)/charge ............................. (35,572) 3,476 (6,747)

The standard rate of tax for the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax is 30%. The
actual tax credit for the year differs from the standard rate for the reasons set out in the following

reconciliation.

2002 2003 2004

£000 £7000 £7000
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities . ..................... (538) 15,018 (23,719)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard rate (30%) .. (161) 4,505 (7,116)
Disallowable expenditure ........... .. .. . oL (3,381) 73 —
Imshtax relief ...... ... 2,878 — —
Adjustments relating to previous years — current tax ...... (32,002) (3,100) 505
Adjustments relating to previous years — deferred tax .. ... (2,906) 1,998 (136)
Total tax (credit)/charge ............................. (35,572) 3,476 (6,747)

The prior year over provision of current tax in 2002 (£32,002,000) resulted from a catch up of
compensation payments made in respect of certain mutual funds which were omitted from prior

periods’ tax returns.

6.10  Dividends

2002 2003 2004
_ £2000 £000 £000
Equity shares:
Interim dividends paid ........... .. ... .. il 12,725 —_ —_
Final dividends proposed ............. ... 47,000 34,000 8,000
59,725 34,000 8,000
6.11  Stocks
2002 2003 2004
£2000 £000 £000
Units in managed funds ..............c i, 11,133 3,539 677
6.12  Debtors
2002 2003 2004
£000 £2000 £000
Trade deblOrS . ..ot v i e et 58,141 44,022 42,220
Amounts owed by other Deutsche Bank companies........ 23,893 30,364 20,948
Group relief receivable ........ ... .. .. .. .. . 28,857 21,720 41,430
Other debtors . .o v vttt e et 7,820 11,889 2,155
118,711 107,995 106,753
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6.13  Current asset investments

2002 2003 2004

£000 £000 £000
Quoted SECULILY .. ...ttt i e 28 28 25
Deposits with credit institutions . ............... ... ... 23,094 35,438 29,635
23,122 35,466 29,660

The quoted security is included at the year end market value as at the balance sheet date. The original
book cost of the investment was £28,061.

6.14 Cash at bank and in hand

2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
Cash at bank (representing balances held with Deutsche
Bank AG). ... e 125,320 110,497 56,645
Cash at bank (representing balances not held with Deutsche
Bank AG). ... e 1,091 1,574 55,587

126,411 112,071 112,232

6.15 Deferred taxation

2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £2000
Balance at 1 January . ........cuiiinniinn i 1,849 6,714 3,456
Profit and loss account ......... .. ..t ninnnn. 4,865 (3,258) (8)
Balance at 31 December............. ... .. .. ... ..., 6,714 3,456 3,448
The above balance comprises.
Deferred tax asset ..o v vi i et e 6,851 3,593 5,576
Deferred tax liability ..................... e (137) (137) (2,128)

The deferred tax asset arises out of temporary differences in respect of bonus and other provisions that
are allowed for tax in the year of payment.

The deferred tax liability arises out of timing differences in respect of amounts advanced to DB Group
Services Limited in respect of future pension costs under the group’s funded defined benefit schemes.
The amounts are amortised over the working lives of the members of the defined benefit pension fund,
however tax relief is over 4 years.

6.16 Assets of long term life assurance business

The assets of the long term life assurance business held to meet liabilities to policyholders based on
market values, were:

2002 2003 2004

£000 £000 £000
Listed InVeStments .. .....ovvnr ittt iennnnnn. 4,328,741 4,173,861 3,262,195
URIt tEUSES « o vttt e et e et e e 164,506 583,452 423,070
Cash and deposits. .. ....ooit i 103,692 63,430 21,705
Reinsurer’s share of technical provision................ 94,991 181,760 277,110
Other assets/(liabilities) .........ov it iiin .. 15,461 43,280 16,631

4,707,391 5,045,783 4,000,711
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2002 2003 2004

£2000 £000 £000

Analysis of long-term business technical account
Premiumincome .........cotiiiiviniiiennn... 1,092,513 1,426,488 236,335
Outward reinsurance premiums . . ................... (11,432) (77,545) (66,074)
Investment income, gains and losses................. (1,009,221) 756,197 372,974
Claimsincurred .........coo i (464,442)  (1,849,215)  (1,655,477)
Other charges ........cooiiiiiniiiniainennnn.. (15,470) (13,235) (14,157)
Change in technical provisions ..................... 414,733 (234,410) 1,133,841
Balance on long-term business technical account ... ... 6,681 8,280 7,442
6.17 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2002 2003 2004

£000 £7000 £7000
Overdraft ..o e e e 4,455 1,734 —
Trade creditors. ... .ot e 27,822 22,498 29,144
Amounts owed to other Deutsche Bank companies ........... 16,997 24,796 54,461
Corporation tax payable ........ ... .. ... . il 2,692 6,578 3,503
Group relief payable .. .......... ... ... . ol 294 502 —_
Other creditorS . ottt e e e e e e 20,633 28,894 37,389
Dividends payable .. ... ... 47,000 34,000 8,000

119,893 119,002 132,497

6.18  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2002 2003 2004
£2000 £2000 £000
Subordinated debt . ...t i e 229 —_ —

Deutsche Asset Management Ireland Limited entered into a Loan Subordination Agreement with its
parent company, Deutsche International (Ireland) Limited (the “Lender”). Pursuant to the Loan
Subordination Agreement, the Lender advanced the Company the sum of £229,000, the ““Subordinated
Debt”. It was agreed between Deutsche Asset Management Ireland Limited and the Lender that the
Subordinated Debt would be perpetual and may not be repaid or reduced on the Lender’s initiative or
without prior agreement of the Central Bank of Ireland. The principal amount may not be repaid if such
repayment would mean that the capital of the Company is less than the Central Bank of Ireland’s

capital adequacy requirements for the Company. The principal amount was repaid in full in January
2003.

6.19 Provision for liabilities and charges

2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £2000
AsatlJanuary . ... oo e 20,936 9,280 9,280
Released during the year ........... ... ... ... aL. (11,656) — (2,000)
Restructuring provision established during the year ........... — — 8,349
Restructuring provision utilised during the year .............. — — (4,631)
Asat 31 December . ... oot e 9,280 9,280 10,998
Comprising:
Provision for potential costs in respect of certain mutual funds 9,280 9,280 7,280
Restructuring provision . ..ot — — 3,718
9,280 9,280 10,998
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Provision for potential costs in respect of certain mutual funds

During 1996, the Target Companies announced possible irregularities concerning three unit trusts
managed by the Target Companies. Following extensive investigation and agreement with IMRO on a
methodology for calculating compensation a provision was set up at that time. Taking into account
payment of investor compensation, and legal and other advice received at the time, annual reviews of
the provision are made.

At the end of 2004 a review was carried out of the original provisions set up, which identified a likely
over-provision of £2 million which has been released to the profit and loss account in 2004.

Provision for restructuring

The provision relates to severance and other staff related costs to become payable under fundamental
reorganisations of the UK asset management business that took place during 2004. The tax impact of
the profit and loss change is a tax credit of £2,448,300.

6.20 Financial instruments

The Target Companies’ financial instruments comprise -current asset investments, units in managed
funds, cash, deposits with credit institutions and various items such as trade debtors, trade creditors, etc
that arise from their operations. The Target Companies have taken advantage of the exemption under
FRS 13 “Derivatives and other financial instruments” and excluded short term debtors and creditors
from the disclosures, other than the currency risk disclosures of financial instruments.

The main risks arising from the Target Companies’ financial instruments are interest rate and currency
risk.
Interest rate and currency risk profiles

The interest rate and currency profiles of the Target Companies’ financial assets at 31 December were
as follows:

31 December 2002 31 December 2003 31 December 2004
Floating No Floating No Floating No

rate interest Total rate interest Total rate interest Total

£000 £°000 £7000 £000 £7000 £000 £7000 £000 £7000
Sterling.............. 131,064 9,942 141,006 141,276 2,306 143,582 147,202 1,730 148,932
USDollar............ 11,867 — 11,867 5,327 — 5,327 352 -_— 352
.Euro. currencies . 1,480 3,078 4,558 1,883 2,226 4,109 694 — 694
(¥t Other currengiesi;:, . . — .. - .28 28 301 .. ..28, 329 180 25 205
Total .....ovivivnnenn ‘ 144411 13,048 157,459 148,787 4,560 153,347 148,428 1,755 150,183

The no interest financial assets do not have a maturity date. They principally comprise current asset
investments. The floating rate financial assets principally comprise cash and deposit balances which
earn interest at rates which fluctuate according to money market rates. The fair values of the financial
assets are not materially different to their carrying amounts.

Foreign net investment

The Target Companies (other than Deutsche Asset Management Ireland Limited which reports in
Euros) use sterling as their reporting currency. The foreign currency net monetary assets/(liabilities) of
balances in other than reporting currency are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2002 2003 2004

£000 £7000 £000
US Dollar ..o e (757) 4,683 (545)
BUIO .o e 8,828 1,455 1,587
Japanese Yenm ......oiiiiii i e i et e e s —  (1,162) (459)

6.21 Pension costs

The total pension costs for the Target Companies were £4,892,026 (2003 — £3,155,870, 2002 —
£2,819,111) of which £4,473,882 (2003 — £2,900,064, 2002 — £2,669,646) related to contributions to
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the UK DB Group’s principal funded defined benefit schemes for employees based in the UK, and
£385,721 (2003 — £239,196, 2002 — £142,372) was paid into defined contribution schemes for
employees based in the UK. £32,424 (2003 — £16,610, 2002 — £7,093) of contributions were made to
personal pension schemes.

Formal actuarial valuations of the UK defined benefit schemes are usually carried out tri-annually by a
qualified actuary, the last valuation being at 30 September 2004. The regular pension cost is assessed
using the projected unit method for both the DB (UK) Senior Group Pension Scheme (“senior
scheme”) and the DB (UK) Pension Scheme (“staff scheme”). The principal actuarial assumptions
adopted at the last valuation were that, over the long term, the annual rate of return on funds invested
would be 5.25 per cent. pre-retirement, the increase in annual pensionable remuneration would be 4.25
per cent. and the annual increase in pension payments would be 2.7 per cent. The actuarial market

value of the assets, present value of liabilities and the deficit of the schemes at the date of the valuation
are as follows:

Senior Staff
Scheme Scheme Total
31 December 31 December 31 December

2004 2004 2004

£m £m £m
Total actuarial market value of assets ......... 305 985 1,290
Present value of scheme labilities............ (296) (1,015) (1,311)
Deficit in the scheme ...................... 9 (30) 20

The employer’s contribution rate over the average remaining service lives of the members of the
schemes takes account of the deficit disclosed by the valuation.

The UK DB Group operates an unfunded post retirement medical benefits scheme for UK pensioners.
The scheme is now closed to new members. The liability was valued by a qualified actuary, the last
formal review of the scheme was at 30 September 2004 by Mellon — HR & 18S. The principal actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation were a liability discount rate of 5.5 per cent. per annum and medical
inflation of 9 per cent. per annum for the first year and 7 per cent. per annum thereafter. Claims are
assumed to increase with age. At the date of valuation the liability was £10m.

Since the Group is unable to identify its share of the scheme assets and liabilities on a consistent and
reasonable basis, as permitted by FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits” the schemes have been accounted for
. in these financial statements as if the schemes were defined contribution schemes.

6.22 Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to operating cash

2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000

Reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to operating cash

How .. e e,

Operating (loss)/profit . ....... ... i i @4,774) 11,333 (20,181)

Exchange movements ......... ... ... .. . ... (29) 14 2

Exceptional items — restructuring charges . .............. — — (4,631)

Decrease in provision for liabilities and charges........... (2,047) —_— (2,000)

Decrease iIndebtors . . ... oo ittt e 21,077 8,147 23,280

(Decrease)/increase In creditors . ..........c.ouevuirnnn.. (14,820) (3,143) 6,038

Net cash inflow from operating activities............... (593) 16,351 2,508

6.23 Related party transactions

The Target Companies have transacted during the three years with various related parties within the
Deutsche Bank Group. The most significant transactions are expenses allocated to the Target
Companies by Deutsche Bank London Branch and fees from transfer pricing arrangements between
Deutsche Asset Management global entities and the Target Companies.
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Types and description of transactions:

Fee allocations

These are fees receivable or payable whereby either the Target Companies provide investment
management or distribution services on behalf of Deutsche Asset Management global entities and
charge them a fee for these services. Conversely the Target Companies are charged a fee for services
provided by Deutsche Asset Management global entities. The net income or charge from these is
included in the turnover figures.

The following companies are defined as related parties due to the trading arrangements for fee
allocations with the Target Companies:

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Filiale Amsterdam
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Filiale Singapur
DB Investment Managers Inc

Deutsche Securities Limited, Tokyo Branch
Deutsche Asset Management (Asia) Limited
Deutsche Asset Management Group Limited
Deutsche Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
Deutsche Asset Management Inc

Deutsche Asset Management GmbH

Deutsche Asset Management (Japan) Limited
Deutsche Asset Management SIM SpA

Deutsche Australia Limited

Deutsche Bank (Suisse) S.A.

Deutsche Bank (Chile) S.A.

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas

Deutsche Investment Management Americas Inc
Deutsche Trust Bank Limited

Deutsche Vermogensbildungsgeselischaft mit beschrankter Haftung
Deutsche Asset Management International GmbH
DWS Investment S.A.

Scudder Trust Company

- Interest receivable o ‘
- This is interest received or receivable in favourablé bank balances hiéld with Deutsche Bank.

Net allocated expenses

These are overheads which are incurred centrally at Deutsche Bank and are charged out to subsidiary
companies.

Group relief balances

For corporation tax purposes the Target Companies are part of a larger group of companies, such that
taxation amounts receivable or payable are netted off with other companies in the sub-group.
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2002 2003

2004

‘ £000 £000
Related party transactions included in profit and loss
account:
Income
Transfer pricing fees receivable (net) from other Deutsche

Asset Management global entities . ................... 5,267 7,514
Interest receivable from DB London .................... 4,660 4,501
Expenses:
Net allocated expenses from Deutsche Bank AG London

Branch . ... —_ (77,028)
Net allocated expenses from Deutsche Asset Management

Group Limited .. ... ..o (101,300) (22,282)
Related party transactions included in Balance Sheet:
Assets
Amounts receivable from fee allocation counterparties . .. .. 19,411 29,936
Amounts receivable from Deutsche Bank London Branch . .. — 428
Amounts receivable from Deutsche Asset Management

Group Ltd ... ... 4,482 —
Favourable bank balances held with Deutsche Bank London

Branch . ... .. e 125,320 110,497
Group relief receivable ....... .. ... ... .. ... ... 28,857 21,720
Liabilities
Amounts owing to fee allocation counterparties ........... (17,703) (7,640)
Amounts owing to Deutsche Bank London Branch ........ @) —_—
Amounts owing to Deutsche Asset Management Group

Limited. .. ... ... o i — (17,925)
Subordinated loan from Deutsche International (Ireland)

Limited. . ..o e (229) —
Group relief payable ....... ... ... .. i (2,986) (7,080)

Shareholder’s equity
Capital contribution from Deutsche International (Ireland)
Limited to Deutsche Asset Management (Ireland) Limited 12,570 —_

' 6.24 Post balance sheet event

£000

4,615
2,185

(73,145)

{(30,294)

20,948

56,645
41,430

(30,689)
(3,106)

(25,393)

(3,5&)

After the 2004 year end parts of the business of the Target Companies not being acquired by Aberdeen
will transfer to other Deutsche Bank entities. The associated turnover and operating profit has been

disclosed as discontinued operations within the profit and loss account.

The net assets attributable to these elements of the business as at 31 December 2004 are as follows:

Absolute
Global Private Wealth Return
equities Management Strategies Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debtors ......... ... v, 1,022 3,040 7,100 11,162
Amounts due from other Deutsche Bank
BNLIES . o vt e e 3,409 —_ —_ 3,409
Cash atbank andinhand ................. — 20) — (20)
Amounts owing to other Deutsche Bank
1011919 11 (283) — (2,716) (2,999)
Othercreditors ..........vviiiiieinnnn. .. —_ (2,280) (2,284) (4,564)
Netassets ..........ciiiiiennnnennns. 4,148 740 2,100 6,988

It is expected that the transfers will be for cash consideration at net asset value at the date of transfer.
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PART 7

FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE PHILADELPHIA FIXED
INCOME CONTRACTS

1. Accountant’s report

KPMG Audit Plc Tel. +44 (0) 1224 591000
Transaction Services Fax. +44 (0) 1224 590909
37 Albyn Place DX AB121 Aberdeen |

Aberdeen AB1Q 1JB
United Kingdom

The Directors

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
10 Queen’s Terrace

Aberdeen

AB10 1YG

12 August 2005
Dear Sirs

Financial information relating to the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

‘We report on the financial information presented in respect of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts
set out in paragraphs 3 to 7 of this Part 7. This financial information has been prepared for inclusion in
the prospectus (“the Document”) and, through incorporation by reference, a Class 1 circular dated
12 August 2005 relating to the acquisition of certain fund management businesses and contracts by
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC (“the Company”) on the bases of preparation set out in
paragraphs 3.1, 4.1, 5.1, 6.1 and 7.1 respectively. This report is required by Paragraph 13.5.21R of the
Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority and is given for the purpose of complying with that
paragraph and for no other purpose.

Responsibilities

" The Directors of the Company are responsib]e for preparing the financial information in accordance

with the bases of preparation set out in paragraph 3.1, 4.1, 5.1, 6.1 and 7.1, as appropnate, andin e

accordance with UK accounting standards.

It is our responsibility to form an opinion on the financial information and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Standards of Investment Reporting issued by the
Auditing Practices Board in the United Kingdom, except that the scope of our work was limited as
explained below.

Our work included an assessment of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
information. It also included an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by those
responsible for the preparation of the financial information and whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Philadelphia Fixed Income contracts, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned our work so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
information is free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.
However, the evidence available to us was limited as follows:

* In respect of assets under management, the information was derived from reports generated by
the financial accounting systems operated by Deutsche Bank in New York. In common with
other fund management businesses, assets under management do not form part of the statutory
accounting records and have not been subject to audit.
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. In respect of employee costs, the information provided covers only the employees named in the
Acquisition Agreement, and does not reflect either turnover of staff at those grades or all the
employees directly employed in the management of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts
during the periods covered by the financial information. As noted below, the nature of the
business means infrastructure and operating assets are employed collectively across the entire
business of an entity and therefore we have been unable to obtain information about the costs of
other employees in fact directly employed in that capacity during those periods.

. In respect of fixed asset costs, the information provided is in respect only of assets that are both
the subject of the transfer and were utilised in relation to the Philadelphia Fixed Income
Contracts during the periods covered by the financial information. However, the assets that are
the subject of the transfer largely related to the costs of fit out of the new property occupied by
the employees associated with the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts, which were not
incurred until after the period of the financial information. As noted below, the nature of the
business means infrastructure and operating assets are employed collectively across the entire
business of an entity and therefore we have been unable to obtain information about other fixed
assets used in connection with the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts during the period
covered by the financial information, and the costs of those assets.

Therefore, it has not been possible for us to carry out audit procedures necessary to obtain adequate
assurance regarding the assets under management, the employee costs and the fixed asset costs.

Without qualifying or further qualifying our opinions below, we draw attention to the reasons why the
financial information presented within paragraphs 3 to 7 of this Part 7 has been prepared on the bases
adopted. The Directors of the Company have concluded that information prepared on these bases is the
most relevant to Ordinary Shareholders in assessing the impact of the acquisition.

. The acquisition is of a number of asset management contracts and not of a legal entity. It also
involves the employment of up to 34 front-office staff, including fund managers responsible for
these contracts. These asset management contracts will be extracted from four legal entities
owned by the vendor and represent less than 3% of the total revenues and assets of these four
legal entities. The vendor will continue to operate the four legal entities following extraction of
the asset management contracts which are the subject of this transaction and Aberdeen will not
acquire any infrastructure or systems as part of the acquisition.

U] There has never been a requirement, whether legal, regulatory or commercial, for separate profit
and loss, balance sheet and cash flow information to be prepared in respect of the asset
management contracts which are the subject of this transaction.

. Because of the nature of the business, where infrastructure and operating assets are employed
collectively across the entire business of an entity, the apportionment of such costs between
different revenue streams for historical periods cannot be achieved in an objective manner and
any attempt to do so is unlikely to be meaningful and is at risk of being misleading.

. A number of other costs were incurred in the management of the Philadelphia Fixed Income
Contracts that are not covered by the financial information presented. Those particular costs
will not be incurred going forward since the Company intends to enter into outsourcing
arrangements with BNPP SS.

Opinion on revenues and property lease costs

In our opinion, the financial information gives, for the purposes of the Document, a true and fair view
of the revenues and property lease costs of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts for the periods
ended on the dates stated, in accordance with the bases of preparation set out in paragraphs 3.1 and 6.1.

Opinion: disclaimer on assets under management, employee costs and fixed asset costs

Because of the possible effect of the limitations in evidence available to us described above, we are
unable to form an opinion as to whether the financial information gives, for the purposes of the
Document, a true and fair view of the assets under management, employee costs and fixed asset costs
for the periods ended on the dates stated.

Declaration

For the purposes of Prospectus Rule 5.5.3R (2) (f) we are responsible for this report as part of the
Document and declare that we have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information contained
in this report is, to the best of our knowledge and belief, in accordance with the facts and contains no
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omissions likely to affect its import. This declaration is included in the Document in compliance with
paragraph 1.2 of Annex 1 of the Prospectus Rules.

Yours faithfully

2. Introduction

The acquisition is an acquisition of a number of asset management contracts and not of a legal entity. It
also involves the employment of up to 34 front-office staff, including fund managers responsible for
these contracts. These asset management contracts will be extracted from four legal entities owned by
Deutsche Bank, who will continue to operate the four legal entities following such extraction.
Aberdeen will not be acquiring any infrastructure or systems as part of the acquisition. There has never
been a requirement, whether legal, regulatory or commercial, for separate profit and loss, balance sheet
and cash flow information to be prepared in respect of the asset management contracts. Given the
nature of the business, where infrastructure and operating assets are collectively employed across the
entire business of an entity, the apportionment of such costs between different revenue streams for
historical periods cannot be achieved in an objective manner. A number of other costs were incurred in
the management of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts that are not covered by the financial
information presented. Those particular costs will not be incurred going forward since the Company
intends to enter into outsourcing arrangements with BNPP SS. The financial information presented
herein is that deemed by the Company to be most relevant to Ordinary Shareholders in assessing the
impact of the acquisition, being information on the revenues and assets under management attributable
to the contracts, together with details in respect of the specific employees and fixed assets transferring
under the terms of the Acquisition Agreement and property lease costs associated with the space
occupied by those specific employees.

The financial information presented in paragraphs 3 to 7 does not represent statutory accounts as
defined by Section 240 of the Companies Act.

3. Revenues in respect of Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

3.1 Basis of preparation

Annexes 1 to 4 of Schedule 4 of the Acquisition Agreement list all contracts expected to transfer under
the terms of that agreement (together defined as the Philly AFI Client Contracts).

_The revenue figures in respect of the Philly AFIChcntCohtr(acts have been derived from reports
generated by the financial accounting systems operated by Deutsche Bank in New York.

Management fees are recognised on an accruals basis in line with the terms of the various contracts.
Income from performance fees is recognised when attainment of the criteria defined in the relevant
management contracts is considered certain.

3.2 Revenues information

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2002 2003 2004
£000 £°000 £'000
Fixed income — Institutional
US Core fixed INCOME ..o ir ittt it e sttt enns 16,216 19,397 20,158
Global fixed INCOME . . ..ottt i e e it 118 130 141
USHighYield ........o i e 42 42 179
Total fixed income — institutional .............. ... ..nn 16,376 19,569 20,478
Fixed income — retail
Global balanced . ....... ... o i - 565 798 587
US core fixed InCOME . ... oottt ie i it eiieaens 8,107 10,488 8,047
US mortgage backed ......... ...l 45 44 23
Total fixed income —retail .......... ... ... i 8,717 11,330 8,657
Total TEVENUES . . . oottt e e e e e e, 20,093 30,899 29,135
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4, Assets under management in respect of Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts
4.1 Basis of preparation

The AUM figures in respect of the Philly AFI Client Contracts are unaudited and have been derived
from reports generated by the financial accounting systems operated by Deutsche Bank in New York.
AUM figures represent the aggregate of the bid prices for the investments managed by the Target
Businesses under the Philly AFI Client Contracts as at each of 31 December 2002, 2003 and 2004,

42  Assets under management split by business stream and by product type

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2002 2003 2004
£m £m £m
Fixed income — Institutional
US Core fIXed INCOME . .ottt ittt ee i 7.304 7,603 8,341
Global fixed InCOmMe . ... oo i i e e i e 38 37 43
USHighYield ..... .. 29 20 128
Total fixed income — institutional . . ........................ 7.371 7,660 8,512
Fixed income — retail
Global balanced ........ ... .. 155 169 163
US core fiXed INCOME ... ..t vi vttt e e et 1,586 1,780 1,583
US mortgage backed ...... ... ... i iniinn 30 29 14
Total fixed mcome —retall .......... ... ... i 1,771 1,978 1,760
Total assets under management . .................. ..o .o.... 9,142 9,638 10,272

5 Employees
5.1 Basis of preparation

The employee figures relate directly to the 34 named employees defined within the Acquisition
Agreement as Philly AFI Employees and listed in Schedule 3 to the Disclosure Letter (as defined in
that Acquisition Agreement). The figures are unaudited and are derived from the records maintained by
the Human Resources department of the Deutsche Bank of New York.

Since the figures relate to named employees, the costs stated reflect only their period of employment
where individuals were not employed throughout the three years ended 31 December 2004. The -
average employee numbers are weighted to reflect the effect of joiners during the period.

US dollar figures are translated at simple average annual exchange rates.

5.2 Employee costs

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000
Wages and salaries .. ... .o 6,767 11,595 10,436
Other related COSES . ..o v vttt it e 678 663 709
7,445 12,258 11,145
) No. No. No.
Average number of employees .............oi it 24 27 32

Other related costs include pensions, health and life insurance and other benefits, and are estimated on
the basis of 30 per cent. of base salaries.

6. Property costs
6.1 Basis of preparation

The property cost figures relate to the proportion of lease costs associated with the space occupied by
the Philly AFI Employees. The figures are unaudited and have been derived from cost allocation
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summaries internal to Deutsche Bank. The lease costs represent an inter company charge from another

Deutsche Bank entity and may or may not represent a level of rent that would be payable to a third
party landlord. '

US dollar figures are translated at simple average annual exchange rates.
6.2  Property lease costs
2002 2003 2004

£000 £000 £°000
Occupancy at 150 South Independence 163 139 145.

7. Fixed assets

7.1  Basis of preparation

The fixed assets represent those fixed assets summarised in Annex 5 to Schedule 4 of the Acquisition
Agreement. The figures presented are unandited and are derived from fixed asset schedules prepared
from the underlying accounting records maintained by Deutsche Bank in New York.

7.2  Fixed assets

Leasehold Furniture Office
improvements & fittings equipment Total

£000 £000 £000 £°000

Cost

At 1January 2002 ... —_ — — —
Additions ..., — — — —_
Disposals............. o il — — — —

At 31 December 2002 . ................... — — — —
Additions ... i — —_ 25 25
Disposals. ..., — — — —

At 3! December 2003 ........ ... ... ..., —_ —_ 25 25
Additions ......... ... .. ... e — — — —
Disposals. ... — — —_ —

At 31 December 2004 .................... —_ — 25 25

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2002 .......... e _ — — — —

© " Charge for year ..ol = - - —

) At 31 December 2002 ... .......... . —_— — — —
Charge forvear .......... ... ... ... ..., — — (2) 2)

At 31 December 2003 .................... — — 2) (2)
Charge foryear ......... ... ... . .. — — (8) ®)

At 31 December 2004 ................ ..., — — (10) (10)

Net book value ‘
At 31 December 2002 . ......... ... ... ... — — — —

At 31 December 2003 ......... ... ... .... — — 23 23
At 31 December 2004 . ....... ... ... ..., _ —_— 15 15
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PART 8

UNAUDITED PROFORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
RELATING TO THE ABERDEEN GROUP

Set out below is an unaudited pro-forma statement based on the consolidated net assets of the
Aberdeen Group as at 31 March 2005. The unaudited pro-forma statement of net assets is prepared for
illustrative purposes only to show the effect of the Proposals on the Aberdeen Group as if they had
occurred on 31 March 2005.

Because of the nature of pro-forma information, this information addresses a hypothetical situation and
does not therefore represent the actual financial position or results of the Aberdeen Group.

The statement of pro-forma net assets set out below is based on the unaudited interim consolidated
balance sheet of the Aberdeen Group as at 31 March 2005 incorporated by reference in Part 5 of this
document, the audited aggregated net asset statement of the Target Companies set out in Part 6 and the
fixed asset figures relating to the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts set out in Part 7, after making
the adjustments on the basis described in the notes below. The historical financial information of the
Aberdeen Group and the Target Companies and the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts has been
prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and presented in Pounds Sterling.
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Pro forma Balance Sheet

Adjustments
Aggregated Net assets of
Aberdeen Group Net Assets Philadelphia
Consolidated of the Target  Fixed Income Pro forma
Balance Sheet Companies Contracts Rights Consolidated
31 March 2005 31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2004 Issue Acquisition  Consolidation  Balance Sheet
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £2000 £000
Note 1 Note 2 Note 3 Note 4 Note § Note 6
ASSETS
Fixed assets
Intangible assets .......... 28,991 — — — — — 28,991
Goodwill ............. ... 293,062 — — — — 203,921 496,983
Tangible assets ........... 10,095 — 15 —_ —_ — 10,110
Investments .............. 26,038 — — — 313,211 (313,211) 26,038
358,186 _ 562,122
Current assets
Stock ... 658 677 — — — — 1,335
Debtors .....ooovvvnnn. 65,287 110,201 — —_ —_ — 175,488
Tnvestments .............. 2,102 29,660 —_ — — — 31,762
Cash at bank and in hand. .. 15,546 112,232 — 216,036 (274,275) — 69,539
83,593 2_781_24_
Assets attributable to
equity shareholders. .. .. 441,779 840,246
Assets of Jong-term life
assurance business ...... 52,888 4,000,711 — — — —_ 4,053,599
Total assets . ............. 494,667 4,893,845
LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital ... .. 23,620 — — 36,287 — — 59,907
Share premium account .. .. 16,710 — — 179,749 —_ — 199,459
Other reserves ............ 203,805 _ —_ — — —_— 203,805
Prasit and loss account ... .. (116,183) — — — — — (116,183)
Equity shareholders funds 130,952 346,988
Provisions for liabilities
and charges ........... 35,961 10,998 — — -— — 46,359
Creditors: due within one
year, including
convertible debt
Creditors ................ 94,218 132,497 — — 38,936 — 265,651
Convertible debt .......... — — — - — — —
94,218 265,651
Creditors: due after more
than one year, including
convertible debt
Creditors ........c.o.uv.. 56,379 — — _— — — 56,379
Convertible debt .......... 124,269 — — — — —_ 124,269
180,648 180,648
441,779 840,246
Liabilities of long-term life
assurance business ...... 52,888 4,000,711 — — — — 4,053,599
Total liabilities ........... 494,667 4,893,845
Notes
(1) The Aberdeen Group consolidated balance sheet has been extracted without material adjustment

from the unaudited interim statement of results for the six months to 31 March 2005.

@)

Net assets of the Target Companies have been extracted without material adjustment from the
aggregated net asset statement of the Target Companies contained within paragraph 3 of Part 6 of
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this document. The debtors figure of £110,201,000 consists of £106,753,000 for debtors and
£3,448,000 of deferred tax. Total net assets acquired amount to £109,275,000 as set out in the
aggregated net asset statement of the Target Companies.

(3) Net assets of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts have been extracted without material
adjustment from note 7.2 contained within Part 7 of this document.

(4) The Rights Issue is based on the issue of 3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary
Shares. Assuming 241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares are in issue, a total of 362,873,245 New
Ordinary Shares of 10p each will be issued at 63p per share reflected in £36,287,000 of share
capital and £192,323,000 of share premium (total gross proceeds of £228,610,000). Costs
associated with the Rights Issue are estimated to be £12,574,000, payable from the proceeds of the
Rights Issue, and are offset against the share premium account.

(5) The acquisition of the Target Businesses is assumed to be for a consideration of £313,211,000,
£274,275,000 on completion and £38,936,000 (for the Equities/Multi-Asset Business) payable on
31 March 2006. The total assumed consideration comprises £200,000,000 for the London Fixed
Income Business, Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and the OEIC Business, £38,936,000 for
the Equities/Multi-Asset Business and £74,275,000 for net assets in excess of £35 million. It is,
however, anticipated that the net assets at closing will be no greater than £60 million, compared to
the net assets of £109,275,000 at 31 December 2004. The assumptions on contingent
consideration represent the Company’s prudent estimate.

(6) The goodwill adjustment has been arrived at by taking the total consideration of £313,211,000 and
_deducting the net assets acquired of £109,275,000 as set out in the aggregated net asset statement
of the Target Companies and the fixed assets of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts as set out

in note 3.

(7) Net gearing for the Aberdeen Group at 31 March 2005 was 128.4 per cent. Based on the
adjustments in the proforma balance sheet above, net gearing reduces to 48.5 per cent. Net gearing
is calculated as total borrowings net of cash at bank and in hand divided by equity shareholders’
funds.

(8) No account has been taken of Aberdeen’s trading since 31 March 2005 or the Target Businesses’
trading since 31 December 2004.

&
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KPMG Audit Plc Tel +44 (0) 1224 591000
Transaction Services Fax +44 (0) 1224 590909
37 Albyn Place DX AB121 Aberdeen 1
Aberdeen AB10 1JB

United Kingdom

The Directors

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
10 Queen’s Terrace

Aberdeen

ABIG 1YG

12 August 2005

Dear Sirs
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC

We report on the pro forma net asset statement (the ‘pro forma financial information’) set out in Part 8
of the Prospectus dated 12 August 2005, which has been prepared on the basis described in notes 1 to
8, for illustrative purposes only, to provide information about how the rights issue and acquisition
might have affected the financial information presented on the basis of the accounting policies to be
adopted by Aberdeen Asset Management PLC in preparing the financial statements for the period
ended 30 September 2005. This report is required by paragraph 13.5.31R of the Listing Rules of the
UK Listing Authority and paragraph 20.2 of Annex 1 of the Prospectus Rules and is given for the
purpose of complying with those paragraphs and for no other purpose.

Responsibilities

It is the responsibility solely of the directors of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC to prepare the pro
forma financial information in accordance with paragraph 13.5.31R of the Listing Rules of the
UK Listing Authority and paragraph 20.2 of Annex I of the Prospectus Rules.

&

It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by paragraph 7 of Annex II of the Prospectus
Rules, as to the proper compilation of the pro forma financial information and to report our opinion to
you.

In providing this opinion we are not updating or refreshing any reports or opinions previously made by
us on any financial information used in the compilation of the pro forma financial information, nor do
we accept responsibility for such reports or opinions beyond that owed to those to whom those reports
or opinions were addressed by us at the dates of their issue.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with Standards for Investment Reporting issued by the Auditing
Practices Board of the United Kingdom. The work that we performed for the purpose of making this
report, which involved no independent examination of any of the underlying financial information,
consisted primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the source documents,
considering the evidence supporting the adjustments and discussing the pro forma financial information
with the directors of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC.

We planned and performed our work so as to obtain the information and explanations we considered
necessary in order to provide us with reasonable assurance that the pro forma financial information has
been properly compiled on the basis stated.

KPMG Audit Ple, a company incorporated under the UK
Companics Acts, is 2 member of KPMG International, a Registered in England No 3110745
Swiss cooperative Registered office: 8 Salisbury Square, London EC4Y 8BB
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KPMG Audit Plc
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
12 August 2005

Our work has not been carried out in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and accordingly should not be relied upon as if it had been carried out in
accordance with those standards.

Opinion
In our opinion:
* the pro forma financial information has been properly compiled on the basis stated;

* such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC.

Declaration

For the purposes of Prospectus Rule 5.5.3R(2)(f) we are responsible for this report as part of the
Document and declare that we have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information contained
in this report is to the best of our knowledge and belief, in accordance with the facts and contains no
omissions likely to affect its import. This declaration is included in the Document in compliance with
paragraph 1.2 of Annex 1 of the Prospectus Rules.

Yours faithfully

KPMG Audit Ple
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PART 9
TAXATION

United Kingdom

The following statements are intended as a general guide only to the position under current UK
taxation legislation and H.M. Revenue & Customs practice as at the date of this document. They
apply only to Qualifying Shareholders who are resident, or in the case of individuals, ordinarily
resident for UK tax purposes in (and only in) the UK (except insofar as express reference is made
to the treatment of non-UK residents), who hold their Ordinary Shares as an investment and who
are the absolute beneficial owners of them. They do not apply to certain types of Shareholders,
sich as insurance companies, collective investment schemes, dealers in securities and
Shareholders who have (or are deemed to have) acquired their Ordinary Shares by reason of or
in connection with an office or employment. They relate only to certain limited aspects of the
taxation treatment of Qualifying Shareholders.

Special tax provisions may apply to Qualifying Shareholders who have acquired or who acquire
their Ordinary Shares under the Aberdeen Share Option Schemes.

Any person who is any doubt about his/her own tax position, or who is resident in or subject to
tax in a jurisdiction other than the UK, should consult an appropriate independent professional
adviser without delay.

Rights Issue

For the purposes of UK taxation of chargeable gains a Qualifying Shareholder who accepts the Rights
Issue and takes up all or part of his rights to New Ordinary Shares, and thereby acquires New Ordinary
Shares, should not be regarded as making a part disposal of his existing holding of Ordinary Shares
whether under Section 22 or 122 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act or otherwise. The cost of any
New Ordinary Shares subscribed for by a Shareholder pursuant to the Rights Issue should generally be
added to the base cost of the Shareholder’s Existing Ordinary Shares. This means that the
Shareholder’s Existing Ordinary Shares and the New Ordinary Shares should be treated as the same
asset for the purposes of UK taxation of chargeable gains.
t<)

Taxation of income

New Ordinary Shares Dividends

Aberdeen will not be required to withhold UK tax at source when paying a dividend on the New
Ordinary Shares. ~

An individual Shareholder who is resident in the United Kingdom (for tax purposes) and who receives
a dividend from Aberdeen will be entitled to a tax credit which such Shareholder may set off against
his total income tax liability on the dividend. The tax credit will be equal to 10 per cent. of the
aggregate of the dividend and the tax credit (the “gross dividend™), which is also equal to one-ninth of
the cash dividend received. A United Kingdom resident individual Shareholder who is liable to income
tax at the starting or basic rate will be subject to tax on the dividend at the rate of 10 per cent. of the
gross dividend, so that the tax credit will satisfy in full such Shareholder’s liability to income tax on the
dividend. A United Kingdom resident individual Shareholder who is not liable to income tax in respect
of the gross dividend will not be entitled to repayment of the tax credit. In the case of a United
Kingdom resident individual Shareholder who is liable to income tax at the higher rate, the tax credit
will be set against but not fully match his tax liability on the gross dividend and he will have to account
for additional tax equal to 22.5 per cent. of the gross dividend (which is also equal to 25 per cent. of the
cash dividend received) to the extent that the gross dividend when treated as the top slice of his income
falls above the threshold for higher rate income tax.

United Kingdom resident Shareholders who are not liable to United Kingdom tax on dividends,
including pension funds and charities, will not be entitled to claim repayment of the tax credit attaching
to dividends paid by Aberdeen.

Non-United Kingdom resident Shareholders will not generally be able to claim repayment from
H.M. Revenue and Customs of any part of the tax credit attaching to dividends paid by Aberdeen. A
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Shareholder resident outside the United Kingdom may also be subject to foreign taxation on dividend
income under local law. A Shareholder who is not resident in the United Kingdom (for tax purposes)
should consult his own tax adviser concerning his tax liabilities on dividends received from Aberdeen.

Taxation of capital gains
) UK resident Shareholders

A disposal of New Ordinary Shares by a Shareholder may, depending on the Shareholder’s
circumstances, and subject to any available exemption or relief, give rise to a chargeable gain or an
allowable loss for the purposes of UK taxation of chargeable gains.

Taper relief may be available to an individual Shareholder, which may operate to reduce the percentage
of any gain which becomes chargeable on the disposal of the New Ordinary Shares provided that such
Shareholder has retained those New Ordinary Shares for the relevant period. Where the issue of New
Ordinary Shares has been treated as a reorganisation, the deemed period of ownership (since 6 April
1998) of the holding of the Shareholder’s New Ordinary Shares, determined by reference to the
holding period of the Shareholder’s Existing Ordinary Shares, is taken into account when assessing the
availability of taper relief.

In the case of a Shareholder within the charge to UK corporation tax, the subscription price for the
New Ordinary Shares will qualify for indexation allowance from the date on which the relevant
Shareholder paid or became liable to pay for such New Ordinary Shares (and not, where the issue of
those shares has been treated as a reorganisation, at the time the New Ordinary Shares were deemed to
be acquired).

(i)  Non-UK resident Shareholders

A Shareholder who is neither resident nor, in the case of an individual, ordinarily resident in the UK
will not be liable for UK tax on chargeable gains realised on the disposal of his/herfits New Ordinary
Shares unless such Shareholder carries on:

(A)  (in the case of Shareholders other than companies (including persons deemed to be companies) a
trade, profession or vocation in the UK through a branch or agency and has used, held or

acquired the New Ordinary Shares for the purposes of such trade, profession or vocation or such
branch or agency; or s

(B) (in the case of Shareholders which are companies (including persons deemed to be companies),
body corporates or unincorporated associations) a trade or vocation in the UK through a
permanent establishment and has used, held or acquired the New Ordinary Shares in or for the
purposes of the trade or vocation or has used, held or acquired the New Ordinary Shares for the
purposes of such permanent establishment.

However, a Shareholder who is an individual and who is only temporarily resident outside the UK for
UK tax purposes at the date of a disposal of the New Ordinary Shares may be liable to UK tax on
chargeable gains on becoming resident or ordinarily resident in the UK again, in respect of disposals
made while he was temporarily resident outside the UK, subject to any available exemption or relief.

Shareholders who are neither resident nor, in the case of an individual, ordinarily resident in the UK
may be subject to foreign taxation on any gain under local law.

UK Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax (“SDRT”’)

No liability to stamp duty or SDRT will generally arise on the allotment and issue of New Ordinary
Shares by the Company pursuant to the Rights Issue. Any subsequent dealings in New Ordinary Shares
will normally be subject to stamp duty or SDRT. The transfer on sale of New Ordinary Shares will
usually be liable to ad valorem stamp duty, at the rate of 0.5 per cent. (rounded up, if necessary, to the
next multiple of £5) of the amount or value of the consideration paid. Stamp duty will normally be paid
by the purchaser or transferee of the New Ordinary Shares. An unconditional agreement to transfer
New Ordinary Shares will normally give rise to a charge to SDRT, at the rate of 0.5 per cent. of the
amount or value of the consideration payable for such shares, but such liability will be cancelled, or
any SDRT paid refunded, if the agreement is completed by a duly stamped instrument of transfer
within six years of the date of the agreement or, if the agreement was conditional, the date on which the
agreement became unconditional. SDRT will normally be the liability of the purchaser or transferee of
the New Ordinary Shares.
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Under the CREST system for paperless share transfers, no stamp duty or SDRT will arise on a transfer
of shares into the system, unless the transfer into CREST is itself for consideration in money or
money’s worth, in which case a liability to SDRT will arise, usually at the rate of 0.5 per cent. of the
amount or value of consideration given. Transfers of shares within CREST are generally liable to
SDRT at the rate of 0.5 per cent. of the amount or value of the consideration payable rather than stamp
duty, and SDRT on relevant transactions settled within the system or reported through it for regulatory
purposes will be collected and accounted for to H.M. Revenue & Customs by CRESTCo.

The above statements are intended to be a general guide to the current stamp duty and SDRT position.
Certain categories of person are not liable to stamp duty or SDRT and others may be liable at a higher
rate as mentioned above or may, although not primarily liable for the tax, be required to notify and
account for it. Special rules apply to agreements made by market intermediaries and to certain sale and
repurchase and stock borrowing arrangements. Agreements to transfer shares to charities will not give
rise to stamp duty or SDRT.
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1.1

1.2

13

14

2.1

PART 10
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Introduction

The Company was incorporated and registered in Scotland under the Companies Act 1948
to 1981 on 2 March 1983 with registered number 82015 as a private company limited by shares
with the name Arsino Limited. The Company changed its name to Aberdeen Fund Managers
Limited on 13 April 1983, to Abtrust Holdings Limited on 23 December 1987 and to Aberdeen
Trust Holdings Limited on 13 June 1988. On 12 September 1989, the Company re-registered as
a public company limited by shares, on 22 March 1991 it changed its name to Aberdeen
Trust PLC and on 1 May 1997 changed its name to Aberdeen Asset Management PLC.
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC is the legal and commercial name of the Company.

The Company’s head offices and principal places of business are at 10 Queen’s Terrace,
Aberdeen ABIO 1YG and One Bow Churchyard, Cheapside, London EC4M 9HH. The
Company’s telephone number is 01224 631999.

The principal legislation under which the Company operates and the Existing Ordinary Shares
have been and the New Ordinary Shares will be created is the Companies Act.

The Company’s registered office is at 10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen AB10 1YG.
Share Capital

The authorised and issued and fully paid up share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2005
is set out in the table below:

Issued and

Authorised Nominal fully paid & Nominal
No. of Shares® Value No. of Shares™ Value
£ ®
Ordinary Shares of 10p ........ 335,000,000 33,500,000 236,198,997 23,619,899
Preference Shares of £100" .. .. 125,000 12,500,000 . - — _
Redeemable Preference Shares
of £1. ... ... ... . 39,000,000 39,000,000 —_ —_
Performance Shares 1997 of 50p 500,000 250,000 — —
Performance Shares 1998 of 50p 500,000 250,000 _ C—_
Performance Shares 1999 of 50p 500,000 250,000 — —
Performance Shares 2000 of 50p 500,000 250,000 — —
Performance Shares 2001 of 50p 500,000 250,000 — —
Deferred Shares of 10p ........ 12,500,000 1,250,000 — —
Total ....... ... ... 389,125,000 87,500,000 236,198,997 23,619,899
Notes:

(1) 80,000 Preference Shares of £100 were issued on 30 June 2005 as detailed in this Part 10, paragraph 2.3(vi) of this document.

(2) The authorised share capital of the Company also includes 125,000 non-cumulative. non-voting perpetual preference shares of
US$100 each and 125.000 non-cumulative, non-voting perpetual preference shares of €100 each which, if remaining unissued,
will be cancelled on 30 September 2005. Any unissued Preference Shares will also be cancelled on 30 September 2005.

(3) As at 9 August 2005, there were 241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares in issue.

The authorised and issued and fully paid up share capital of the Company as it will be
immediately following the Rights Issue (assuming Qualifying Shareholders take up their full
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rights under the Rights Issue, that no share options are exercised under the Aberdeen Share
Option Schemes and that no Bonds are converted into Ordinary Shares) is as follows:

Issued and
Authorised Nominal fully paid Nominal
No. of Shares'? Value No. of Shares® Value
£) (£9]
Ordinary Shares of 10p ............. 1,000,000,000 100,000,000 604,788,742 60,478,874
Preference Shares of £100........... 125,000 12,500,000 80,000 8,000,000
Redeemable Preference Shares of £1 .. 39,000,000 39,000,000 — —_—
Performance Shares 1997 of S0p ..... 500,000 250,000 — —
Performance Shares 1998 of 50p ..... 500,000 250,000 — —
Performance Shares 1999 of 50p ..... 500,000 250,000 — —
Performance Shares 2000 of S0p .. ... 500,000 250,000 — —
Performance Shares 2001 of 50p ..... 500,000 250,000 — —_
Deferred Shares of 10p . ............ 12,500,000 1,250,000 — —_
Total ... 1,054,125,000 154,000,000 604,868,742 68,478,874
Notes:

(1) The authorised share capital of the Company also includes 125,000 non-cumulative, non-voting perpetual preference shares of
US$100 each and 125,000 non-cumulative, non-voting perpetual preference shares of €100 each which, if remaining unissued,
will be cancelled on 30 September 2005. Any unissued Preference Shares will also be cancelled on 30 September 2005.

(2) Including 362,873,245 New Ordinary Shares, being the issue of 3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary Shares as
at the date of this document when there were 241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares in issue.

The shareholdings of existing Shareholders who choose not to take up their rights under the
Rights Issue will be diluted by approximately 60.0 per cent.

On 21 December 2000, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from £25,000,000 to £64,000,000 by the creation of 39,000,000 Redeemable Preference Shares.
On 18 January 2002, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from £64,000,000 to £75,000,000 by the creation of 110,000,000 Aberdeen Ordinary Shares. On
24 March 2005 the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from £75,000,000
to £87,500,000, US$12,500,000 and €12,500,000 by the creation of 125,000 non-cumulative,
non-voting perpetual preference shares of £100 each, 125,000 non-cumulative, non-voting
perpetual preference shares of US$100 each and 125 000 non- cumulatlve non-voting perpetual
preference shares of €100 each.

During the three years preceding the date of this document there have been the following
changes in the issued share capital of the Company:

(i)  Share options pursuant to the Aberdeen Share Option Schemes have been exercised
resulting in an aggregate of 845,957 Ordinary Shares being issued at the following
exercise prices:

Exercise

Number of Ordinary Shares Year Price
(pence)
41,500, ... oo e e e 2004 59
320,000, . . e e e 2004 Olp
A05,457 . e e e 2004 60.25p
B2,500. . 2004 59p
12,500, o e e e 2005 101p

24,000 ... 2005 59p
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Conversion rights have been exercised at the following conversion prices resulting in the
issue of an aggregate of 1,373,076 Ordinary Shares:

Conversion
Number of Ordinary Shares Year Price
(pence)
576 2002 520
1,372,500 2003 50

Notes:
(1) Following conversion of the 2007 Bonds

(2) Following conversion of Performance Shares

The following Ordinary Shares have been issued as consideration in connection with the
acquisition of the undernoted companies:

Number of Shares Price Year Acquisition
®
379,897 Ordinary Shares 207.5p 2002 10 per cent. of Globe
Financial Investment
58,473,794 Ordinary Shares 86.26p 2003 100 per cent. of Edinburgh
Fund Managers Group plc

10,342,746 Redeemable Preference Shares were redeemed on 31 October 2003 and there
are no Redeemable Preference Shares remaining in issue.

5,680,000 Ordinary Shares were issued to the trustee of the LTIP on 13 May 2005
pursuant to the LTIP.

80,000 Convertible Preference Share Units (each comprising one Preference Share and
one Warrant) were issued on 30 June 2005 in connection with the placing and open offer
of the Company and Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited dated 3 June 2005.

If the Resolution to be proposed at the Extraordinary General Meeting is passed:

@

(i)

the authorised share capital of the Company will be increased from £87,500,000 to
£154,000,000 by the creation of 665,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each; and

Directors will be generally and unconditionally authorised, in accordance with section 80
of the Companies Act, to allot relevant securities (as defined in section 80(2) of the
Companies Act) of the Company up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount of
£486,000,000 in connection with the Rights Issue representing 67 per cent. of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the New Ordinary
Shares pursuant to the Rights Issue provided that:

(a)  the authority shall expire (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in
general meeting) at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company to be held in 2006; and

(b) the Company shall be entitled to make, prior to the expiry of such authority, any
offer or agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted
after the expiry of such authority and the Directors may allot securities in
pursuance of such offer or agreement as if such authority had not expired.

Other than the issue of New Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Rights Issue, the Directors have no
present intention of issuing any of the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company; and
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Directors’ and other interests

The Directors of the Company, each of whose business address is 10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen

AB10 1YG and their functions in relation to the Group are as follows:

Name

Charles Leonard Anthony Irby FCA

Martin James Gilbert MA LLB LLD CA ..

Andrew Arthur Laing MA LLB ......
William John Rattray MA CA .......
Donald Henry Waters OBE CA .. ....

Function(s) within the Group

Chairman

Chief Executive
Executive Director
Finance Director
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Roger Courtenay Cornick ............... Independent Non-Executive Director

Anita Margaret Frew BA Hons MPhii .. ... Independent Non-Executive Director

Rt. Hon. Sir Malcolm Rifkind QC MP . ... Independent Non-Executive Director

Christopher Giles Herron Weaver FCA . ... Independent Non-Executive Director

The interests of the Directors, all of which are beneficial, in the share capital of the Company

which:

(a)  have been notified by each Director to the Company pursuant to section 324 or 328 of the
Companies Act and entered in the register maintained under section 325 of the
Companies Act; and

(b) are required pursuant to section 325 of the Companies Act to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or

(c) are interests of a connected person of a Director which would, if the connected person

were a Director, be required to be disclosed under (a) and (b) above, and the existence of
which is known to or could with reasonable diligence be ascertained by that Director as at
9 August 2005 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document)
and as they will be immediately following the Rights Issue, based on the assumptions set
out below, are as follows:

Present®

Percentage of Percentage of

Number of issued Number of issued
Ordinary Ordinary Preference Preference

. Shares Share Capital Shares Share Capital
O MIGHbert™ 4,067,998 1.68 . 100 0.13
w1 Rattra?r(”“) e 973,772 0.40 50 006
AALaing®. . ... ... ... .. ... 200,176 0.08 13 0.02
CLAIby" ... ... .. 45,000 0.02 — —
AMFrew.............iviiit 15,000 0.006 — —
DHWaters ..................... 10,000 0.004 —
CGHWeaver” ................. 10,000 0.004 2 0.002
RCComick..................... 4,400 0.002 — —
Rt Hon Sir Malcolm Rifkind ....... 1,000  0.0004 — -—

Following the Rights Issue®®®

Percentage of Percentage of

Number of issued Number of issued
Ordinary Ordinary Preference Preference

Shares Share Capital Shares Share Capital
MIJIGilbert” ... ... ... 7,067,998 1.17 100 0.13
W J Rattray'™™® ... 1,700,000 0.28 50 0.06
AALaing®. ... ... 500,440 0.08 13 0.02
CLAIbYY ... 112,500 0.02 — —
AMFrew.......... ..ot 37,500 0.006 — —
DHWaters ..................... 25,000 0.004 — —
CGHWeaver” ................. 25,000 0.004 2 0.002
RCComick..................... 11,000  0.002 — —
Rt Hon Sir Malcolm Rifkind ....... 1,000 0.0002 _— —
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3.5

3.6

Notes:

(1) Messrs Rattray, Irby and Weaver hold 100, 31 and 6 respectively of the 2007 Bonds totalling in aggregate a principal
amount of £68,500.

(2) Based on the assumption that no share options are exercised under the Aberdeen Share Option Schemes and no Bonds
are converted into Ordinary Shares.

(3) Based on indications received from the Directors of their intention to take up their entitlements under the Rights Issue.

(4) Includes Ordinary Shares issued to Directors under the LTIP, all of which have forfeiture conditions attached until
fully vested under the LTIP details of which are set out in subparagraph 3.4 below.

(5) Including 362,873,245 New Ordinary Shares, being the issue of 3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary
Shares as at the date of this document when there were 241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares in issue.

As at 9 August 2005 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document), the
following options over Ordinary Shares have been granted to Directors of the Company under
the Company’s 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme and are outstanding:

Date of No. of Exercise
Director Grant Options Price Exercise Period
MIJIGibert............. ... ... 9.7.98 50,000 121p Jul 2003 to  Jul 2008

20.1.99 175,000 101p Jan 2004 to Jan 2009

8.12.99 240,000 261p Dec 2004 to Dec 2009

26.6.00 400,000 331p Jun 2003 to Jun 2010

5.6.01 200,000 585p Jun 2004 to Jun 2011

23.1.04 413,000 84p Jan 2007 to Jan 2014

AAlaing .......... ... ... ... 9.7.98 10,000 121p Jul 2003 to Jul 2008
20.1.99 150,000 101p Jan 2004 to Jan 2009

8.12.99 200,000 261p Dec 2004 to Dec 2009

11.6.03 89,000 59 Jun 2006 to Jun 2013

23.1.04 89,000 84p Jan 2007 to Jan 2014

WIJIRattray ............ ..o 9.7.98 10,000 121p Jul 2003 to Jul 2008
20.1.99 75,000 101p Jan 2004 to Jan 2009

8.12.99 100,000 261p Dec 2004 to Dec 2009

26.6.00 75,000 531p Jun 2003 to Jun 2010

5.6.01 120,000 585p Jun 2004 to Jun 2011

23.1.04 144,000 84p Jan 2007 to Jan 2014

As at 9 August 2005 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document), the
following Awards over Ordinary Shares have been made to Directors of the Company under the
LTIP, the full vesting of which is conditional upon the satisfaction of certain performance
conditions stipulated in the LTIP rules: '

No. of Shares
Date of over which

Director ) Grant awards made
Martin James Gilbert ... ... i e 6.05.05 140,000
Andrew Arthur Laing . ........ .. 6.05.05 110,000

William John Rattray ........... i 6.05.05 110,000

No Director of the Company has or has had any interest in any transaction which is or was
unusual in its nature or conditions or significant to the business of the Company which was
effected by the Company during the current or immediately preceding financial year or was
effected during an earlier financial year and remains in any respect outstanding or unperformed.

As at 9 August 2005 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document)
and immediately following implementation of the Rights Issue, in so far as is known to the
Company, the following persons (excluding Directors of the Company) were interested directly

77

Aberdeen 0082



or indirectly in 3 per cent. or more of the issued share capital of the Company (calculated
exclusive of treasury shares) and based on the assumptions set out below:

Following the
Present" Rights Issue™
Percentage Percentage
Number of of issued Number of of issued
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary
Shares Share Capital Shares Share Capital
Schroder Investment Management Limited .... 23,265,423 9.62 58,163,557 9.62
UBS Global Asset Management ........ ... 21,451,322 8.87 53,628,305 8.87
Lansdowne Partners ..............c...o.. .. 19,614,682 8.11 49,036,705 8.11
Jupiter Asset Management ................. 13,562,643 5.61 33,906,607 5.61
Liontrust Asset Management................ 12,068,333 4.99 30,170,832 499
Goldman Sachs International ............... 9,369,536 3.87 23,423,840 3.87
Fidelity Investments .. ..................... 9,293,160 3.84 23,232,900 3.84
Legal & General Investment Management
Limited . .......o i 8,786,990 3.63 21,967,475 3.63
Barclays Global Investors .................. 8,546,726 3.53 21,366,815 353
SKAGEN Fondene .. ...... ... 8,101,000 3.35 20,252,500 3.35
Notes:

(1) Based on the assumption that no share options are exercised under the Aberdeen Share Option Schemes and no Bonds are
converted into Ordinary Shares.

(2) Based on the assumption that these Shareholders take up their full entitlement under the Rights [ssue.

(3) Including 362.873,245 New Ordinary Shares, being the issue of 3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary Shares as
at the date of this document when there were 241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares in issue.

3.7 JPMorgan, which has underwritten the Rights Issue on behalf of JPMorgan Cazenove, holds
3,823,205 Ordinary Shares, 31,416 Convertible Preference Share Units, £2,646,500 in principal
amount of the 2007 Bonds and £9,260,000 in principal amount of 2010 Bonds.

3.8  The Company is not aware of any person who can, will or could, directly or indirectly, jointly or
severally, exercise control over the Company or any arrangement, the operation of which may at
a subsequent date result in a change of control of the Company. None of the Shareholders
detailed at paragraph 3.6 above, have different voting rights than the Ordinary Shareholders.

39 Save as disclosed in this paragraph 3 and paragraph 8 below, no share or loan capital of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries is under option or is agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be put under option.

3.10 The Company has not entered into any rélAa.t‘é&:;‘)ar'ty transactions.

3.11 There are no outstanding loans granted by any member of the Group to any of the Directors of
the Company nor is any guarantee provided by any member of the Group for the benefit of any
of the Directors of the Company.

3.12 Details of those companies and partnerships of which the Directors have been directors or
partners (excluding subsidiaries of such companies) at any time over the past five years
preceding the date hereof are as follows:

Charles Leonard Anthony Irby
Current Directorships

North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC, QBE Insurance Group lelted Great
Portland Estates PLC ‘

Previous Directorships
EC Harris LLP

Roger Courtenay Cornick
Current Directorships
River & Rowing Museum (Trading) Limited, River and Rowing Museum Foundation
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Previous Directorships

Invesco Pensions Limited, Invesco Fund Managers Limited, Invesco Asset Management
Limited, Perpetual PLC, Invesco Administration Services Limited, The Independent Platform
Limited, Openforum Financial Services Limited

Anita Margaret Frew
Current Directorships

Victrex PLC, Securities Trust of Scotland Public Limited Company, Northumbrian Water
Limited.

Previous Directorships

Abbott Mead Vickers Group Limited, The Gate Theatre Company Limited, Ergo-Id Limited,
Frew MacMaster Limited, Donmar Warehouse Projects Limited, Archant Regional Limited,
NXT PLC, Archant Limited

Rt. Hon. Sir Malcolm Rifkind
Current Directorships
Abraxa Limited, Alliance Medical Holdings Limited, Armorgroup International plc

Previous Directorships

Authorizor Inc., St Andrew Trust Public Limited Company, Ramco Energy PLC, F & C
Emerging Markets Investment Trust PLC, British Assets Trust PLC

Donald Henry Waters
Current Directorships
James Johnstone & Company of Elgin Limited

Previous Directorships
SMG Plc, Dawn Chorus (Holdings)

Christopher Giles Herron Weaver
Current Directorships

Charter Pan-European Trust PLC, Helical Bar PLC, Isotron PLC, Investec High Income Trust
PLC, Investec High Income Securities PLC, James Finlay Limited, Anglo & Overseas Trust
PLC, Isis Property Trust 2, Gartmore SICAV, Charter European Trust plc (in liquidation)

Previous Directorships

Charter Cash Fund Limited, Gartmore Capital Strategy Fund Limited, Euractions Management
Limited, James Finlay Employees’ Trustees Limited, Leander Consulting Limited, Mid-small
Ark Plc, Murray Emerging Growth and Income Trust PLC, Historic Houses Association

Martin James Gilbert
Current Directorships

Aberdeen Asian Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC, Aberdeen Asia-Pacific Income Fund
Inc., Aberdeen Development Capital PLC, Aberdeen Global Income Fund, Inc., Aberdeen
Emerging Asia Investment Trust Limited (in liquidation), Aberdeen Emerging Economies
Investment Trust PLC (in liquidation), Aberdeen Football Club PLC, Aberdeen Global,
Aberdeen Growth Opportunities VCT PLC, Aberdeen Growth Opportunities VCT 2 PLC,
Aberdeen Growth VCT 1 PLC, ADC Zeros 2005 PLC, Balgranach Properties Limited, Bogey
One Limited, Chaucer Holdings PLC, Firstgroup PLC, Fund Distribution Limited, Jersey
Phoenix Trust Limited, Maryculter House Hotel Limited, Mountwest 480 Limited, New Asia
(Isle of Man) Limited, Pointon York Nominees Limited, Primary Health Properties PLC,
Templar Hotels Limited, The Enhanced Zero Trust Ple, Thefirstcall Limited, The London
Market Fund PLC, The Turkey Trust Plc (in liquidation)
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3.14

3.15

3.16

Previous Directorships

Aberdeen Convertible Income Trust PLC, Aberdeen Growth VCT II Limited (dissolved),
Aberdeen International Fund PLC, Aberdeen Investment Services SA, Aberdeen Latin
American Investment Trust PLC, Aberdeen New Thai Investment Trust PLC, Aberdeen
Umbrella Cash Fund PLC, Broadgate Investment Trust PLC, Criterion Properties PLC,
Easyfollow Limited, Grampian Country Food Group Limited, Grampian Enterprise Limited,
Healthcare Reform Investment Trust PLC, Hillcrest Mews No 2 Limited, Lombard International
Assurance SA, New City High Yield Trust pic, Phoenix-Aberdeen International Advisers LLC,
Scottish Enterprise Grampian Limited, Scottish Medicine Limited, The Taverners Trust PLC

William John Rattray
Current Directorships
Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited

Previous Directorships

None

Andrew Arthur Laing
Current Directorships

Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited

Previous Directorships

Aberdeen Development Capital PLC, Aberdeen New Thai Investment Trust Plc, Atlantic
Telecom Group PLC, Hayig Limited, Media Zeros Plc, The Media and Income Trust Plc

As at the date of this document, none of the Directors have any convictions in relation to
fraudulent offences. No Director has been the subject of any official public incriminations and/or
had sanctions imposed upon him by any statutory or regulatory authorities (including designated
professional bodies). No Director has ever been disqualified by a court from acting as a member
of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of a company or partnership or from
acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any company or partnership in the
previous five year period. There have been no bankruptcies, receiverships or liquidations of

_ companies or partnerships in respect of which any Director was a member of the administrative,

management or supervisory body or was a senior manager and with which he was associated
over at least the previous five years.

There are no potential conflicts of interests between any of the Directors’ duties to the Company
and their private interests and or other duties. i

The remuneration paid and benefits in kind granted to the Directors of the Company by the
Company’s group during the financial year ended 30 September 2004 is as follows:

£
M T GIIbert . oot e e e £461,000
A I 2 L £208,000
A A LAINg. oot e e e £268,000
C L A DY .ot e e e e £75,000
A M EreW . e e e e —
C G H Weaver ..ot e e e e e e e e e e £31,000
R C COmiCK . oottt e e e e e £21,000
Rt Hon Sir Malcolm Rifkind . . ... ... . £34,000
D H W aters . .ot e £37,000

The total amount set aside or accrued by the Aberdeen Group to provide pension, retirement or
similar benefits to the Directors is £115,000.
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3.17 Each of the executive directors of the Company has a service contract with the Company the

3.18

principal features of which are set out below:

Notice period Notice Period
to be given by to be given by Annual
Date the Director the Company Salary
MIGilbert.................... 30/8/1996 6 months 1 year £400,000
AAlaing .................... 30/8/1996 6 months 1 year £250,000
WIRattray ...........onnn.. 30/8/1996 6 months 1 year £180,000

The principal terms of the service contracts are that the executive directors have an annual salary
review on 30 September in each year; are entitled to a discretionary annual bonus, participation
in the pension scheme, life assurance scheme, permanent health insurance and private medical
insurance, 30 days annual leave, payment for up to 180 days sick leave in any 12 calendar
months; and are subject to 12 month post termination restrictive covenants against competing
with the Aberdeen Group and solicitation of staff.

Each of the non-executive Directors is engaged under a letter of appointment and does not have
a service contract with the Company.

Audit and Remuneration Committee
Audit Committee
4,1.1 Members

The Audit Committee is chaired by Donald Waters and its members are Anita Frew and Giles
Weaver.

4.1.2 Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee
Membership

The Committee shall be appointed by the Board and shall consist of not less than three
members, all of whom should be independent non-executive directors. At least one member of
the Committee shall have recent relevant financial knowledge. The Board will also appoint the
Committee Chairman and in the absence of the Chairman the remaining members present shall
elect one of their number to chair the meeting. The quorum shall be two members.

" Attendance at meetings

Only members of the Committee shall have an automatic right of attendance at Committee
meetings. The Board Chairman, other non-executive directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the
Finance Director, the Head of Internal Audit and a representative of the external auditors shall
attend the Committee meetings at the invitation of the Committee. The Chairman of the
meeting, at his discretion, may also.call upon any-other person to attend as and when
appropriate. The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee.

Frequency of meetings

Meetings shall be held not less than three times a year and as otherwise required to enable the
Committee to fulfil its obligations to the Company.

Authority
The Committee is authorised to:

(a)  seek any information it reasonably requires from any employee of the Group in order to
perform its duties;

(b) obtain, at the Company’s expense outside legal or other professional advice on any
matters within its terms of reference; and

(¢) call any employee to be questioned at a meeting of the Committee as and when required.
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Duties

(a)

(®)

(©)

(d

Financial Reporting:

(i)  to monitor the integrity of the annual, interim and preliminary financial statements
of the Company reviewing significant financial reporting issues and judgements
which they contain; and

(1)  to review and challenge where necessary:
(aa) the consistency of, and any changes to, accounting policies

(bb) whether the company has followed appropriate accounting standards and
made appropriate estimates and judgements, taking into account the view of
the external auditor

(cc) the clarity of disclosure in the Company’s financial reports.
Internal Controls and Risk Management
The Committee shall:
@) receive and consider the reports of the Risk Management Committee;

(ii)  keep under review the effectiveness of the company’s intemnal controls and risk
management systems and to approve the relevant statements to be included in the
Annual Report; and

(ili) keep under review the Company’s arrangements for its employees to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or other
matters.

Internal Audit

The Committee shall:

@) consider and approve the terms of reference of the internal audit function;
(i)  review and assess the annual internal audit plan;

(iii) review and monitor management’s responsiveness to the findings and
recommendations of the internal auditor;

(iv) review and monitor the effectiveness of the company’s internal audit function; and

(v)  meet the head of internal audit at least once a year, without management being
present, to discuss their remit and any issues arising from their work. The head of
internal audit has a right of direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

External Audit
The Committee shall:

(i)  consider and make recommendations to the Board, on the appointment and re-
appointment of the Company’s external auditors;

(i)  approve the level of remuneration. for the auditors and the terms of their
engagement, and develop and implement a policy on the provision of non audit
services;

(iii) review and approve the annual audit plan and subsequently review the findings and
effectiveness of the audit;

(iv) meet regularly with the auditors, with at least one meeting being held annually
without management present in order to discuss their remit and any issues arising
from the audit;

(v)  review any representation letters requested by the auditors before they are signed
by management;
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4.2

(vi) review the management letter and management’s subsequent response; and
(vii) assess annually the independence and objectivity of the external auditors.
Reporting to the Board

Minutes of the Committee meetings shall be circulated to all members of the Committee and
made available on request to all other members of the Board. The Chairman of the Committee
shall report formally to the Board on the Committee’s proceedings after each meeting.

Reporting to the shareholders

The Committee shall review and approve the statements to be included in the Annual Report
concerning internal controls and risk management. The Committee shall make a statement in the
Annual Report on its activities. The Chairman of the Committee shall attend the Annual General
Meeting prepared to respond to any shareholder questions on the Committee’s activities.

Performance

The Committee shall, at least once a year, review its own performance, constitution and terms of
reference to ensure that it is operating effectively and, if relevant, to recommend any changes
necessary to the Board.

Remuneration Committee
42.1 Members

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Sir Malcolm Rifkind and its members are Roger
Cornick and Giles Weaver.

4.2.2 Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee
Membership

The Committee shall be appointed by the Board and shall consist of not less than three
members, all of whom should be independent non-executive directors. The Board will also
appoint the Committee Chairman and in the absence of the Chairman the remaining members
present shall elect one of their number to chair the meeting. The quorum shall be two members.

Attendance at meetings

Other directors of the Company shall not normally attend the meetings, nor shall they have the
automatic right to attend. The Chairman of the meeting, at his discretion, may call upon any
other person to attend as and when appropriate. The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to
the Committee.

Frequency of meetings

Meetings shall be held as required to enable the Committee to fulfil its obligations to the
Company.

Authority

The Committee is authorised to seek any information it reasonably requires from any employee
of the Group in order to perform its duties. The Committee is authorised to obtain, at the
Company’s expense outside legal or other professional advice on any matters within its terms of
reference.

Duties
The Committee shall:

(a)  determine the specific remuneration packages for the Chief Executive, the Chairman and
the executive directors. The remuneration of non-executive directors shall be a matter for
the Chairman and the executive directors;

(b)  determine the specific remuneration packages for other executives earning £100,000 or
over;

(c)  consider the recruitment of any employee with a basic salary of £100,000 or more;
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(d) consider redundancy/severance payments in excess of the general policy of one month’s
salary for every year of service, capped at a maximum level of three years;

(e)  determine the allocation of any annual bonus payments;

()  approve the design of and determine targets for, any performance related pay schemes,
operated by the company and approve the. total annual payments made under such
schemes;

(g) approve the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the Board and shareholders
and for such plans agree annually, the performance targets to be used, whether or not
awards will be made and if so, the overall amounts of such awards and the individual
awards to the executive directors and all other executives earning in excess of £100,000;

(h)  review and note annually the remuneration trends across the group;
(i)  oversee any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Group;

(j))  be responsible for setting terms of reference and for appointing any remuneration
consultants who advise the Committee; and

(k) review and consider salaries and packages provided in competitor companies.
Reporting to the Board

Minutes of the Committee meetings shall be circulated to all members of the Committee and
made available on request to all other members of the Board. The Chairman of the Committee
shall report formally to the Board on the Committee’s proceedings after each meeting.

Reporting to the shareholders

The Committee shall make a statement in the annual report detailing the Group’s remuneration
policy and practices. The Chairman of the Committee shall attend the Annual General Meeting
prepared to respond to any shareholder questions on the Committee’s activities.

Performance

The Committee shall, at least once a year, review its own performance, constitution and terms of
reference to ensure that it is operating effectively and, if relevant, to recommend any changes
necessary to the Board.

5. Corporate Governance

The Company complies with the Combined Code on Corporate Governance published by the Financial
Reporting Council.

6. Memorandum and Articles of Association of Aberdeen

The Memorandum of Association of the Company provides that the Company’s principal objects are to -
carry on the business of investment and financial managers, advisers and consultants. The objects of the
Company are set out in full in clause 4 of its Memorandum of Association. The Articles (as amended
by resolution dated 14 January 2000) contain, inter alia, provisions to the following effect:

Voting Rights

) Subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any Ordinary Shares may be issued or may
for the time being be held, every holder of an Ordinary Share who, being an individual present
in person or, being a corporation, is present by a duly authorised corporate representative shall
have one vote on a show of hands and, on a poll, every such holder present shall have one vote
for every Ordinary Share of which it is the registered holder.

(ii) The duly authorised representative of a corporate member may exercise the same powers on
behalf of that corporation as it could exercise if it were an individual member. On a poll, votes
may be made in person or by proxy.
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(i) A member is not entitled to vote in respect of any share unless all calls or other moneys due and
payable by it in respect of those shares in the Company have been paid.

Suspension of Rights

Where a member or any other person who appears to be interested in shares held by a member has been
duly served with a notice under section 212 of the Companies Act and, having failed to supply the
Company with the information thereby required, or having supplied information which in the opinion
of the directors is false or misleading in any material respect, within the period specified in such notice
(being not less than 14 days where such shares represent at least 0.25 per cent. of their class and, in any
other case, 28 days from the date of service of such notice), is served with a disenfranchisement notice:

(1)  such member shall not be entitled to attend meetings or vote or to exercise any other right
conferred by membership in relation to meetings; and

(ii)  where such shares represent at least 0.25 per cent. in nominal value of their class:

(a) %my dividends or other sums payable in respect of capital in respect of such shares may be
withheld (except on a winding up of the Company); and

(b)  no transfer, other than an approved transfer, of shares held by the member shall be
registered unless the member can establish that he is not in default in supplying the
information or that no person in default in supplying the information is interested in the
shares: An approved transfer is defined in the Articles as a transfer pursuant to acceptance
of an offer made to all holders of shares or any class of shares, a transfer through the
London Stock Exchange or any recognised stock exchange or recognised clearing house
or any stock exchange or market outside the UK in which the Company’s shares are
normally traded or a transfer which is shown to the satisfaction of the Board (as defined
in the Articles) to be made in consequence of a bona fide sale of the whole of the
beneficial interest in the shares in question to a person who is unconnected with the
holder of such shares and with any other person appearing to be interested in such shares.
Such disentitlement will apply only for so long as the notice from the Company has not
been complied with and unless otherwise determined by the Board for a period of one
week therezfter.

Dividends

(i)  Subject to the Companies Act and any other UK statute concerning companies registered in the
UK for the time being in force (together “the Statutes™), the Company may by ordinary
resolution declare dividends to be paid out of profits available for distribution to members
according to their rights and priorities but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the Board. Subject to the Statutes, the Board may from time to time pay to the
members such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits available for
distribution.

(ii)  Except insofar as the rights attaching to, or the terms of the issue of, any share otherwise
provide, all dividends shall be declared and paid pro rata according to the amounts paid or
credited as paid up (other than in advance of calls) on the shares during any portion or portions
of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid. All dividends unclaimed for a period of
12 years from the date of declaration shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.

(iii) The Board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of the Company, pay dividends wholly
or partly in specie and dividends may be satisfied in whole or in part by the distribution amongst
holders of debentures or other securities of the Company or of any other company.

Distribution of Assets on a Winding-Up

(i)  On a winding-up of the Company (whether voluntary, under supervision or by the court), the
liquidator may, with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution of the Company and subject to
the Insolvency Act 1986, divide among the members of the Company in specie the whole or any
part of the assets of the Company, and vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees on such
trusts for the benefit of the members as the liquidator, with the like sanction, shall determine.

85
Aberdeen 0090




(i)  The surplus assets of the Company available for distribution on a winding-up shall be applied
first in repaying the holders of Ordinary Shares the nominal value of the Ordinary Shares held
by them; and then, in distributing the remaining assets to the holders of Ordinary Shares pro rata
to the amounts paid up on such shares. ‘

Transfer of Shares

Any member may transfer all or any of his shares by an instrument of transfer in standard form or in
such other form as the Board may approve. Notwithstanding this, the Board may adopt procedures for
transferring shares without a written instrument providing such procedures are in accordance with the
Statutes and the Articles. The instrument of transfer shall be executed by or on behalf of the transferor
and (in the case of a partly paid share) by or on behalf of the transferee. There is no restriction on the
registration of a transfer of shares provided the transfer:

(a)  is duly stamped and lodged at the office of the registrars of the Company or such other place as
the Board may direct, accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) and such other evidence
of the right of the transferor to make the transfer as the Board may reasonably require;

(b) s in respect of only one class of share;

(¢) is in favour of not more than four transferees;

(d) is in respect of a fully paid share; and

(e) s in respect of a share on which the Company does not have a lien.

If any of the above conditions is not complied with, the Board may refuse to register the transfer in
question. The Board may, in its absolute discretion and without assigning any reason therefor, refuse to
register any transfer of shares, all or any of which are not fully paid provided that where any such
shares are admitted to listing on the Official List, such discretion may not be exercised in such a way as
to prevent dealings in the shares from taking place on an open and proper basis.

Variation of Rights

Whenever the capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares, subject to the Statutes,
the rights attached to any class may be varied or abrogated, either with the written consent of the
holders of not less than three-quarters in nominal value of the issued shares of the affected class or with
the sanction of an extraordinary resolution passed at a separate meeting of such holders. The quorum at
any such general meeting is two persons personally present holding or representing by proxy at least
one-third of the capital paid up on the issued-shares of the class in question and, at any adjourned
meeting, the quorum is one holder present in person or by proxy. Any holder of shares of the class in
question present in person or by proxy may demand a poll. Every holder of shares of the class in
question shall, on a poll, be entitled to one vote for every share of the class held by him. The rights or
privileges attaching to any class of shares shall not, subject to the terms on which such shares may be
issued, be deemed to be varied or abrogated by the creation or issue of new shares ranking pari passu
with those already issued.

Share Capital and Changes in Capital

(i)  Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred on the holders of any existing shares, any share may be issued with such rights or
restrictions as the Company may from time to time determine by ordinary resolution or, if the
Company has not so determined (but in the case of unclassified shares only), as the Board may
determine. Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the Company may issue redeemable shares.
Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the power of the Company to allot and issue shares
shall be exercised by the Board at such time, for such consideration and upon such terms and
conditions as the Board may determine.

(ii) The Company may by ordinary resolution increase its share capital, consolidate its share capital
into shares of larger amount and, subject to the provisions of the Statutes, sub-divide its shares
or any of them into shares of smaller amount, cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing
of the resolution, have not been subscribed for or agreed to be subscribed for by any person, and
diminish the amount of its authorised share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled.
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- (iii)  Subject to the Statutes and to any confirmation or consent required by law, the Company may by
special resolution reduce its share capital, any capital redemption reserve and any share
premium account in any way.

(iv)  Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and to the rights attached to any class of shares, the
Company may purchase all or any of its own shares of any class.

Directors

(i) Save as mentioned below, a director shall not vote at a meeting of the Board or of a committee
of the Board on any matter in which he has, directly or indirectly, a material interest (other than
by virtue of his interests in shares or debentures or other securities of, or otherwise in or
through, the Company) or a duty which conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the
Company. A director shall not be counted in the quorum at a meeting in relation to any
resolution on which he is debarred from voting.

(i1) A director shall be entitled to vote (and be counted in the quorum) in respect of any resolution
concerning any of the following matters, namely:

(a)  the giving of any guarantee, security or indemnity to him in respect of money lent to or an
obligation incurred by him at the request of or for the benefit of, the Company or any of
its subsidiary undertakings;

(b) the giving of any guarantee, security or indemnity to a third party in respect of a debt or
obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings, for which he himself has
assumed responsibility in whole or in part under a guarantee or indemnity or by the
giving of security;

{¢) any proposal concerning the director in question being, or intending to become, a
participant in the underwriting or sub-underwriting of an offer of shares, debentures or
other securities by the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings for subscription or
purchase;

(d) any proposal concerning any other company in which the director in question is
interested, directly or indirectly, and Whether as an officer or shareholder or otherwise
howsoever, provided that the director in question does not to his knowledge hold an
interest in shares (as that term is used in Part VI of the Companies Act) representing
1 per cent. or more of either any class of the equity share capital of such company or of
the voting rights available to members of such company «(any. such interest being deemed
to be a material interest in all circumstances);.. R N

(e)  any proposal concerning any scheme or arrangement for the benefit of employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings which benefits the director in question in a
similar manner to such employees and which does not accord.to such director any

privilege or benefit not awarded to employees to whom such scheme or arrangement
relates;

3] ‘ any proposal concerning any insurance which the Company is empowered to purchase
and/or maintain for the benefit of any directors of the Company.

(iii)  Subject to the Statutes and provided that the director has disclosed to the Board the nature and
extent of any material interest, a director:

(a) may be a party to or otherwise directly or indirectly interested in any transaction or
arrangement with the Company (or in which the Company is otherwise interested) and
may be a member or director or other officer of, any body corporate in which the
Company is a member or is otherwise interested and shall not be accountable to the
Company for any benefit which he derives from any such transaction, arrangement, office,
or interest;

(b) may act in a professional capacity for the Company, for which he or she shall be entitled
to remuneration.

(iv)  The directors shall be paid such remuneration (by way of fee) for their services as may be
determined by the Board, save that, unless otherwise approved by ordinary resolution of the
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Company in general meeting, the aggregate of the remuneration (by way of fee) of all the
directors shall not exceed £300,000 per annum. The limit of £300,000 shall be increased each
year in proportion to the increase (if any) in the Index of Retail Prices. The foregoing provisions
shall not apply to the remuneration of any managing director or executive director whose
remuneration shall be determined by the Board. The directors shall also be entitled to be repaid
all travel, hotel and other expenses of travelling to and from Board meetings, committee
meetings, general meetings or otherwise incurred while engaged on the business of the
Company. Any director who, by request of the Board, performs special or extra services for any
purposes on behalf of the Company may be paid such extra remuneration by way of a lump sum,
participation in profits or otherwise as the Board may decide.

{(v) The Board may provide benefits, whether by the payment of gratuities or pensions or by
insurance or otherwise, to or for the benefit of any past director who held executive office or
employment with the Company or with a body corporate which is or has been a subsidiary
undertaking (or a predecessor in business of any of them) or to or for the benefit of any member
of his family (including a spouse and a former spouse) or dependants.

(vi) All directors should submit themselves for re-election at the first oppertunity after their
appointment and should not remain in office for longer than three years since their last election
or re-election without submitting themselves for re-election. The directors to retire by rotation
shall be those who wish to retire and not offer themselves for re-election or those who have been
in office since their last election for three or more years or, in the case of those who became or
were re-elected directors on the same day, shall, unless they agree otherwise, be determined by
lot. In so far as the number of directors retiring as calculated above and excluding those retiring
(as provided below) is less than one-third of the directors or if their number is not three or a
multiple of three the nearest to but not exceeding one third of the directors who have been
longest in office shall also retire. Any director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until
the next annual general meeting, when he or she shall be eligible for election, but shall not be
taken into account in determining the directors to retire by rotation at that meeting.

(vii) Subject to the Companies Act, every director shall retire at the first annual general meeting after
the date of his or her 70th birthday but shall then be eligible for re-election for the period from
that annual general meeting until the end of the next following annual general meeting. Any
such retiring director shall be eligible for re-election for the period from that subsequent term or
terms but on each occasion until the end of the next following annual general meeting after the
date of his or her re-election.

"¢ (viii) Unless and until otherwise determined by ordinary resolution of the Company,' the directors
* ' (other than alternaie directors) shall not be less than two and there is no maXimum number.

(ix) A director shall not be required to hold any qualification shares of the Company.

Borrowing Powers

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge its
undertaking, property and assets (present and future) including uncalled capital and, subject to the
Statutes, to issue debentures and other securities, whether outright or as collateral security, for any
debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party provided that the Board shall restrict
the borrowings of the Company and exercise all voting and other rights or powers of control
exercisable by the Company in relation to its subsidiary undertakings so as to secure (so far as the
Board is able in the case of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings) that the aggregate amount for the
time being outstanding of all borrowings by the Aberdeen Group shall not at any time, without the
previous sanction of an ordinary resolution of the Company, exceed an amount equal to four times the
adjusted total of the capital and reserves of the Aberdeen Group as calculated in accordance with the
Articles.

Untraced Shareholders

Subject to various notice requirements, the Company may sell at the best price reasonably obtainable
any share owned by any shareholder provided that, for a period of 12 years, at least three dividends on
those shares have become payable and no cheque, warrant or order in respect thereof has been cashed
and the Company has received no indication either of the whereabouts or of the existence of the
shareholder.

88 Aberdeen 0093




General Meetings

At least 21 clear days’ notice of every annual general meeting and of every extraordinary general
meeting at which it is proposed to pass a special resolution and at least 14 clear days’ notice of every
other extraordinary general meeting shall be given in manner hereinafter mentioned to the members
and to the auditors of the Company. Every notice of meeting shall specify the place, day and hour of
the meeting and, in the case of special business, the general nature of such business and shall also state
with reasonable prominence that a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead of him and that a proxy need not also be a
member. In the case of a meeting convened for passing a special or extraordinary resolution the notice
shall specify the intention to propose the resolution as a special or extraordinary resolution (as the case
may be). Shareholders, proxies of Shareholders and corporate representatives of Shareholders are
entitled to attend such meetings.

7. Aberdeen Bonds and Convertible Preference Share Units
7.1 Summary of the Terms of the 2007 Bonds

The Company issued £100 million 5.875 per cent. convertible bonds due 2007 (the “2007 Bonds”) on
14 January 2002. The 2007 Bonds are convertible into fully paid Ordinary Shares at the option of the
holders at any time until 7 January 2007 at an initial conversion price of 520 pence, subject to
adjustment in certain circumstances. There are now £24,997,000 in principal amount of 2007 Bonds in
issue convertible into a maximum of 4,799,424 Ordinary Shares, of which JPMorgan holds £2,646,500
in principal amount.

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled or converted, the 2007 Bonds are redeemable on
14 January 2007 at their principal amount. A summary of the terms of the 2007 Bonds is set out below:

(a)  Date and Parties

A trust deed was entered into on 14 January 2002 (referred to in this paragraph 7.1 as the “Trust
Deed”) between (1) Aberdeen and (2) JPMorgan Chase Bank, London Branch (referred to in this
paragraph 7.1 as the “Trustee”).

(b)  Amount of the Original Bonds and Covenant to Pay

2
The aggregate principal amount of the 2007 Bonds is limited to an amount not exceeding
£100,000,000. Aberdeen has undertaken to, on any date when the 2007 Bonds become due to be
redeemed in accordance with the Trust Deed or the conditions, unconditionally pay to or to the order of
;the Trustee in pounds sterling in same day funds an amount equal to the principal amount of the 2007 s
“Bonds becoming due for redemption on that date (together with interest, if any, in accordance with the R
conditions) and will until such payment unconditionally pay to or to the order of the Trustee as
aforesaid interest on the aggregate principal amount of the 2007 Bonds outstanding.

(¢) Status

The 2007 Bonds and coupons constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of Aberdeen and shall at all times rank pari passu and without any preference among
themselves. The payment obligations of Aberdeen under the 2007 Bonds and coupons shall at all times
rank at least equally with all its other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations.

(d)  Negative Pledge

So long as any 2007 Bond or coupon remains outstanding, Aberdeen will not create or permit and will
procure that no other person creates or permits to subsist any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other
form of encumbrance or security interest upon the whole or any part of its undertaking, assets or
revenues present or future to secure any present or future indebtedness in the form of, or represented
by, bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or other securities which are for the time being or are capable
of being, quoted, listed or ordinarily dealt in on any stock exchange, over-the-counter or other
securities market, or any guarantee of, or indemnity in respect thereof.

(e)  Interest

The 2007 Bonds bear interest from 14 January 2002 (the “Closing Date”) at the rate of 5.875 per cent
per annum of the principal amount thereof payable semi-annually in equal instalments in arrears on
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14 January and 15 July in each year (each an “Interest Payment Date”), the first such Interest
Payment Date being 14 July 2002.

(fy  Redemption, Purchase and Cancellation
@) Final Redemption

Unless previously purchased and cancelled, redeemed or converted, the 2007 Bonds will be redeemed
at their principal amount (together with unpaid accrued interest to such date) on 14 January 2007.

(il)  Redemption at the Option of Aberdeen

On giving not less than 30 or more than 90 days’ notice to the Trustee and the holders of the 2007
Bonds, Aberdeen may redeem all but not some only of the 2007 Bonds for the time being outstanding
at their principal amount together with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption (i) at any time
on or after 28 January 2005 provided that the middle market quotation of an Ordinary Share as derived
from the relevant stock exchange on at least 20 dealing days within any 30 day period commencing on
or after 15 December 2004 and ending on the fourteenth day prior to the date on which the relevant
redemption notice is given to holders of 2007 Bonds shall have been at least 130 per cent of the
conversion price in effect (or deemed to be in effect) on such dealing day or (ii) at any time, if prior to
the date of such notice, Conversion Rights (as defined in sub-paragraph (i) below) shall have been
exercised and/or purchased.

(iii) Redemption at the Option of the Bondholders

If an offer is made to all shareholders of Aberdeen to acquire the whole or part of the issued ordinary
share capital of Aberdeen such that Aberdeen becomes aware that the right to cast more than
50 per cent of the votes which may ordinarily be cast on a poll at a general meeting of Aberdeen will
become vested in the offeror (a “Relevant Event™), the holder of each 2007 Bond will have the right
to require Aberdeen to redeem that 2007 Bond at its principal amount together with accrued interest.
To exercise such right, the holder of the relevant 2007 Bond must present such 2007 Bond at the
specified office together with a duly completed and signed notice of exercise by not later than 60 days
following a Relevant Event, or if later, 60 days following the date upon which notice thereof is given to
holders of 2007 Bonds by Aberdeen. Aberdeen shall give notice to holders of 2007 Bonds by not later
than 14 days following the first day on which it becomes aware of the occurrence of a Refévant Event,

which notice shall specify the procedure for exercise by holders of their rights to require redemption of
the 2007 Bonds.

(g)  Payment after Default and Trusteef’s‘:Cbnversion"

At any time after a potential event of default or an event of default (including but not limited to non-
payment, breach of its obligations by the Company under the Trust Deed, default by the Company in
respect of any other present or future indebtedness, insolvency or winding-up) has occurred and has
been certified by the Trustee as being materially prejudicial to the rights of the holders of the 2007
Bonds, the Trustee may by notice in writing to Aberdeen and the Agents, require the Agents to act
thereafter as agents of the Trustee in relation to payments to be made by or on behalf of the Trustee
under the provisions of the Trust Deed and the 2007 Bonds mutatis mutandis on the terms of the
Paying, Transfer, Conversion and Exchange Agency Agreement dated 14 January 2002 and thereafter
to hold all 2007 Bonds and coupons and all moneys, documents and records held by them in respect of
2007 Bonds and coupons to the order of the Trustee. '

(h)  Further Issues

Aberdeen may from time to time without the consent of the holders of 2007 Bonds create and issue
further bonds, or debentures having the same terms and conditions in all respects as the 2007 Bonds (or
in all respects except for the first payment of interest on them) and so that such further bonds shall be
consolidated and form a single series with the 2007 Bonds or any further bonds.

) Conversion

The holder of each 2007 Bond will have the right (the “Conversion Right”) in respect of each 2007
Bond to convert the conversion amount of each £500 principal amount of each 2007 Bond into
registered Ordinary Shares, credited as fully paid. The initial conversion price is 520 pence per share
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subject to adjustment in certain circumstances at any time from 24 February 2002 to the seventh day
prior to 14 January 2007 as referred to in sub-paragraph (k) below.

(§)  Conversion on Redemption

The Trustee may, at its absolute discretion, within the period commencing on the date six days
immediately prior to 14 January 2007, elect by notice in writing to Aberdeen to exercise Conversion
Rights in respect of the aggregate principal amount of 2007 Bonds due for redemption on such date and
in respect of which Conversion Rights have not been exercised including all such registered 2007
Bonds if all necessary consents (if any) have been obtained and the Trustee is satisfied or is advised by
an independent investment bank of international repute in London appointed by the Trustee that the net
proceeds of an immediate sale of the shares arising from exercise of such Conversion Rights would be
likely to exceed by five per cent or more the amount of redemption moneys and interest which would
otherwise be payable in respect of such unexercised 2007 Bonds.

(k)  Adjustment of conversion price

The conversion price of the 2007 Bonds will be adjusted in a number of circumstances including a
consolidation, reclassification or subdivision of the nominal value of Ordinary Shares, a capitalisation
of profits or reserves, a capital distribution and upon a rights issue by the Company. The conversion
price will be adjusted upon a rights issue by the Company if the Subscription Price is less than
95 per cent of the current market price of the Ordinary Shares on the dealing day last preceding the
date of the announcement of the terms of the Rights Issue. The conversion price shall be adjusted by
multiplying the conversion price in force immediately prior to the Rights Issue by the following
fraction:

A+B
A+C

where:
A is the number of Ordinary Shares in issue immediately before such announcement;

B is the number of Ordinary Shares which the aggregate amount payable for the New Ordinary

Shares would purchase at such current market price per Ordinary Share; and e

C is the number of Ordinary Shares issued or, as the case may be, comprised in the grant.

Such adjustment shall become effective on the first date on which the Ordinary Shares are traded ex-
rights, ex-options or ex-warrants on the London Stock Exchange. " =

(1)  Provisions for meetings of holders of 2007 Bonds

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of holders of 2007 Bonds to consider any
matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification
of any of the terms and conditions or the provisions of the Trust Deed. The quorum at any such meeting
convened to consider an extraordinary resolution will be one or more persons holding or representing a
clear majority in principal amount of the 2007 Bonds for the time being outstanding, or at any
adjourned meeting one or more persons being or representing holders of 2007 Bonds whatever the
principal amount of 2007 Bonds so held or represented, provided that if the business of such meeting
includes consideration of proposals, inter alia, to modify the terms relating to status, conversion and
the currency, amount (but not to increase such amount) and due date of payment of redemption moneys
and interest or other amounts in respect of the 2007 Bonds, then the necessary quorum will be one or
more persons holding or representing not less than two-thirds, or at any adjourned such meeting not
less than one-third, of the principal amount of the 2007 Bonds for the time being outstanding. An
extraordinary resolution duly passed in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed at any
meeting of holders of 2007 Bonds will be binding on all holders of 2007 Bonds, whether or not they
are present at the meeting and whether or not they vote in favour, and on all holders of coupons relating
to the 2007 Bonds.

7.2 Summary of the Terms of the 2010 Bonds

Aberdeen issued £26,570,000 4.50 per cent. convertible bonds due 2010 (the “2010 Bonds™) on
10 March 2005. The 2010 Bonds are convertible into fully paid Ordinary Shares at the option of the
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holders at any time until close of business on 3 March 2010 at an initial conversion price of 150 pence,
subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled
or converted, the 2010 Bonds are redeemable on 10 March 2010 at their principal amount. A summary
of the terms of the 2010 Bonds is set out below.

(a)  Date and parties

A trust deed was made the 10 March 2005 (referred to in this paragraph 7.2 as the “Trust Deed”)
between (1) Aberdeen and (2) The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. (referred to in this
paragraph 7.2 as the “Trustee”).

(b)  Form and Denomination

The 2010 Bonds are in bearer form only.

(¢) Interest

The 2010 Bonds bear interest from 10 March 2005 at the rate of 4.50 per cent. per annum payable

semi-annually in arrear on 10 March and 10 September in each year, commencing on 10 September
2005.

(d)  Status

The 2010 Bonds constitute unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of Aberdeen ranking pari passu
without any preference amongst themselves and at least pari passu with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of Aberdeen, present and future, other than any obligations preferred by
mandatory provisions of applicable law.

(e)  Negative Pledge

So long as any 2010 Bond or interest coupon relating to the 2010 Bonds remains outstanding:

(i)  Aberdeen will not create or permit to subsist any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other form of
encumbrance or security interest (“Security’”) upon the whole or any part of its undertaking,
assets or revenues present or future to secure any present or future indebtedness in the form of,
or represented by, bonds, notes, debentures, loan, stock or other securities which are, or are

. capable of being, listed on any stock exchange or other securities market (“Relevant Debt”), or
any guarantee of, or indemnity in respect of, any Relevant Debt; e

(i)  Aberdeen will procure that no other person creates or permits to subsist any Security upon the
whole or any part of the undertaking, assets or revenues present or future of that other person to
secure any Relevant Debt or any guarantee of or indemnity in respect of any Relevant Debt of
Aberdeen or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) Aberdeen will procure that no person gives any guarantee of, or indemnity in respect of, any
Relevant Debt of Aberdeen or any of its subsidiaries unless, at the same time or prior thereto,
Aberdeen’s obligations under the 2010 Bonds, interest coupons relating to the 2010 Bonds and
the Trust Deed (1) are secured equally and rateably therewith or benefit from a guarantee or
indemnity in substantially identical terms thereto, as the case may be, in each case to the
satisfaction of the Trustee, or (2) have the benefit of such other security, guarantee, indemnity or
other arrangement as the Trustee in its absolute discretion shall deem to be not materially less
beneficial to the holders of 2010 Bonds or as shall be approved by an extraordinary resolution,
being a resolution passed at a meeting duly convened and held in accordance with the Trust
Deed by a majority of at least 75 per cent. of the votes cast by of the holders of 2010 Bonds.

(f)  Redemption, Purchase and Cancellation
)] Final Redemption

Unless the 2010 Bonds have been previously purchased and cancelled, redeemed or converted,
the 2010 Bonds will be redeemed by Aberdeen on 10 March 2010 (the “Final Maturity Date’)
at their principal amount.
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(ii) Redemption at the Option of Aberdeen

Aberdeen may redeem the 2010 Bonds at their principal amount together with accrued interest,
in whole but not in part, (i) at any time on or after 10 March 2008 if on each of not less than 20
dealing days in any period of 30 consecutive dealing days ending not earlier than the fifth
dealing day prior to the date on which the notice of redemption is given to the holders of 2010
Bonds, the closing mid-market price of an Ordinary Share as derived from the relevant stock
exchange shall have been at least 130 per cent. of the Conversion Price (as defined below) in
effect (or deemed to be in effect) on such dealing day; or (ii) at any time if, prior to the date of
the giving of notice of such redemption, 90 per cent. or more in principal amount of the 2010
Bonds originally issued have been converted, redeemed or purchased and cancelled.

(iil) Redemption at the Option of the holders of 2010 Bonds

Holders of the 2010 Bonds may require Aberdeen to redeem their 2010 Bonds at their principal
amount, together with interest accrued (if any) to the date fixed for redemption for a period of
60 days following a change of control constituting a Relevant Event or, if later, for a period of
60 days following the date on which notice of a Relevant Event is given to holders of 2010
Bonds.

(g) Conversion

Each 2010 Bond shall entitle the holder (such right a “Conversion Right”) (i) to convert such 2010
Bond to the extent of the Conversion Amount (as at the relevant conversion date being the business day
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets are open for business in London
immediately following the delivery of a conversion notice (Conversion Date”) of such 2010 Bond
into Ordinary Shares; and (ii) to redeem such 2010 Bond for cash to the extent of the Cash Settled
Amount (as at the relevant Conversion Date) of such 2010 Bond at the Redemption Price at any time
on or after 20 April 2005 to the close of business (at the place where the relevant 2010 Bond is
deposited for conversion) on the seventh day prior to the Final Maturity Date.

Conversion Rights may be exercised at any time from 20 April 2005 to the close of business (at the
place where the relevant bond is deposited for conversion) on (i) the date falling seven days prior 10 the
Final Maturity Date (both dates inclusive) or (ii) if the 2010 Bonds are called for redemption prior to
the Final Maturity Date, the seventh day prior to the relevant date fixed for redemption.

In this paragraph 7.2(g):

“Conversion Amount” means, in respect of each £10,000 in principal amount of 2010 Bonds in
respect of which Conversion Rights are exercised, £6,667 (representing in aggregate 11,809,479
Ordinary Shares at the initial Conversion Price), or such greater amount pursuant to any.notice given by
the Company as provided in Condition 5(a) provided that the aggregate of the Conversion Amount and
the Cash Settled Amount in respect of each £10,000 principal amount of the 2010 Bonds shall at all
times equal £10,000. '

“Cash Settled Amount” means, in respect of each £10,000 in principal amount of 2010 Bonds in
respect of which Conversion Rights are exercised, £3,333 (representing in aggregate 5,903,854
Ordinary Shares at the initial Conversion Price), or such lesser amount pursuant to any notice given by
Aberdeen in accordance with the Trust Deed provided that the aggregate of the Cash Settled Amount
and the Conversion Amount in respect of each £10,000 principal amount of Bonds shall at all times
equal £10,000. '

“Cash Averaging Date” means, in respect of any Conversion Date, the tenth dealing day falling after
such Conversion Date.

“Redemption Price” means a price in sterling equal to the Volume Weighted Average Price of the
Reference Shares on the relevant Cash Averaging date.

“Reference Shares” means the number of Ordinary Shares determined by dividing the Cash Settled
Amount by the Conversion Price in effect on the relevant Conversion Date (excluding any fraction of
an Ordinary Share but provided that if the Conversion Right in respect of more than one 2010 Bond is
exercised at any one time such that the Redemption Price payable in respect thereof is to be paid to, or
as directed by, the same holder, the number of Reference Shares shall be calculated on the basis of the
aggregate Cash Settled Amount of the 2010 Bonds being so converted).
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“Yolume Weighted Average Price” means, in respect of an Ordinary Share, the arithmetic average of
the market volume weighted average price of an Ordinary Share appearing on or derived from the
relevant stock exchange on each dealing day during the period of ten consecutive dealing days ending
on and including such date (or if such date is not a dealing day, ending on the dealing day immediately
preceding such date).

The initial “Conversion Price” is £1.50 per Ordinary Share and is subject to adjustment including in
the case of a capital distribution, and, in the event of a change of control constituting a Relevant Event,
the Conversion Price will be adjusted for a specified period.

(hy  Lock-up

Aberdeen has undertaken that for a period of 90 days from 16 February 2005 it will not, inter alia,
issue or sell any Ordinary Shares or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for, Ordinary Shares
without the prior written consent of JPMorgan, the joint lead manager in respect of the 2010 Bonds.

@ Provisions for meetings of holders of 2010 Bonds

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of holders of 2010 Bonds to consider any
matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by extraordinary resolution (being a
resolution passed by a majority of at least 75 per cent of the votes cast by holders of the 2010 Bonds
(“Extraordinary Resolution”)) of a modification of any conditions relating to 2010 Bonds or the
provisions of the Trust Deed. The quorum at any such meeting convened to consider an Extraordinary
Resolution will be one or more persons holding or representing a clear majority in principal amount of
the 2010 Bonds for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting one or more persons being
or representing holders of 2010 Bonds whatever the principal amount of 2010 Bonds so held or
represented, provided that if the business of such meeting includes consideration of proposals, inter
alia, to modify the terms relating to status, conversion and the currency, amount (but not to increase
such amount) and due date of payment of redemption moneys and interest or other amounts in respect
of the Bonds, then the necessary quorum will be one or more persons holding or representing not less
than two-thirds, or at any adjourned such meeting not less than one-third, of the principal amount of the
2010 Bonds for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution duly passed in accordance
with the provisions of the Trust Deed at any meeting of holders of 2010 Bonds will be binding on all
holders of 2010 Bonds, whether or not they are present at the meeting and whether or not they vote in
favour, and on all holders of interest coupons relating to the 2010 Bonds.

)] Ad]ustmem of conversion price '

The conversion price of the 2010 Bonds w111 be adJusted ina number of c1rcumstances mcludmg a
consolidation, reclassification or subdivision of the nominal value of Ordinary Shares, a capitalisation
- of profits or reserves, a capital distribution and upon a rights issue by the Company. The conversion
price will be adjusted upon a rights issue by the Company if the Subscription Price is less than
95 per cent of the current market price of the Ordinary Shares on the dealing day last preceding the
date of the announcement of the terms of the Rights Issue. The conversion price shall be adjusted by
multiplying the conversion price in force immediately prior to the Rights Issue by the following
fraction:

A+B
A+C

where:
A is the number of Ordinary Shares in issue immediately before such announcement;

B is the number of Ordinary Shares which the aggregate amount payable for the New Ordinary
Shares would purchase at such current market price per Ordinary Share; and

C is the number of Ordinary Shares issued or, as the case may be, the maximum number of
Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon exercise of the Fully Paid Rights.

Such adjustment shall become effective on the first date on which the Ordinary Shares are traded ex-
rights, ex-options or ex-warrants on the London Stock Exchange.
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73  Convertible Preference Share Units

The terms of the Convertible Preference Share Units (each unit comprising a Preference Share and a
warrant issued by Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited) are set out in sections A and B of Part 4 of the
Company’s Prospectus dated 3 June 2005 at pages 24 to 49.

8. Aberdeen Share Option Schemes
8.1 Summary of the Terms of the 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme
Eligible Employees

Full time directors or employees of the Company or any other company of which the Company has
control and which is for the time being nominated by the Board (for the purposes of this paragraph 8.1
“Eligible Employees”) may participate in the scheme, subject to invitation being made by the Board
(or by the remuneration committee of the Board). However, no option may be granted under the
scheme to anyone within three years of retirement.

Subscription Price

The subscription price for Ordinary Shares in respect of which options may be granted is the higher of
the nominal value of such shares and the market value thereof (being the average of the middle-market
quotations for the three dealing days prior to the invitation).

Grant of Options

Applications for options may be invited, at the discretion of the Board (or the remuneration committee
of the Board) from any Eligible Employee within six weeks after:

(i)  the date on which the Company’s results are announced; or
(it)  the date of approval of the scheme by the Inland Revenue; or

(iii)  the date of adoption of the scheme by the Company in general meeting.

Performance Criteria

Before an option can be exercised the remuneration committee of the Board will require to be satisfied
that over a period of not less than three years commencing on the last preceding 30 September or
31 March before the date of grant of the option there has been an increase of not less than 5 per cent.
per annum compound in the Company’s earnings per share over the ‘average movement in the stock
markets in which the funds managed by the Company and its subsidiarie$ are invested. The movement
in stock markets is measured by indices appropriate to the funds managed by the Company and its
subsidiaries and shall be determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Board. The Company’s
earnings per share for the purpose of the performance criteria is determined by reference to the last
preceding published annual or interim results of the Company. Such earnings per share shall be as
defined by Financial Reporting Standard No. 14 but adjusted to remove the effects of:

(i)  gains or losses on the disposal of fixed assets or businesses;

(i)  costs of acquisition or of elimination of discontinued activities; and

(iii) reorganisation and other exceptional costs or exceptional income. The Board has discretion to
alter the performance criteria, subject to the approval of the Inland Revenue.

Exercise of Options

No option may be exercised prior to the third anniversary (fifth anniversary for options issued prior to
June 2000) of the date of its grant (although the option may be exercised earlier if the employee dies or
ceases to be an employee through retirement or ill health). The option will expire on the tenth
anniversary of its date of grant.

Individual Limits

No participant may be granted options in respect of shares having a value at the subscription price in
excess of four times annual emoluments,
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Overall Limits

The maximum number of shares available under all of the Company’s share option schemes (including
this scheme) during the period of 10 years prior to the date of grant of the option is the lower of
42,000,000 shares and 10 per cent. of the shares of the Company in issue at the relevant date of grant.
No more than 3 per cent. of the share capital of the Company may be appropriated for options during
the period of three years ending on the date of grant. The amount of share capital over which options
may be granted under this scheme is five per cent. of the share capital of the Company at the date of
grant.

Take-overs and Liquidations

The option holder may exercise his or her options within six months of a change of control or he may
exchange options for new options in the acquiring company.

Variation of Share Capital

If the share capital of the Company is varied the rules of the scheme permit an alteration to the limits
and to the subscription price in such manner as the auditors confirm to be fair and reasonable (and
subject to the approval of the Inland Revenue).

Amendments

No amendments can be made without the approval of the Company in general meeting if it would be to
the advantage of an individual member unless it would be, in the opinion of the Board (or the
remuneration committee of the Board) a minor amendment to benefit the administration of the scheme.

Options in issue

At the date of this document, there are options over 13,754,250 Ordinary Shares which have been
granted under this plan and which have not lapsed. The exercise price for such options ranges from 59p

to 585p and the exercise period ranges from 2003 to 2014. The expiry date for such options ranges
from 2008 to 2014.

8.2 Summary of the Terms of the Share Incentive Plan
The Share Incentive Plan was approved and adopted by Shareholders on 12 January 2001.

Plan Shares

The plan provides: , . _

(i)  for shares (“Partnership Shares™) to be acquired on behalf of panicibating Eligible Employees
(as defined below) out of sums deducted from their salary;

(i) for Aberdeen to procure that shares (“Matching Shares”) are appropriated to employees
without payment in proportion to the Partnership Shares acquired by them;

(iii) for shares (“Free Shares”) to be appropriated to participating Eligible Employees without
payment; and

(iv) for shares (“Dividend Shares™) where dividends paid by Aberdeen on any shares held in the
plan on an employee’s behalf are used to buy shares in the company;

(together knows as “Plan Shares™).

Acquisition of Plan Shares

The directors may from time to time determine whether Eligible Employees shall, in a given tax year,
or in, or in respect of, a given financial year, be offered the opportunity to acquire Partnership,
Matching or Free Shares.

Establishment of a trust
Aberdeen shall establish a trust for the purposes of:

(i)  in the case of Free Shares and Matching Shares, acquiring shares and appropriating them to
Eligible Employees in accordance with the plan;
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(i1)  in the case of Partnership Shares, holding partnership share money and applying it in acquiring
shares on behalf of Eligible Employees in accordance with the plan;

(iii)  in the case of Dividend Shares, acquiring such shares in accordance with the plan; and

(iv)  holding in accordance with the plan all such shares so appropriated or acquired.

Eligible Employees
An individual shall be an Eligible Employee if:

) he or she is then an employee of a Participating Company (as resolved by the Directors);

(i)  if, the Directors have specified a qualifying period in relation to eligibility on that occasion, he
or she has, at all times during that qualifying period, been an employee of a qualifying company;

(i) in relation to an appropriation of Free Shares, he or she has entered into a participation
agreement; and

(iv)  in relation to an appropriation of Free Shares or Matching Shares, he or she has not directed the
trustee not to appropriate shares to him or her.

Restrictions on acquisition of Plan Shares

Shares shall not be acquired on behalf of, or appropriated to, any person on any day under the plan if he
or she then has, or has at any time in the period of twelve months preceding that day had, a Material
Interest in a Close Company (as defined in Schedule 8 of the Finance Act 2000) whose shares may be
appropriated or acquired under the plan or a company which has control of such a company or is a
member of a consortium which owns such a company.

Termination of the Plan
The Directors may at any time, by giving notice in writing to:

1) the Inland Revenue;

(ii  the trustee; and

(iii) each participant terminate the operation of the plan on and with effect from a date specified in
such notice which is not earlier than 14 days after the date of such notice.

Authority to issue shares
~ The authority of the Directors to issue shares for the purposes of the plan expires on 11 January 2011. PR T

Number of shares to be issued

The number of shares which may on any day be issued, or in respect of which the trustee may for the
purposes of the plan be granted rights to subscribe for shares, when added to the number of shares
which have been so issued or in respect of which rights to subscribe for shares have been granted (and,
if not exercised, have not ceased to be exercisable) for the purposes of the plan or pursuant to any other
employees’ share scheme in the period of ten years ending on that day, shall not exceed 10 per cent. of
the ordinary share capital of Aberdeen in issue on that day.

Trustee’s voting rights

In relation to any matter on which the trustee has a right or opportunity as a member of Aberdeen to
vote or to exercise any other rights, the trustee may, but shall not be obliged to, seek irrevocable
directions from each participant as to the manner in which the trustee should exercise such rights in
respect of a participant’s Plan Shares. The trustee shall comply with such directions and if, before such
time as may be specified in writing by the trustee, the trustee does not receive directions in such form
as the trustee may specify (which may be in writing or electronic form) in respect of the exercise of
voting or other rights attaching to any Plan Shares, then, the trustee shall refrain from exercising any
such rights. The trustee shall not be entitled to vote on a show of hands on a particular resolution in
respect of Plan Shares held on behalf of participants unless all directions received from those
participants who have given directions in respect of that resolution are identical. The trustee shall not
be under any obligation to call for a poll, and in the event of any poll the trustee shall in relation to Plan
Shares vote only in accordance with the directions of participants.
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Options in issue

At the date of this document, no options over Ordinary Shares have been granted under this plan.

8.3 Summary of the LTIP
The LTIP was approved and adopted by Shareholders on 24 March 2005.

1) Administration

The LTIP is administered by an independent professional trustee based in the Channel Islands (“the
Trustee”). The Trustee, when exercising its discretion, will always have regard to the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee of Aberdeen.

(ii)  Participation

(a)  all executive directors and senior executives are entitled to be considered for the grant of Awards
under the LTIP.

(b)  After due consideration, the Remuneration Committee will recommend to the Trustee the names
of certain executive directors and other senior executives who are to be considered for
participation in the LTIP. The Remuneration Committee will also recommend the maximum
number of Ordinary Shares over which an Award may be made to any particular executive.
When making its recommendations the Remuneration Committee will have regard to the
guidelines issued by the Association of British Insurers.

(¢c)  After taking into account the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee, the Trustee
will make Awards under the LTIP to selected executive directors and other senior executives.
The Awards will be over a specified number of Shares.

(d) Awards can normally only be made by the Trustee in the six week period following the adoption
of the LTIP and thereafter only in the six week period following the announcement of the
interim or final results of the Company to the London Stock Exchange. In exceptional
circumstances, for example in order to facilitate the recruitment of a senior executive or if the
Company is in a close period, Awards may be made outside these periods.

(iil)  Awards

In order to provide the Remuneration Committee with flexibility, an Award made by the Trustee to an
eligible participant may take one of two forms. In each case the rules of the LTIP will ensure that the
participant does not acquire absolute ownership of the relevant Shares until the end of the Measurement
Period and then only to the extent that the performance targets have been satisfied.

The Award may take one of the following forms:

(a)  aright to acquire a specified number of Shares. The right to acquire Shares would be exercisable
following the end of the Measurement Period. The number of Shares which may be acquired by
a participant in the LTIP will be determined by the performance of the Company over the
relevant Measurement Period; or

(b)  the acquisition of Shares by a participant at the time the Award is made on terms which mean
that the ownership of the Shares remains conditional during the relevant Measurement Period.
The participant will not have absolute ownership of any of the Shares over which such an Award
has been made until the end of the relevant Measurement Period and, as in the arrangement
summarised in paragraph (iii) (a) above, the participant will only acquire absolute ownership of
any Shares to the extent that the performance targets have been satisfied.

It is expected that the Remuneration Committee will recommend to the Trustee that the Awards that are
to be made following the adoption of the LTIP should take the form summarised in paragraph (iii)(b)
dbove. It is also expected that if the Trustee makes an Award in this form, even though the Shares held
by the participants under the Award during the Measurement Period will not have vested completely,
the participants in the LTIP wili be entitled to receive any dividends paid on the Shares during the
Measurement Period.
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(iv)  Performance Targets and vesting

The vesting of the Shares over which an Award has been made will be dependent upon the extent to
which the performance targets have been satisfied. The performance target which will determine the
extent to which any Award made under the LTIP will vest is to be based on the increase in the earnings
per Share over the relevant Measurement Period being greater than the average movement in the stock
markets in which the funds managed by Aberdeen and its subsidiaries are invested. For Awards to be
made in 2005 and 2006 the following targets will apply. The Remuneration Committee will thereafter
consider whether these targets remain appropriate and challenging. Any amendments to these targets in
respect of intended Awards in later years will be included in the Remuneration Report for 2006.

(a)  if earnings per Share figure over the Measurement Period has increased by a percentage that is at
least 5 per cent. per annum greater than the average movement in the stock markets over the
same period then 30 per cent. of the Shares over which the Award was initially made will vest

and the participant will be entitled to acquire this number of Shares at the end of the
Measurement Period;

(b)  if earnings per Share figure over the Measurement Period has increased by a percentage that is at
least 10 per cent. per annum greater than the average movement in the stock markets over the
same period then 100 per cent. of the Shares over which the Award was initially made will vest
and the participant will be entitled to acquire this number of Shares at the end of the
Measurement Period;

(c)  growth in earnings per Share figure over the Measurement Period that falls between the limits
set out in paragraphs (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) above will result in a pro rated vesting of the Award
occurring between 30 per cent. and 100 per cent. depending upon the actual growth in earnings
per Share;

(d)  if growth in earnings per Share over the Measurement Period is less than the lower limit set out
in paragraph (iv) (a) above no part of the Award made under the LTIP will vest, the Award will
lapse and the participant will cease to have any entltlement to any of the Shares over which the
Award was originally made.

The movement in the stock markets will be measured by indices appropriate to the funds managed by
the Company and its subsidiaries and shall be determined by the Remuneration Committee.

For the purposes of calculating earnings per Share for any period, adjustments will be made to the
earnings per share figure disclosed in the audited financial accounts. The earnings per share figure in
the audited financial accounts will be amended 1o exclude the effects of (i) amortisation and

_impairment of goodwill and intangible assets; (i1) any changes arising from share options and Awards,
(ili) exceptional costs and income, unless the Remuneration Committee consider this to be
inappropriate, and (iv) any other adjustments deemed reasonable and appropriate by the Remuneration
Committee.

In the case of an Award that takes the form of the conditional ownership of Shares (as referred to in
paragraph (iii) (b) above), to the extent that the Award has not “vested”, Shares will be re-acquired
from relevant participants by the Trustee for nominal consideration.

In addition to the performance condition summarised above, no Award will vest unless in the opinion
of the Remuneration Committee the underlying financial performance of the Company has been
satisfactory over the relevant Measurement Period.

(v)  Measurement Period

The length of the Measurement Period for any Award will be three years. The Measurement Period for
an Award will commence on the date of the Award. :

(vi)  Cessation of employment

A participant who ceases to be an employee before the end of the first year of the relevant
Measurement Period, for whatever reason, will cease to have any entitlement to participate in the LTIP.
Any interest he had under the Award made to him would lapse. If the Award had taken the form of a
conditional ownership (as described in paragraph (iii) (b) above) then all of the Shares over which the
Award had been originally made and which the participant had conditionally owned until the cessation
of employment would be re-acquired by the Trustee for nominal consideration.
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A participant who ceased to be an employee after the first year of the Measurement Period for a “good
reason” would not be entitled to the vesting of any Shares until after the end of the relevant
Measurement Period. The extent to which an Award would vest would then depend upon the extent that
there had been an increase in the average market value of a share over the Measurement Period, the
underlying financial performance of Aberdeen and the length of time for which the participant was an
employee.

Cessation of employment for a “‘good reason” will include the death of the participant or the
participant ceasing to be an employee because of his ill health or disability or the sale of the company
or business in which he works or if he is dismissed without cause. If a participant ceases to be an
employee after the first year of the Measurement Pericd for any reason which is not a “good reason”
then the extent to which the participant can benefit under the LTIP will depend upon the discretion of
the trustee who will seek the advice and recommendation of the Remuneration Committee before
exercising its discretion.

(vil) Takeover, amalgamation and reconstruction

In the case of a takeover that takes place within the Measurement Period, earnings per Share would be
calculated by reference to latest set of management accounts (such calculation being certified by the
auditors of the Company), and the date of the takeover will be taken to be the end of a Measurement
Period. The calculated earnings per Share figure would be used to determine the extent to which the
Award will vest.

In the case of an amalgamation or reconstruction of Aberdeen, with the consent of the acquiring
company, if possible, the Awards may be exchanged or varied so as to operate over shares in the
acquiring company.

(vill) Vesting of Award

At the end of the Measurement Period, if the Award takes the form of a right to acquire Shares (as
summarised in paragraph (iii) (a) above) a participant in the LTIP will only have to pay a nominal
amount of consideration to the trustee in order to acquire the vested number of Shares. If the Award has
taken the form of conditional ownership of Shares during the Measurement Period (as summarised in
paragraph (iii) (b) above) then the forfeiture conditions will be removed over the vested number of
“ Shares following the end of the Measurement Period and the participant will become the absolute
owner of the vested number of Shares.

(x)  Dilution limits

The Shares that have been made avallable for the purposes of the LTIP will be taken mto account when
determining the overall limits on the number of Ordinary Shares that can be issued by the Company in
order to satisfy the exercise of all share options and incentives granted by the Company.

The number of Shares that may be issued to satisfy options granted under the 1994 Scheme, the LTIP
and any other share schemes which may be in place from time to time is limited to 10 per cent. of the
number of Shares in issue from time to time in any ten year period. On each occasion that the Trustee
decides to make Awards under the LTIP, regard will be had to the guidelines issued by the Association
of British Insurers in terms of both the number of Shares over which an Award is to be made to any one

individual and to the total number of Shares over which all Awards are made on that particular
occasion.

(x)  Acquisition of Shares by Trustee

The Trustee will acquire the relevant number of Shares over which Awards are made under the LTIP
from the Company by subscribing for new Shares or acquiring treasury shares (if any).

The subscription price to be paid by the Trustee will be the market value of the Shares at the date the
Trustee is given the right to acquire the required number of Shares. If the Award takes the form of the
participant conditionally acquiring Shares at the beginning of the Measurement Period, it would be
expected that the required number of Shares will be acquired by the Trustee on the day that the Awards
are made. In such circumstances, the subscription money will be advanced to the Trustee by the
Company. To the extent that Shares held by the participant do not vest at the end of the Measurement
Period the Shares will be re-acquired by the Trustee.
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(xi)  Taxation

The LTIP will contain provisioﬁs to ensure that any income tax and employer’s and employee’s
national insurance liabilities that arise on the vesting of an Award or any part of the Award will be
satisfied by the relevant participant.

(xii) Variation of share capital

In the event of a variation of share capital by way of capitalisation, rights issue, sub-division,
consolidation or reduction of share capital, the number of Shares over which an Award has been made
may be adjusted.

(xiii) Amendment to the LTIP

The trustee may amend the terms of the LTIP on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
Certain amendments cannot take effect without Shareholder approval unless such amendments are
made to comply with or take account of applicable legislation or statutory regulations or any change
therein or to obtain or maintain favourable taxation treatment for the Company or the participants.
Shareholder approval is required before any amendment can be made to the overall limits on the
number of Shares that can be issued to satisfy options granted under Aberdeen’s share option plans and
Awards made under the LTIP, the category of persons who may participate, the periods during which
awards may be made, the provisions relating to variation of the share capital of Aberdeen and the
provisions which relate to the alteration of the terms of the LTIP.

(xiv) Awards under the LTIP

The life of the LTIP will be ten years commencing at its adoption and no Awards may be made more
than ten years after 24 March 2005.

(xv) Overseas arrangements

It is intended that Awards will be made under the LTIP to executives who are not based in the United
Kingdom. In order to facilitate such Awards, Aberdeen can adopt other parallel plans which are based
on the LTIP and are not materially dissimilar from the LTIP but which are designed to take advantage
of any taxation benefits which are available in another country and prepared so as to comply with
legislation and regulations operating in that other country.

(xvi) Pension status

" None of the benefits which may be received under the LTIP will be pensionable.

(xvii) Awards granted ,
As at the date of this document, there have been Awards made in respect of 5,580,000 Ordinary Shares
which have not vested. Vesting of such Awards will occur following the expiry of the relevant
Measurement Period on 6 May 2008.

The Aberdeen Group

9.1 The Company acts as a holding company for the Group and the Group’s principal activity is
fund management.

9.2  The principal companies in which the Aberdeen Group interest is more than 10 per cent. are as

follows:
Issued and

Country of Country of fully paid %o
Subsidiary/Companies Principal activity registration operation share capital owned
Aberdeen Asset Managers
Limited. ............... Fund Management Scotland UK £4725,000 100
Aberdeen Asset
Management Asia Limited Fund Management Singapore Singapore S.G.$250,000 100
Aberdeen Asset
Management, Inc. ....... Fund Management USA USA U.S.$3,250,100 100
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Issued and
Country of Country of fully paid %
Subsidiary/Companies Principal activity registration operation share capital owned

Aberdeen Unit Trust

Managers Limited . ...... Unit Trust Management England UX £575,000 100
Aberdeen International

Management Ireland

Limited................ Fund Management Ireland  Ireland  STG£300,000 100

Aberdeen International

Fund Managers Limited .. Fund Distribution Hong Hong HK$1,000,000 100

Kong Kong

Aberdeen Asset

Management SDN BHD .. Fund Management Malaysia Malaysia RM2,000,000 100

Aberdeen Private Wealth - )

Management Limited .... Fund Management Jersey Jersey £100,000 100

Aberdeen Asset Managers

Jersey Limited .......... Fund Management Jersey Jersey £25,000 100

Aberdeen Murray

Johnstone Limited* . ..... Fund Management Scotland UK £1,001,000 100

Aberdeen Property

Investors AB ........... Property Asset Sweden Sweden SEK 7,000,000 100
Management

Aberdeen Property

Investors Holdings AB ... Holding Company Sweden Sweden SEK 100,000 100
Aberdeén Asset

Management Holdings

Limited................ Fund Management Australia Australia AUS$24,361,000 100
Aberdeen Asset

Management Company

Limited & Fund Management Thailand Thailand Baht 100,000,000 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers

Group Limited Holding Company Scotland UK £1,426,195 100
Edinburgh Fund Managers

plc o Fund Management Scotland ~ UK £968,624" - 100
Edinburgh Unit Trust

Managers Limited ....... Unit Trust Management Scotland UK £275,000 100
Edinburgh Portfolio

Limited................ Fund Management Scotland UK £10,500,000 100

* Includes the Murray Johnstone Group of Companies

All of the above investment consists of ordinary share capital. The Company also owns
100 per cent. of the deferred shares issued by Aberdeen Unit Trust Managers Limited. The
Company also holds investments in other subsidiary undertakings.

10. Registered Offices

10.1 The Company’s registered office is at 10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen AB10 1YG. The registered
office of each of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited . ........ 10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen AB10 1YG

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited .. 21 Church Street, 01-01 Capital Square Two,
Singapore 049480, Republic of Singapore

Aberdeen Asset Management, Inc. ........ 103 Springer Buildings, 3411 Silverside

Road, Wilmington, County of New Castle,
Delaware 19810, USA
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11.

The material tangible fixed assets of the Company, including leased properties and any major

Aberdeen Unit Trust Managers Limited . . ...

Aberdeen International Management Ireland
Limited . ...... ...l

Aberdeen Murray Johnstone Limited . ......

Aberdeen International Fund Managers
Limited .. ...

Aberdeen Asset Management SDN BHD. . ..

Aberdeen Private Wealth Management

CLimited ..o

Aberdeen Asset Managers Jersey Limited . . .
Aberdeen Property Investors AB ..........

Aberdeen Property Investors Holdings AB ..

Aberdeen Asset Management Holdings
Limited . ...t

Aberdeen Asset Management Company
Limited .. ...

Edinburgh Fund Managers Group Limited. ..
Edinburgh Fund Managers plg ............

Edinburgh Unit Trust Managers Limited . ...
Edinburgh Portfolio Limited . ... .. e

Principalv Property

encumbrances thereon are as follows:

Company

One Bow Churchyard, Cheapside, London
EC4M 9HH

39/40 Upper Mount Street, Dublin 2, Ireland
10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen AB10 1YG

16th-19th Floors Prince’s Building,
10 Chater Road, Central Hong Kong

Suite 1005, 10th Floor, Wisma Hamzah-
Kwong Hing No 1 Lebah Ampang 50100,
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

PO Box 641, No. 1 Seaton Place, St. Helier,
Jersey JE4 8Y]J

PO Box 641, No. 1 Seaton Place, St. Helier,
Jersey JE4 8Y]

Luntmakargatan 34, Box 3039,
103 63 Stockholm, Sweden

Luntmakargatan 34, Box 3039, 103 63
Stockholm, Sweden

Level 6, 201 Kent Street, Sydney,
NSW 2000, Australia

90/42-43 Sathorn Thani Building 1,
16th Floor, North Sathorn Road, Silom,
Bangrak, Bangkok

10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen AB10 1YG

Donaldson House, 97 Haymarket Terrace,
Edinburgh EH12 5HD

10 Queen’s Terrace, Aberdeen AB10 1YG
One Bow Churchyard, London EC4AM 9HH

Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC ... ..

Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC ... ..

Location Approx Area Tenure Annual Rent  Term of Lease
(Sq ft)
9 and 10 Queen’s 9,420 Feuhold N/A N/A
Terrace, Aberdeen
One Bow Churchyard, 36,087 Leasehold £1,480,000 Expires
Cheapside, London + VAT 17 November
2017, tenant
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12.  Principal Investments

Save for investments made in relation to businesses already disposed of, details of the main investments
made by the Group in other undertakings in the three prior financial years and in the current financial
year are set out below:

12.1 The Group has invested funds in the following in the three financial years ended 30 September
2004:

(i)  During the year to 30 September 2002 the Group acquired a 40 per cent. interest in
Schroder Asset Management (subsequently renamed Aberdeen Asset Management
Company Limited), a fund management company based in Thailand for a total
consideration of £624,000. Following the exercise of a call option negotiated at the time
of the initial investment, the Group acquired the remaining 60 per cent. of the entire
issued share capital of Aberdeen Asset Management Company Limited on 18 February
2005 for £3.4 million;

(i)  During the year to 30 September 2002, an investment of £789,000 was made in Globe
Financial Investments Limited, a Maltese fund management business. The cost of the
investment was satisfied by the issue of 379,897 shares at an issue price of 207.5p;

(iif) The acquisition of Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc was completed on 28 October
2003. The cost of the acquisition was satisfied by the issue of 58,473,794 shares at an
issue price of 86.26p. The goodwill on the transaction amounted to £42.1 million and
brought £2.1 billion of assets to the Group.

12.2 The Group has not made any firm material commitments concerning principal investments in
progress or any future investments by the Group in the current financial year, except in relation
to the Acquisition.

13. Number of employees

Over the three financial years to 30 September 2004, the average numbers of persons employed by
members of the Group in the following main categories of activity in each period ended as set out
below, were as follows: &

30 September 30 September 30 September

2002 2003 2004
Investment Management .. ...................ouv.n.. 715 572 496
PrOpeItY . o oot e 261 266 225
Life ASSUTANCE .. ..ot e 29 42 15
Total ..o e 1,005 880 736

14. Material contracts
14.1  Aberdeen Group

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, have been
entered into by members of the Aberdeen Group within the two years immediately preceding the date
of this document or contain any provision under which any member of the Aberdeen Group has any
obligation or entitlement which is material to the Aberdeen Group and are, or may be, material as at the
date of this document:

(a)  the Acquisition Agreement dated 7 July 2005 (summarised in Part 2 of this document).

(b) Pursuant to the underwriting agreement dated 7 July 2005 between the Company,
JPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove (the “Underwriting Agreement”), JPMorgan has
agreed to underwrite the issue of up to 362,873,245 New Ordinary Shares (the
“Underwritten New Shares”). Subject to the terms and conditions set out in the
Underwriting Agreement, JPMorgan Cazenove has agreed to procure subscribers for, or
to the extent such subscribers are not procured by JPMorgan Cazenove, JPMorgan shall
as principal subscribe for the Underwritten New Shares not taken up under the Rights
Issue, in each case at the Rights Issue Price.
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In consideration of its services under the Underwriting Agreement, JPMorgan Cazenove
will be paid a commission of 1.25 per cent. of the value of the maximum number of
Underwritten New Shares at the Rights Issue Price in respect of the period 7 July 2005 to
6 August 2005 and a commission of 0.125 per cent. of the value of the maximum number
of Underwritten New Shares at the Rights Issue Price in respect of each period of seven
days or part thereof from 6 August 2005 to the earlier of:

(i)  the day on which sub-underwriters are informed of the number of New Ordinary
Shares for which they are required to subscribe;

(ii)  the second dealing day after the date upon which PALs must be returned to the
Company; or

(ili) an announcement of the non-fulfilment of any of the conditions of the
Underwriting Agreement.

The commissions will be paid to JPMorgan Cazenove whether or not JPMorgan or
JPMorgan Cazenove (as the case may be) are called upon to acquire or procure acquirers
for any of the New Ordinary Shares under the Underwriting Agreement and whether or
not any of the obligations of JPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove Limited under the
Underwriting Agreement terminate or fail to become unconditional.

Out of such commissions, JPMorgan Cazenove will pay any sub-underwriting
commissions (to the extent that sub-underwriters have been procured by JPMorgan
Cazenove).

In addition to the commissions summarised above, the Company will pay all costs and
expenses of, and in connection with, the Underwriting Agreement, the Acquisition
Agreement, the Rights Issue, the EGM and the allotment and issue of the New Ordinary
Shares including, but not limited to, the UK Listing Authority’s and the London Stock
Exchange’s listing and trading fees, printing and advertising costs for the Rights Issue
documents, the Receiving Agent’s charges, legal fees and other out-of-pocket expenses of
each of the Company, JPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove, all accountancy and other
professional fees incurred by the Company and related value added tax, if applicable.

The Company has given certain customary reprefentations, warranties and indemnities to

each of JPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove. In addition, the obligations of the parties to

the Underwriting Agreement are subject to certain conditions. These conditions include,
_amongst others:

(i)  Admission taking place not later than 8.30 a.m. on the first dealing day after the
EGM or such later time and/or date as the Company may agree with each of
JPMorgan and JPMorgan Cazenove;

(ii)  the passing of the Resolution at the EGM,;

(ili)) none of the representations, warranties or undertakings given by the Company
being breached or untrue or inaccurate or misleading in any respect either when
made or if repeated at any time up until immediately prior to Admission;

(ivy no event occurring or circumstances arising requiring publication of a
supplementary prospectus by or on behalf of the Company at any time up until
immediately prior to Admission;

(v)  there having been no material adverse change in the financial or trading position or
prospects of the Group taken as a whole as would be likely to prejudice the success
of the Rights Issue or dealings in the New Ordinary Shares (in nil or fully paid
form) at any time up until immediately prior to Admission; and

(vi) there not having been inter alia such a change in national or international financial,
political, economic or stock market conditions; or an incident of terrorism,
outbreak or escalation or hostilities, war; or a suspension or material limitation in
trading of securities generally on any stock exchange; or any change in currency
exchange rates or exchange controls or a disruption of settlement systems or a
material disruption in commercial banking, as would (as the case may be) be likely
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to prejudice the success of the Rights Issue or dealings in the New Ordinary Shares
at any time up until immediately prior to Admission.

If any of the conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement are not fulfilled (or
waived) on or by the required times or dates therefor, the Company shall forthwith make
an announcement to the UK Listing Authority to that effect and the Underwriting
Agreement shall ipso facto cease and terminate and no party to the Underwriting
Agreement shall have any claim against any other party for any costs, damages,
compensation or otherwise under the Underwriting Agreement except:

@ as regards any breach of any provision of the Underwriting Agreement which
occurred prior to such termination; and

(ii)  that the provisions contained in the Underwriting Agreement relating to
commissions and expenses, indemnification and governing law shall still apply in

accordance with their respective terms.

the following contracts are incorporated by reference into this document:

Contract incorporated by reference

A Preference Share Agency Agreement dated 30 June
2005 between (1) Aberdeen and (2) JPMorgan Chase
Bank N.A.

A subscription agreement dated 3 May 2005 (and
restated on 2 June 2005) between (1) Aberdeen (2) J.P.
Morgan Securities Ltd. and (3) JPMorgan Cazenove
Limited and (4) Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited.

A forward exchange agreement dated 30 June 2005
between Aberdeen and Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey)
Limited.

A deed of covenant dated 30 June 2005 by the Company.

A deed poll dated 30 June 2005 entered into by the
company.
A subscription agreement dated 16 February 2005

between Aberdeen (1), JPMorgan (2) and Cazenove &
Co. Ltd.

A joint lead manager and selling agency agreement dated.

16 February 2005 between JPMorgan (1),
Paribas (2) and Aberdeen (3).

A trust deed dated 10 March 2005 between Aberdeen (1),
JPMorgan and The Law Debenture Trust Corporation
p.lc. (2).

A paying and conversion agency agreement dated
10 March 2005 between Aberdeen (1), BNP Paribas
Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch (2), BNP
Paribas, London Branch (3) and The Law Debenture
Trust Corporation p.l.c (4).

A facility agreement between, inter alia, Bank of
Scotland (1) and the Issuer (2) dated 10 October 2000 as
supplemented or amended by agreements dated 30 May
2001, 7 February 2002, 31 March 2003, 27 October
2003, 30 June 2004, 12 November 2004, 27 January
2005 and 13 June 2005.

A sale agreement dated 5 September 2003 between
Aberdeen (1), New Star Asset Management Group
Limited (2).

BNP
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Document Reference

Prospectus dated
3 June 2005 (page 150)

Prospectus dated
3 June 2005 (page 150)

Prospectus dated
3 June 2005 (page 150)

Prospectus dated
B June 2005 (page 150)
Prospectus dated
3 June 2005 (page 150)

Offering Circular dated
8 March 2005
(pages 101-102)

- Offering Circular dated

8 March 2005 (page 122)

Offering Circular dated
8 March 2005 (page 122)

Offering Circular dated
8 March 2005 (page 122)

Offering Circular dated
8 March 2005 (page 122)

Listing Particulars dated
3 October 2003 (pages 91
to 93)
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Contract incorporated by reference Document Reference

A share sale and purchase agreement dated 8 October Listing Particulars dated
2002 between Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance 3 October 2003
Company (1) and Aberdeen Property Investors Nordic (page 123)

AB (2).

A shareholders agreement dated 8 October 2002 between Listing Particulars dated
[Imarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company (1) and 3 October 2003
Aberdeen Property Investors Nordiac AB (2). (Pages 123 to 124)

A letter of undertaking dated 4 September 2003 between Listing Particulars dated
Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc (1) and 3 October 2003
Aberdeen (2). (page 128)

A letter agreement between Aberdeen (1) and the trustees Listing Particulars dated
of the Edinburgh Fund Managers Group plc Retirement 3 October 2003
and Death Benefits Plan (2). (page 124)

A share purchase agreement dated 11 September 2003 Listing Particulars dated
between Aberdeen (1) and John Walton. John Pennink, 3 October 2003
Mark Townsend, Joe Bauernfreund and Francesa Eady. (pages 124 to 125)

Save as disclosed in this paragraph 14.1 of this Part 10, no member of the Aberdeen Group has entered
into any other contract (not being a contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) which
contains any provision under which any member of the Aberdeen Group has any obligation or
entitlement which is material to the Aberdeen Group as at the date of this document.

14.2  Deutsche Asset Management

Save for the Acquisition Agreement there are no contracts (other than contracts entered into in the
ordinary course of business) to which Deutsche Asset Management or any member of the Target
Businesses is a party which contain any provision under which Deutsche Asset Management (or any
member of the Target Businesses) has any obligation or entitlement and no contracts (other than
contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) have been entered into by either Deutsche
Asset Management or any member of the Target Businesses within the two years preceding the date of
this document which are, or may be, material to the Target Businesses as at the date of‘this document.

15.  Working Capital

The Company is of the opinion that, having regard o the cash balances and existing bank and other
facilities available to the Aberdeen Group, and havmg taken into account the net proceeds of the Rights
Issue receivable by the Company, the working capital available to the Aberdeen Group is sufficient for
its present requirements, that is for at least the next 12 months following the date of this document.

16. Litigation and other proceedings
Aberdeen Group

Save as disclosed in the paragraph entitled “Contingent and Indirect Indebtedness’ in Part 3 of this
document, there are, and have been, no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any
such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) during the
12 months preceding the date of this document which may have, or have had in the recent past,
significant effects on the Aberdeen Group’s financial position or profitability.

Target Businesses

There are, and have been, no governmental, legal, or arbitration proceedings (including any such
proceedings which are pending or threatened of which Aberdeen is aware) during the 12 months
preceding the date of this document, which may have or have had in the recent past, significant effects
on the Target Businesses’ financial position or profitability.

17. Miscellaneous

17.1 There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Group since
31 March 2005, the date to which the unaudited consolidated interim financial information of
Aberdeen Group has been prepared and published for the six months ended 31 March 2005.
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17.2  There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Target Businesses
since 31 December 2004, the date to which the financial information on the Target Businesses
contained in Parts 6 and 7 have been prepared and published for the year ended 31 December
2004.

17.3 The annual audited accounts of the Company for each of the three years ended 30 September
2002, 2003 and 2004 were audited by the Company’s auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, Chartered
Accountants and regulated by ICAEW, of 37 Albyn Place, Aberdeen AB10 1JB.

174 KPMG Audit Plc has made reports under Section 235 of the Companies Act on the financial
statements of the Company for the years ended 30 September 2002, 2003 and 2004 which were
ungualified and did not contain any statement as described in Section 237(2) or (3) of the
Companies Act. Statutory accounts of the Company have been delivered to the Registrar of
Companies in Scotland for each of the three financial years ended 30 September 2002, 2003 and
2004. The report of the Company’s auditors contained the following statement: “To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company for our review work, for this report, or for the conclusions we have reached.”.

17.5 KPMG Audit Plc has given and not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion in this document of

its reports in the form and context in which they are included for the purposes of Prospectus
Rule 5.5.

17.6 JPMorgan Cazenove Limited has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this
document with the inclusion of the reference to its name in the form and context in which it
appears.

17.7 J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this
document with the inclusion of the reference to its name in the form and context in which it
appears.

17.8 Bridgewell Securities Limited has given and not withdrawn its consent to the issue of this
document with the inclusion of the references to its name in the form and context in which it
appears in this document.

17.9 The total costs and expenses of and incidental to the Rights Issue (including commissions as s&t
out in paragraph 14.1(b) of this Part 10, listing fees, printing and other expenses) are estimated
to amount to £9.5 million exclusive of VAT and are to be borne by the Company.

17.10 The Existing Ordinary Shares.are listed on the Official List and on the official list of the
' Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Application has been made to the UK Listing
Authority for the New Ordinary Shares to be admitted to the Official List, the London Stock
Exchange to be admitted to trading on its Main Market and application will be made to
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the New Ordinary Shares to be listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited’s market for listed securities. The Existing
Ordinary Shares and New Ordinary Shares are or will be, as the case may be, in registered form.

18. Bases and sources of information

The financial information set out below and contained in this document has been extracted without
material adjustment from the following:

18.1 The Group profit before taxation, goodwill amortisation and exceptional items of £10.4 million
for the six months to 31 March 2005 together with comparative figure of £5.5 million for the six
months to 31 March 2004 on pages 9 and 35 are unaudited and have been extracted from the
Group’s Interim Report and Accounts 2005;

18.2 The Group’s net new business for the six months to 31 March 2005 including mandates awarded
but not yet funded totalling approximately £2.0 billion on pages 9 and 35 is unaudited and has
been extracted from the Group’s Interim Report and Accounts 2005;

18.3 The figure for the Group’s assets under management as at 31 May 2005 of £25.9 billion and for
the figure including mandates awarded but not yet funded of £26.6 billion on pages 9, 34 and 37
are unaudited and have been extracted from the Group’s underlying accounting records;
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18.4

18.5

18.6

18.7

18.8

18.9

18.10

18.11

18.12

18.13

The figure for the Target Businesses’ assets under management as at 31 May 2005 of
£46.3 billion on pages 9 and 41 are unaudited and have been extracted from a summary prepared
from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records;

The figures for the Target Businesses’ run rate revenues associated with those assets under
management as at 31 May 2005 totalling £119.3 million on pages 9 and 41 are unaudited and
have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records;

The Target Businesses’ losses before tax of £35.9 million and gross assets of £252.8 billion
{excluding unit linked long term life assurance assets) for the year ending 31 December 2004 on
pages 9 and 41 have been extracted from the financial information contained within Parts 6 and
7 of this document;

The figures for the Group’s turnover by category of activity and geographic market on page 34
have been extracted from the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2002, 2003 and 2004, as
appropriate;

The figures for the Group’s acquisition of Prolific Financial Management which added
£8 billion of funds to increase total funds under management to £11.7 billion on page 34 are
unaudited and have been extracted from the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 1997;

The figure for the Group’s acquisition of Edinburgh Fund Managers Group in 2003 adding
£2.1 billion of funds under management on page 34 is unaudited and has been extracted from
the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2004;

The Group’s net new business for the year ended 30 September 2004 of £2.0 billion on page 34
is unaudited and has been extracted from the Group’s Annual Report and Accounts 2004,

The figure for gross new business to 31 March 2005 including mandates awarded but not yet
funded of £2.9 billion on page 35 is unaudited and has been extracted from the Group’s
underlying accounting records;

The Group’s asset under management increase from 30 September 2004 to 31 March 2005 of
£3.3 billion comprising £1.5 billion net new business, assets added from corporate acquisitions
and disposals of £1.2 billion and market movements of £0.6 billion on page 35 is unaudited and
has been extracted from the Group’s Interim Report and Accounts 2005;

The Group’s assets under management as at 31 March 2005 of £25.4 billion and as at
30 September 2004 of £22.1 billion and the table on page 36 breaking down the assets under

management at those dates are unaudited and have been extracted from the Group’s Interim -~ -

" Report and Accounts 2005;

18.14

18.15

18.16

18.17

18.18

18.19

The Group’s issue of £26.57 million 4.50 per cent. Convertible bonds 2010 on page 37 is
unaudited and has been extracted from page 4 of the Offering Circular dated 8 March 2005;

The net proceeds from the Group’s issue of £26.57 million 4.50 per cent. Convertible bonds
2010 of £25.6 million on page 37 is unaudited and has been extracted from page 7 of the
offering circular dated 8 March 2005;

The term loan faéility outstanding at 31 March 2005 on page 37 is unaudited and has been
extracted from the Sixth Supplemental Facility Agreement dated 12 November 2004;

The amount of the term loan facility of £65,125,000 on page 37 is unaudited and has been
extracted from page 84 of the Seventh Supplemental Facility Agreement dated 13 June 2005;

The amount drawn under the facility at 30 June 2005 of £62,625,000 on page 37 is unaudited
and has been extracted from the Group’s underlying accounting records;

The figure of £80 million in relation to the issue of Convertible Preference Share Units on
page 37 is unaudited and has been extracted from page 20 of the prospectus dated 3 June 2005
including the overallotment option referred to therein;

18.20 The figure of £75 million repurchase of the outstanding 2007 Convertible bonds on page 37 is

18.21

unaudited and has been extracted from page 8 of the Prospectus dated 3 June 2005;

The figures for the assets under management of the London Fixed Income Business (of
£16.0 billion and £14.7 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £28.6 million) on
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page 41 are unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying
accounting records;

18.22 The net business inflows of £2.0 billion in 2004 and £0.6 billion in the five months to 31 May
2005 for the Target Companies’ London Fixed Income Business on page 41 are unaudited and
have been extracted from the Target Companies’ underlying accounting records;

18.23 The figures for the assets under management of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts (of
£11.7 billion and £10.3 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £30.5 million) on
page 42 are unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying
accounting records;

18.24 The net business inflows of £0.2 billion in 2004, and £0.2 billion in the five months to 31 May
2005 for the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts on page 42 are unaudited and have been
extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records;

18.25 The figures for the assets under management of the OEIC Business (of £1.8 billion and
£1.8 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £16.5 million) on page 42 are
unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records;

18.26 The net business inflows of approximately £38 million in 2004 and £20 million of outflows in
the five months to 31 May 2005 for the Target Companies’ OEIC Business on page 42 are
unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Companies’ underlying accounting records;

18.27 The figures for the assets under management of the UK and Global Equities Business (of
£3.3 billion and £3.3 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £7.9 million) on
page 42 are unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying
accounting records;

18.28 The figures for the assets under management of the Multi Asset business (of £13.5 billion and
£13.4 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £35.8 million) on page 42 are
unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records.

18.29 The figure of £415 million for the private client assets managed by the Group at 28 February
2005 on page 40 is unaudited and has been extracted from the Group’s underlying accounting
records. . : .

18.30 The capitalisation and indebtedness information set out on pages 37 to 39 of this document is
unaudited and has been extracted from the Group’s underlying accounting records.

19. Documents available for inspection

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours on
any weekday (public holidays excepted) from the date of publication of this document until the date of
Admission at the offices of Maclay Murray & Spens, 5 Old Bailey, London, EC4M 7JX:

19.1 the memorandum and articles of association of Aberdeen;

19.2 the audited consolidated accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries for the two years ended
30 September 2004 and the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the six months ended 31 March 2005;

19.3 the Circular; and

19.4 this document.
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PART 11
DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this document in the Form of Proxy and in the Provisional
Allotment Letter, unless the context otherwise requires:

“1994 Executive Share
Option Scheme™

“2007 Bonds”
“2010 Bonds”

“Aberdeen” or “Company”

“Aberdeen Group” or
“Group”

“Aberdeen Share Option
Schemes”

“Acquisition”

“Acquisition Agreement”

“Act” or “Companies Act”

“Admission”

“Admission and Disclosure
Standards”

“Articles”
“Australia”
“Award”

“Bank” or “BoS” or “Bank
of Scotland”

“BNPP SS”

“Board” or ‘“Directors”

“Bonds”
“Bridgewell Securities”

“Canada”

“certificated” or “in
certificated form”

the Aberdeen Asset Management PLC 1994 Executive Share Option
Scheme

£100 million 5.875% convertible bonds due 2007 issued by the
Company

£26.57 million 4.5% convertible bonds due 2010 issued by the
Company

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC

Aberdeen, its subsidiaries and its subsidiary undertakings

the 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme, the Share Incentive Plan
and the LTIP

the proposed acquisition of the Target Businesses on the terms and
subject to the conditions set out in the Acquisition Agreement

the sale and purchasé agreement dated 7 July 2005 between
(1) Deutsche Asset Management and (2) Aberdeen, as summarised
in Part 2 of this document

the Companies Act 1985 (as amended)

the admission of the New Ordinary Shares, nil paid, to the Official
List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s market for
listed securities becoming effective in accordance with, respectively,
the Listing Rules and the Admission and Disclosure Standards

the requirements contained in the publication “Admission and
Disclosure Standards” dated July 2005 containing, amongst other
things, the admission requirements to be observed by companies
seeking admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s
markets for listed securities

the articles of association of the Company
the Commonwealth of Australia, its territories and possessions
an award over Shares made under the LTIP

The Governor and Company of the Bank of Scotland

BNP Paribas Securities Services

the directors of Aberdeen, whose names appear on page 15 of this
document

the 2007 Bonds and the 2010 Bonds
Bridgewell Securities Limited

Canada, its provinces and territories and all areas subject to its
jurisdiction and any political subdivision thereof

a share or other security which is not in uncertificated form (that is,
not held in CREST)
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“Circular”

“Closing Date”

“Convertible Preference
Share Unit”

“CREST”

“CRESTCo”
“CREST member”

“CREST Manual”

“CREST sponsor”
“CREST sponsored member”

“Dealing Day”

“Deutsche Asset
Management”

“Deutsche Bank”
“EGM Notice”

‘ ‘fEnlarged Abherdeen Group”

“Equities/Multi-Asset
Business”

“Existing Ordinary Shares”

“Extraordinary General
Meeting” or “EGM”

“Financial Services and
Markets Act”

“Financial Services
Authority” or “FSA”

“FOS”

“Fully Paid Rights”
“Japan”

“JPMorgan”
“JPMorgan Cazenove”
“LIBOR”

the circular, containing a letter to Shareholders dated 12 August
2005 from the Chairman of Aberdeen setting out the Proposals and
attaching the EGM Notice, which accompanies this document

the 10th business day after the conditions in the Acquisition
Agreement have been fulfilled or waived or, in relation to the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts, if later, the 10th business day
after the condition concerning the clients of that business contained
in the Acquisition Agreement has been fulfilled

a unit comprising one Preference Share issued by the Company and
one Warrant issued by Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited

the computerised settlement system (as defined in the Regulations)
to facilitate the transfer of securities in uncertificated form operated
by CRESTCo

CRESTCo Limited

a person who has been admitted by CRESTCo as a system-member
(as defined in the Regulations)

the document entitled the ‘CREST Manual’ issued by CRESTCo
and containing the rules governing the operation of CREST, as from
time to time amended or replaced

a CREST participant admitted to CREST as a CREST sponsor

a CREST participant admitted to CREST as a sponsored member
{which includes all CREST personal members)

a day in which dealings in domestic securities may take place on the
authority of the London Stock Exchange

Deutsche Asset Management Group Limited

Deutsche Bank AG

the notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting set out in the
Circular

the Aberdeen Group as enlarged by the Target Companies and the
Target Businesses following completion of the Acquisition

the UK and Global Equities Business and the Multi-Asset Business

Ordinary Shares held by the Qualifying Shareholders at the Record
Date

the extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be held at
10.30 a.m. on Wednesday, 31 August 2005

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended
the Financial Services Authority in the UK

the Financial Ombudsman Service

rights to acquire New Ordinary Shares, fully paid
Japan, its cities, prefectures, territories and possessions
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited

London interbank offered rate for sterling for six months
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“Listing Rules”

“London Fixed Income
Business”

“London Stock Exchange”
g LTIP”

“Main Market” or “London
Stock Exchange’s Main
Market”

“Measurement Period”

“member account ID”

“Multi-Asset Business”

“New Ordinary Shares”

“New Zealand”

“Nil Paid Rights”

“QEIC”
“OEIC Business”
“Official List”

“Ordinary Shareholders™ or
“Shareholders”

- “Ordinary Shares”

“QOverseas Shareholders”
“participant ID”

“Philadelphia Fixed Income
Contracts”

“Preference Shareholders”

“Preference Shares”

“Progressive”
“Proposals”

“Provisional Allotment
Letters” or “PALs”

“Qualifying CREST
Shareholders™

the listing rules and regulations made by the UKLA under the
Financial Services and Markets Act

the London-based business managing fixed income assets

London Stock Exchange plc
the Aberdeen 2005 Long Term Incentive Plan

the London Stock Exchange’s market for larger and established
companies

the measurement period for an Award under the LTIP, as set out in

paragraph 8.3(v) of Part 10 of this document

the identification code or number attached to any member account
in CREST

the London-based business managing multi-assets mandates

up to 486,000,000 new Ordinary Shares proposed to be issued on a
3 for 2 basis to Qualifying Shareholders subject to the terms of the
Rights Issue

New Zealand, its territories and possessions

rights to acquire New Ordinary Shares in nil paid form to be
provisionally allotted to Qualifying Shareholders pursuant to the
Rights Issue

open-ended investment company

the London-based business managing OEICs
the Official List of the UKLA

the holders of Ordinary Shares

ordinary shares of 10p each in the share capital of Aberdeen

Shareholders whose registered address is outside the UK or who are
citizens or residents of countries other than in the UK

the identification code or membership number used in CREST to
identify a particular CREST member or other CREST participant

the Philadelphia-based contracts managing investment grade fixed
income assets

the holders of Preference Shares

non-cumulative non-voting perpetual preference shares of £100
nominal value each in the share capital of Aberdeen

Aberdeen Progressive Growth. Unit Trust
the Rights Issue and the Acquisition

the renounceable provisional allotment letters to be despatched to
Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders by the Company in respect of
the Nil Paid Rights pursuant to the Rights Issue

Qualifying Shareholders whose Ordinary Shares on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on the Record
Date are in certificated form
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“Qualifying Non-CREST
Shareholders”

“Qualifying Shareholders”

“Record Date”
“Registrars”
“Regulations”
“REQ”
“Resolution”
“Rights Issue”

“Rights Issue Price”

“run-rate management fees”

“Securities Act”
“Shareholders”

“Shares”

“Share Incentive Plan”
“Splits” or “Splits Sector”
“Sponsor”

“stock account”

“Subscription Price”

“Target Businesses”

“Target Companies”

“UK” or “United Kingdom”

“UK and Global Equities
Business™

“UKLA” or “UK Listing
Authority”

“uncertificated”” or “in
uncertificated form”

“Underwriting Agreement”

Qualifying Shareholders whose Ordinary Shares on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on the Record
Date are in certificated form

holders of Ordinary Shares on the register of members of Aberdeen
at the close of business on the Record Date as described in Part 1 of
this document

26 August 2005

Lloyds TSB Registrars

the Uncertificated Securities Regulations (SI 2001/3755)
Real Estate Opportunities Limited

the ordinary resolution set out in the EGM Notice

the proposed issue by way of rights of New Ordinary Shares to
Qualifying Shareholders as described in Part 1 of this document

63p per New Ordinary Share

in respect of the Target Businesses annualised, management fees as
recorded in the systems of the Target Businesses excluding
management fees from clients who have terminated their contracts

US Securities Act of 1933, as amended
the holders of Ordinary Shares

Preference Shares and/or Ordinary Shares as the context may
require

the Aberdeen Asset Management PLC Share Incentive Plan
the UK split closed-ended investment fund sector
JPMorgan Cazenove

an account within a member account in CREST to which a holding
of a particular share or other security in CREST is credited

63p per New Ordinary Share

the asset management businesses of Deutsche Bank proposed to be
acquired by Aberdeen, comprising the London Fixed Income
Business, the OEIC Business and the Equities/Multi-Asset Business
all of which operate within the Target Companies and the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

Deutsche Asset Management Life & Pensions Limited, Deutsche
Asset Management Limited, DWS Investment Funds Limited, DWS
Funds Management Limited, Deutsche Asset Management (Ireland)
Limited and Deutsche Asset Management Investment Services
Limited

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

the UK equities business and global equities business providing and
managing UK and global equities products

the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as competent
authority under the Financial Services and Markets Act

recorded on the register of members of the Company as being held
in uncertificated form (that is securities held in CREST)

the agreement between (1) the Company (2) JPMorgan Securities
Limited and (3) JPMorgan Cazenove Limited dated 7 July 2005 the
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terms of which are detailed in paragraph 14.1(b) of Part 10 of this
document

“United States” or “US” the United States of America, its possessions or territories, any state
of the United States of America and the District of Columbia or any
area subject to its jurisdictions or any political subdivision thereof

“Uplift Plan” the Uplift Plan formulated by the Company available to eligible
investors in Progressive
“US Person” US Persons as defined by Regulation S of the Securities Act 1933 of

the United States

“Warrants” warrants issued by Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited to subscribe
' for Preference Shares in the share capital of that company and
comprising part of a Convertible Preference Share Unit

In addition, “subsidiary”, *“‘subsidiary undertaking”, ‘‘associated undertaking” and ‘‘undertaking”
have the meanings respectively ascribed to them by the Companies Act, disregarding for this purpose
paragraph 20(1)(b) of Schedule 4A to the Companies Act.
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CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Information incorporated by reference

Chief Executive’s Review 2002
Chief Executive’s Review 2003
Chief Executive’s Review 2004
Financial Review 2002
Financial Review 2003
Financial Review 2004
Chairman’s Statement 2005
Remuneration Report 2002
Remuneration Report 2003
Remuneration Report 2004

Annual Report and Accounts 2002, including
consolidated profit and loss account,
consolidated statement of total recognised gains
and losses, consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated cash flow statement

Annual Report and Accounts 2003, including
consolidated profit and loss account,
consclidated statement of total recognised gains
and losses, consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated cash flow statement

Interim Report and Accounts 2004, including
consolidated profit and loss account,
consolidated statement of total recognised gains
and losses, consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated cash flow statements

Annual Report and Accounts 2004, including
consolidated profit and loss account,
consolidated statement of total recognised gains
and losses, consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated cash flow statement

Interim Report and Accounts 2003, including
consolidated profit and loss account,
consolidated statement of total recognised gains
and losses, consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated cash flow statements

Terms of the Convertible Preference Share
Units

PART 12

Document Reference

Page No in
Prospectus

Annual Report and Accounts 2002 (pages 9 to
15)

Annual Report and Accounts 2003 (pages 5 to
9)

Annual Report and Accounts 2004 (pages 5 to
8)

Annual Report and Accounts 2002 (pages 22
to 23)

Annual Report and Accounts 2003 (pages 16
to 18)

Annual Report and Accounts 2004 (pages 14
to 18)

Interim Report and Accounts 2005 (pages 2 to
3)

Annual Report and Accounts 2002 (pages 28
to 31)

Annual Report and Accounts 2003 (pages 23
to 28)

Annual Report and Accounts 2004 (pages 24
to 29)

Annual Report and Accounts 2002 (pages 34
to 36)

Annual Report and Accounts 2003 (pages 32
to 57)

Interim Report and Accounts 2004 (pages 3 to
5)

Annual Report and Accounts 2004 (pages 34
to 36)

Interim Report and Accounts 2005 (pages 4 to
11)

Prospectus of the Company dated 3 June 2005
{(pages 24 to 49)
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36

36

36

36

36

36

44

36, 44

36, 45

36, 44

36, 45
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Information incorporated by reference

Summary of the Preference Share Agency
Agreement dated 30 June 2005 between
(1) Aberdeen and (2) JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A.

Summary of the subscription agreement dated
3 May 2005 (and restated on 2 June 2005)
between (1) Aberdeen (2) JP. Morgan
Securities Ltd. and (3) JPMorgan Cazenove
Limited and (4) Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey)
Limited

Summary of the forward exchange agreement
dated 30 June 2005 between Aberdeen and
Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited

Summary of the deed of covenant dated 30 June
2005 by the Company

Summary of the deed poll dated 30 June 2005
entered into by the Company

Summary of the subscription agreement dated
16 February 2005 between Aberdeen (1), JP
Morgan (2) and Cazenove & Co. Ltd

Summary of the joint lead manager and selling
agency agreement dated 16 February 2005
between JPMorgan (1), BNP Paribas (2) and
Aberdeen (3)

Summary of the trust deed dated 10 March
2005 between Aberdeen (1), JPMorgan and The
Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. (2)

Summary of the paying and conversion agency
agreement dated 10 March 2005 between
Aberdeen (1), BNP Paribas Securities Services,
Luxembourg Branch (2), BNP Paribas, London
Branch (3) and The Law Debenture Trust
Corporation p.l.c (4)

Summary of the facility agreement between,
inter alia, Bank of Scotland (1) and the Issuer
(2) dated 10 October 2000 as supplemented or
amended by agreements dated 30 May 2001,
7 February 2002, 31 March 2003, 27 October
2003, 30 June 2004, 12 November 2004,
27 January 2005 and 13 June 2005

Summary of the sale agreement dated
5 September 2003 between Aberdeen (1), New
Star Asset Management Group Limited (2)

Summary of the share sale and purchase
agreement dated 8§ October 2002 between
Hmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company
(1) and Aberdeen Property Investors Nordic AB
)

Summary of the shareholders agreement dated
8 October 2002 between Ilmarinen Mutual
Pension Insurance Company (1) and Aberdeen
Property Investors Nordiac AB (2)

Document Reference

Page No in
Prospectus

Prospectus of the Company dated 3 June 2005
(page 150)

Prospectus of the Company dated 3 June 2005
(page 150)

Prospectus of the Company dated 3 June 2005
(page 150)

Prospectus of the Company dated 3 June 2005
(page 150)

Prospectus of the Company dated 3 June 2005
(page 150)

Offering Circular of the Company dated
& March 2005 (pages 101 to 102)

Offering Circular of the Company dated
8 March 2005 (page 122)

Offering Circular of the Company dated
8 March 2005 (page 122)

Offering Circular of the Company dated
8 March 2005 (page 122)

Offering Circular of the Company dated
8 March 2005 (page 122)

Listing Particulars of the Company dated
3 October 2003 (pages 91 to 93)

Listing Particulars of the Company dated
3 October 2003 (page 123)

Listing Particulars of the Company dated
3 October 2003 (pages 123 to 124)

117

106

106

106

106

106

106

106

106

106

106

106

107

107
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Information incorporated by reference

Summary of the letter of undertaking dated
4 September 2003 between Edinburgh Fund
Managers Group plc (1) and Aberdeen (2)

Summary of the letter agreement between
Aberdeen (1) and the trustees of the Edinburgh
Fund Managers Group plc Retirement and
Death Benefits Plan (2)

Summary of the share purchase agreement
dated 11 September 2003 between Aberdeen
(1) and John Walton. John Pennink, Mark
Townsend, Joe Bauernfreund and Francesa
Eady

Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting

&

Document Reference

Page No in
Prospectus

Listing Particulars of the Company dated
3 October 2003 (page 128)

Listing Particulars of the Company dated

3 October 2003 (page 124)

Listing Particulars of the Company dated
3 October 2003 (pages 124 to 125)

Circular (pages 23 to 24)
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107

107

107
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Exhibit 1.(2)

CIRCULAR

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION AND SHOULD BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE PROSPECTUS DATED 12 AUGUST 2005 WHICH ACCOMPANIES THIS DOCUMENT. AS SET OUT
IN PART 5 OF THIS DOCUMENT, PARTS OF THE PROSPECTUS ARE DEEMED TO BE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
INTOQ THIS DOCUMENT. If you are in any doubt about the action you should take, you should immediately consult an independent
financial adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (or, in the case of recipients outside the United Kingdom,
a stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other appropriately authorised independent financial or professional adviser)
without delay.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, please pass this document, together with the
accompanying form of proxy and Prospectus as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee or to the stockbroker or other agent through whom
the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee. This document together with the accompanying form of proxy and
Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to acquire New Ordinary Shares and/or Provisional Allotment Letters
and/or Nil Paid Rights and/or Fully Paid Rights and/or to take up any entitlements. The distribution of this document in jurisdictions other than the
United Kingdom may be restricted by law and therefore persons into whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about and
observe any of those restrictions. Any failure to comply with any of those restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities laws of any such
jursdiction. In the event that this document together with the accompanying form of proxy and Prospectus is forwarded to, or transmitted in or
into, Canada, Australia, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa or the Republic of Ireland then the Prospectus shall be deemed forwarded to, or
transmitted in or into such territories or jurisdictions for information purposes only.

ABERDEEN ASSET MANAGEMENT PLC/

(Registered in Scotland with company number SC82015) / A \\.

Aberdeen

Proposed Acquisition of certain Fund Management Bus
and Contracts of Deutsche Bank AG and
3 for 2 Rights Issue of up to 486,000,000 New Ordinary Shares at
63p per Share
and
Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting

JPMorgan Cazenove, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority, is acting exclusively
for Aberdeen Asset Management PLC and no one else in connection with the Proposals and will not be responsible to anyone other than
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC for providing the protections afforded to customers of JPMorgan Cazenove or for giving advice in
relation to the Proposals, the contents of this document and the accompanying documents or arrangements referred to therein.

Bridgewell Securities, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority, is acting exclusively
for Aberdeen Asset Management PLC and no one else in connection with the Proposals and will net be responsible to anyone other than
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC for providing the protections afforded to customers of Bridgewell Securities or for giving advice in
relation to the Proposals, the contents of this document and the accompanying documents or arrangements referred to therein.

PERSONS RECEIVING A COPY OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE DIRECTED TOWARDS PART 2 HEADED “RISK FACTORS” ON
PAGES 13 TO 16 OF THIS DOCUMENT.

The Directors, whose names appear on page 3 of this document accept responsibility for the information contained in this document. To the best
of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this
document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. Your attention is drawn to
the letter from the chairman of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC which is set out on pages 3 to 10 (inclusive) of this document and
which contains the unanimous recommendation of the Board to vote in favour of the resolution to be proposed at the Extraordinary
General Mecting referred to below.

Notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Aberdeen Asset Management PLC to be held at Donaldson House, 97 Haymarket Terrace,
Edinburgh EH12 SHD, at 10.30 a.m. on 31 August 2005 is set out at the end of this document. To be valid, the form of proxy for use at the
Extraordinary General Meeting, which is enclosed with this document, must be completed and returned by Ordinary Shareholders so as to be
received by the Company’s registrars not later than 10.30 a.m. on 29 August 2005. Only Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to vote at the
Extraordinary General Meeting.

12 August 2005
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NOTICE TO US INVESTORS

The New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and the Provisional Allotment
Letters have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or under the securities laws of
any state of the United States. The New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights, the Fully Paid Rights and
the Provisional Allotment Letters will be issued pursuant to an exemption from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 801 thereunder.

The Rights Issue is made for the securities of a UK company. The offer is subject to the disclosure
requirements of a foreign country that are different from those of the United States. Financial
statements included in the document have been prepared in accordance with non-US accounting
standards that may not be comparable to the financial statements of United States companies.

It may be difficult for you to enforce your rights and any claim you may have arising under the federal
securities laws, since Aberdeen is located in the UK, and some or all of its officers and directors may
reside outside of the US. You may not be able to sue a UK company or its officers or directors in a non-
US court for violations of US securities laws. It may be difficult to compel a UK company and its
affiliates to subject themselves to a US court’s judgment.

The rights granted in the Rights Issue may not be transferred by US holders except in accordance with
the provisions of Regulation S (Rules 901 through 905) under the Securities Act. Shares acquired
pursuant to the Rights Issue and described in this prospectus are ‘‘restricted securities” within the
meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the Securities Act to the same extent and proportion that the Ordinary
Shares held by the Shareholder as of the Record Date for the Rights Issue were restricted securities.

CONTENTS
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A

Aberdeen

(Registered in Scotland No. SC82015)

Directors Registered office
Charles Leonard Anthony Irby (Chairman) 10 Queen’s Terrace
Martin James Gilbert (Chief Executive) Aberdeen
Andrew Arthur Laing (Executive Director) AB10 1YG

William John Rattray (Finance Director)

Donald Henry Waters (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)

Roger Courtenay Cornick (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Anita Margaret Frew (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Rt. Hon. Sir Malcolm Rifkind QC MP (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Christopher Giles Herron Weaver (Independent Non-Executive Director)

12 August 2005

To Ordinary Shareholders and, for information only, to holders of Bonds, holders of Preference
Shares and Warrants and holders of options under the Aberdeen Share Option Schemes

Dear Shareholder,

Proposed Acquisition of Certain Fund Management Businesses and Contracts of
Deutsche Bank AG, 3 for 2 Rights Issue and Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting

Introduction

Your Board announced on 7 July 2005 that the Company proposes to acquire certain fund management
businesses of Deutsche Bank for cash consideration, further details of which are set out below. The
Board also announced that to fund the Acquisition, the Company proposes to raise approximately
£216 million”, net of expenses, by way of a rights issue of up to 486,000,000 New Ordinary Shares at
63p per share on the basis of 3 New Ordinary Shares for each 2 Existing Ordinary Shares. The Rights
Issue has been underwritten by JPMorgan on behalf of JPMorgan Cazenove.

The Acquisition

Under the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, and subject to all relevant conditions being satisfied,
Aberdeen has agreed to pay Deutsche Asset Management up to £200 million in cash in respect of the
London Fixed Income Business, the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and the OEIC Business on
the Closing Date (expected to be on or around 30 September 2005). In the case of the Philadelphia
Fixed Income Contracts, the Closing Date may be postponed until 30 November 2005 or later to enable
relevant client consents to be obtained. A further deferred payment in respect of the Equities /Multi-
Asset Business of between nil and £45 million will be made by Aberdeen depending on the run-rate
management fees of those businesses at 30 June 2006.” The total adjusted consideration is not
expected to exceed £245 million plus payment on a pound for pound basis for any excess of the net
asset value of the Target Businesses at the Closing Date over £35 million. The net asset value of the
Target Businesses at the Closing Date is expected to be between £35 million and £60 million.
Therefore, the consideration is expected to be no greater than £270 million, on the basis that the net
asset value of the Target Businesses at the Closing Date is no more than £60 million. The final amount
payable by Aberdeen will depend, in part, on the final run-rate management fees of the Target
Businesses compared with certain target run-rate management fees. The minimum amount payable for
the Target Businesses will be £111.5 million, including the net asset value payment.

(1) Based on the issue of 362,873,245 New Ordinary Shares (being the issue of 3 New Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary Shares
at the date of this document when there were 241,915,497 Existing Ordinary Shares in issue) at 63 pence per New Ordinary Share, less
expenses of £12.6 million.

(2) As set out in the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information on page 67 of the Prospectus, the Company’s prudent estimate of the
deferred payment in respect of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business is £38.9 million.

3
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Under the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, the Acquisition is conditional upon, inter alia:

L approval by the Deutsche Bank supervisory board (such approval having now been granted);
. the parties obtaining all necessary regulatory and competition consents;

. the approval by Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting;

. the aggregate run-rate management fees of the London Fixed Income Business and Philadelphia

Fixed Income Contracts being not less than £26.6 million at the Closing Date (this is in order to
give the Company some assurance in relation to the number of US clients consenting to the
Acquisition at the Closing Date in the UK); and

L certain conditions of the Underwriting Agreement being fulfilled.

The Acquisition will be effected by the transfer of certain legal entities to Aberdeen (the “Target
Companies”), the novation of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and Aberdeen taking on
employees from Deutsche Asset Management (which collectively are referred to as the “Target
Businesses’”). Further details of the Target Businesses are set out below and the terms of the
Acquisition Agreement are summarised in Part 1 of this document.

Reasons for, and benefits of, the Acquisition and the Rights Issue

Aberdeen’s corporate strategy is to be recognised as an active manager of equities and fixed interest
securities, delivering consistent performance and adopting a differentiated investment process that is
the choice of investors in both mainstream asset categories and in the specialist niche funds in which
the Aberdeen Group has expertise. Your Board firmly believes in providing high quality client service
based on remaining an independent fund manager focused on delivering the needs of the investor.

In addition, Aberdeen has sought to grow and diversify its recurring revenue streams across a range of
asset classes. Aberdeen has consistently pursued this strategy through both organic growth and a
number of successful acquisitions. The Board believes that the Acquisition is consistent with this
strategy. The Acquisition will add depth to the product offering of Aberdeen and broaden its mix of
assets under management. By exploiting Aberdeen’s skills and strong track record in integrating
businesses, your Board expects the Acquisition to create value for Shareholders through applying
Aberdeen’s operating model and efficient cost structure to significantly increased revenues. Your Board
believes that the Acquisition will be materially earnings enhancing (before any amortisation of
intangible assets) from the Closing Date.

The purpose of the Rights Issue is to fund the Acquisition. Any incremental consideration in respect of
excess net assets will be financed from bank borrowings. The deferred consideration payable in respect
of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business will be financed from borrowings. The Rights Issue will also
reduce the gearing ratio of the Company.

Class 1 transaction

The Acquisition, in view of its size, constitutes a Class 1 transaction for the purposes of the Listing
Rules of the UK Listing Authority. Accordingly, the Acquisition is conditional on, inter alia, the
passing by Ordinary Shareholders of an ordinary resolution approving the Acquisition which will be
proposed at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be held on 31 August 2005. Further
details of the Extraordinary General Meeting are set out below.

Information on the Target Businesses

The Target Businesses comprise the London-based Fixed Income Business, the Philadelphia-based
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts, the OEIC Business, a London-based UK and Global Equities
Business and a London-based Multi-Asset Business.

As at 31 May 2005, the Target Businesses had assets under management of £46.3 billion with
annualised run-rate management fees at that date of £119.3 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, under Deutsche Bank’s ownership, the Target Businesses made
losses before tax of £35.9 million. Aberdeen expects to operate the Target Businesses profitably from a
much reduced cost base, a further discussion of which is set out below in the paragraph entitled
“Integration”. As at 31 December 2004, the Target Businesses had gross assets of £252.8 million,
excluding unit linked long term life assurance assets held on the balance sheet.
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The investment styles and products of the Target Businesses are complementary to those of the Group
and the Target Businesses also contribute strong domestic products and global capabilities.

The London Fixed Income Business and the business derived from the Philadelphia Fixed Income
Contracts enjoy a strong and long-standing relationship, and have been jointly managing portfolios
since 1991. There has been a significant exchange of personnel between the two businesses in the past,
and it is Aberdeen’s intention to continue to manage both as an integrated global fixed income business
reporting to Steve Ilott, who is currently Head of Fixed Income at the Target Businesses and who will
join Aberdeen’s Executive Committee continuing as Head of Fixed Income. The investment styles and
products are complementary and both businesses contribute strong domestic products and global
capabilities, in addition to the jointly-managed products. The integrated global fixed income business
will bring a proven capability in UK, US, Euro, global and emerging market bonds which will fit well
with Aberdeen’s own specialisms in Asian, emerging market and European high yield bonds.

London Fixed Income Business

The London Fixed Income Business investment platform is established so as to generate investment
performance from credit risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. It has the capability to use derivatives
to generate performance and to manage portfolios according to liability-driven benchmarks. The
business follows a team-based investment culture.

~ As of 31 May 2005, the London Fixed Income Business managed £16.0 billion (31 December 2004:
£14.7 billion) of assets under management, for more than 200 clients, generating £28.6 million in
annualised management fees. The London Fixed Income Business generated net business inflows of
£2.0 billion in 2004 and £0.6 billion in the first five months to 31 May 2005.

Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

The Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts relate to highly-regarded US investment grade fixed income
products, managed by a well-respected team with an established reputation in the US institutional
marketplace and a growing reputation in the US retail market, with a presence on many major
brokerage platforms. As part of the Acquisition, Aberdeen has made offers of employment to members
of this team to manage the contracts after completion. These products have consistently generated top
quartile or better returns, with bottom quartile tracking error, which follows a distinctive bottom-up,
low risk investment approach. The experienced senmior management team leads the disciplined
investment process. The contracts are with approximately 200 clients, including the flagship Scudder
Fixed Income Fund which is rated ““S-stars” by Morningstar, Inc.

As of 31 May 2005, the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts managed £11.7 billion (31 December
2004: £10.3 billion) of assets under management, generating £30.5 million in annualised management
fees. The Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts generated net business inflows of £0.2 billion in 2004
and £0.2 billion in the first five months to 31 May 2005.

Financial information relating to the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

In considering the financial information relating to the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts set out in
Part 7 of the Prospectus, Shareholders should note the limitations in the information and evidence
available to KPMG Audit Plc. As a result, KPMG Audit Plc has only reported on the revenue and
property lease costs of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and is unable to form an opinion as to
whether the financial information gives a true and fair view of the assets under management, employee
costs and fixed assets.

The Directors do not believe that the disclaimer of opinion in relation to the financial information on
assets under management, employee costs and fixed assets is significant for Shareholders for the
following reasons:

. Aberdeen intends to manage the operations of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts
differently from the way in which Deutsche Bank has done so in the past. This includes the
outsourcing of the back-office platform. As a consequence, the future cost base and hence
profitability of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts is likely to be materially different from
that achieved historically. Further detail on this is set out in the paragraph on integration below;
and
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L Revenue attributable to the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts is the most relevant financial

information for considering the benefits of the acquisition of the Philadelphia Fixed Income
Contracts.

Accordingly, the Directors believe that, notwithstanding the modified opinion referred to above, they
are able to make their unanimous recommendation at the end of this letter.

OEIC Business

The OEIC Business consists of 26 collective investment vehicles (“OEIC Funds”) managing
£1.8 billion in assets under management as of 31 May 2005 (31 December 2004: £1.8 billion),
generating £16.5 million in annualised management fees. The OEIC Funds are distributed principally
through independent financial advisers, private wealth management firms, and life insurance companies
and are largely managed by investment professionals associated with the other Target Businesses.

The OEIC Business generated net business inflows of approximately £38 million in 2004 and outflows
of approximately £20 million in the first five months to 31 May 2005.

UK and Global Eguities Business

The UK and Global Equities Business provides specialised investment management products, based on
fundamental research and a disciplined and rigorous investment process. Investment performance in
UK equities products weakened in the period from 2001, but has recently stabilised following changes
implemented in October 2004, with good performance in new ‘high alpha” products. The Global
Equities Business also has an excellent “high alpha” record.

As at 31 May 2005, the UK and Global Equities business had £3.3 billion (31 December 2004:
£3.3 billion) in assets under management, generating £7.9 million in annualised management fees. In
light of the recent investment performance challenges faced by this business, which has led to
disappointing mandate and asset retention, the consideration to be paid by Aberdeen for this business
will be deferred, and will be contingent on the value of run-rate management fees, aggregated with
those of the Multi-Asset Business, as at 30 June 2006.

Multi-Asset

The Multi-Asset Business is constructed from investment management products generated by the
separate fixed income and equities businesses. This business has suffered from a sector-wide decline in
demand for balanced mandates, as well as weak equity performance affecting this product’s track
record.

As of 31 May 2005, the Multi-Asset Business had £13.5 billion (31 December 2004: £13.4 billion) in
assets under management, generating £35.8 million in annualised management fees. In light of the
sector-wide decline and recent investment performance challenges faced by this business, the
consideration to be paid by Aberdeen for this business will be deferred, and will be contingent on the

value of run-rate management fees, aggregated with those of the UK and Global Equities Business, as
at 30 June 2006.

Integration

Fund managers and client-facing staff associated with the Target Businesses will transfer to the
Company. In addition, the Company intends to enter into outsourcing arrangements with BNPP SS
under which the Target Businesses’ back-office platform will be migrated to BNPP SS in accordance
with the Company’s stated outsourcing policy. The arrangements will be based on those already in
place under which BNPP SS supplies back-office services to the Company. BNPP S8’s charges for this
service will be variable, dependent on, inter alia, client numbers and the value of assets under
administration.

The cost base of the Target Businesses has historically included central costs charged by the Deutsche
Bank group. On the Closing Date, such charges will cease, leading to a reduction in the cost base of the
Target Businesses.

Employees of the Target Businesses who join the Company and who are based in London will move to
the Company’s existing premises at One Bow Churchyard. It is anticipated that all transferring
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employees of the Target Businesses will join the Aberdeen pension scheme and the Company will not
be acquiring any responsibility or liabilities for the Deutsche Asset Management pension schemes.
Certain transitional services will be provided to the Company by Deutsche Asset Management in
relation to the Target Businesses for a limited period of time. Cost savings are expected to result from
the transfer of staff from the Target Business to the Company or BNPP SS. Furthermore, it is expected
that there will be cost savings from the removal of duplicated costs.

The Company intends that the process of integrating the Target Businesses into the Company’s existing
operations will commence on the Closing Date, although planning for this process is already well
advanced. It is expected that the Target Businesses will be integrated within a year of the Closing Date.

The Company expects that following the integration of the Target Businesses, the operating margin
achieved by these businesses as part of the Group will be in line with the Company’s current fund
management operating margin, and thereby contribute to an increase in the overall Aberdeen Group
operating margin.

The Target Businesses will operate under the Company’s brand from the Closing Date.

Management and Board

The global fixed income business will be managed under the leadership of Steve lott, currently Head
of Fixed Income at the Target Businesses, who will become Aberdeen’s Head of Fixed Income and join
Aberdeen’s Executive Committee. There will be no change to Aberdeen’s Board of Directors as a
result of the Acquisition.

Summary of the Rights Issue

As referred to above, the Company proposes to raise approximately £216 million net of expenses, by
means of the issue of New Ordinary Shares by way of rights on a 3 for 2 basis at the Issue Price. The
Issue Price represents a discount of approximately 49 per cent. to the closing price for an Existing
Ordinary Share of 123 pence on 6 July 2005 (being the date prior to the announcement of the
Proposals).

Qualifying Shareholders will be given the opportunity to subscribe under the Rights Issue for New
Ordinary Shares at the Rights Issue Price pro rata to their existing shareholdings on the basis of 3 New
Ordinary Shares for every 2 Existing Ordinary Shares registered in their name as at the Record Date
and so in proportion for any other number of Existing Ordinary Shares then held. Entitlements to
fractions of New Ordinary Shares will not be allotted to Qualifying Shareholders, but will be
aggregated and sold in the market for the ultimate benefit of the Company. Shareholders with fewer
than 2 Existing Ordinary Shares will not be entitled to acquire any New Ordinary Shares.

The New Ordinary Shares will be credited as fully paid, will rank pari passu in all respects with, and
will carry the same voting and dividend rights as, the Existing Ordinary Shares and will rank
pari passu for any final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2005. Application has been made to
the UK Listing Authority for admission of the New Ordinary Shares to the Official List and to the
London Stock Exchange for admission of the New Ordinary Shares to trading on its Main Market.
Subject to the Rights Issue becoming unconditional in all respects, it is expected that Admission will
become effective and that dealings in New Ordinary Shares, nil paid, will commence by no later than
8.00 a.m. on 1 September 2005.

Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions of the Rights Issue, the New Ordinary Shares to be issued
under the Rights Issue will be registered in the names of the Qualifying Shareholders validly applying
for them and issued, as applicable, either:

(a)  in certificated form, with the relevant share certificate expected to be despatched by post, at the
applicant’s risk, by 3 October 2005; or

(b) in CREST, with delivery (to the designated CREST account) of the New Ordinary Shares
applied for expected to take place on 26 September 2005 unless the Company exercises its right
to issue such New Ordinary Shares in certificated form.

No temporary documents of title will be issued.

In order to undertake the Rights Issue, the approval of Shareholders will also be sought at the EGM to
authorise the Directors to allot and issue the New Ordinary Shares under the Rights Issue. Accordingly,
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the Rights Issue is conditional upon, inter alia, the passing of the Resolution set out in the EGM
Notice. The Rights Issue is not conditional on, among other things, the Acquisition Agreement
becoming unconditional in all respects. However, in the event that the Rights Issue proceeds, but the
Acquisition does not subsequently complete, your Board expects that it would return to Shareholders
the net proceeds of the Rights Issue in the most cost effective manner practicable. Please refer to Part 1
of the Prospectus for the further terms and conditions relating to the Rights Issue.

Further details of the terms of the New Ordinary Shares and a summary of the relevant provisions of
the Articles are set out in Part 10 of the Prospectus.

Directors intentions under the Rights Issue

Certain Directors who are Qualifying Shareholders intend either to take up their rights in full or to sell
a sufficient number of rights to finance the take-up of the balance.

Risk factors

The Board believes a number of risks are important in considering any assessment of the Acquisition
and Rights Issue and you are recommended to refer to Part 2 of this document where the risk factors
are set out. In relation to the Acquisition they include the ongoing situation in relation to split capital
investment trusts, the potential loss of key employees from the Target Businesses, fluctuations in
financial markets and exchange rates, the regulatory and economic environment that the Target
Businesses are subject to, the level of clients retained by the Target Businesses and the Company’s
ability to manage costs.

In considering the risks associated with participating in the Rights Issue and an investment in the
Company and the income derived from it, the Board considers the following risks, in addition to the
risks referred to above, to be important: an investor may not get back the original amount invested; the
New Ordinary Shares may be subject to significant fluctuations in market price; and investors risk
realising less than their initial investment upon a disposal of shares. Investors who choose neither to
take up or to sell their rights will have their interest in the Company diluted and are likely to see the
market price of their Existing Ordinary Shares decline after the Record Date.

Working Capital

The Company is of the opinion that, having regard to the cash balances and existing bank and other
facilities available to the Enlarged Aberdeen Group, and having taken into account the costs associated
with and the consideration payable under the Acquisition and the net proceeds of the Rights Issue
receivable by the Company, the working capital available to the Enlarged Aberdeen Group is sufficient
for its present requirements, that is for at least the next 12 months following the date of this document.

Overseas Shareholders

New Ordinary Shares will be provisionally allotted to all Qualifying Shareholders, including all
Qualifying Shareholders with a registered address outside the United Kingdom. However, due to
securities law restrictions in certain overseas jurisdictions, subject to certain exceptions, whilst
Shareholders with a registered address outside the United Kingdom and Channel Islands will be sent a
copy of the Prospectus, they will not be sent a Provisional Allotment Letter nor will they have their
stock accounts in CREST credited with entitlements to Nil Paid Rights, as applicable.

Notwithstanding the above, if such Shareholders provide to the Company proof satisfactory to the
Company that they are able properly and lawfully to receive a Provisional Allotment Letter or have
their stock account in CREST credited with their entitlements to Nil Paid Rights, as applicable, without
the contravention of any registration or other legal requirement in any jurisdiction, they will be sent a
Provisional Allotment Letter or have their stock account in CREST credited with their entitlements to
Nil Paid Rights, as applicable. Any Sharcholder who believes that he or she may be able to take
advantage of the exception outlined immediately above should contact the Company Secretary either in
writing at the address on the front of this letter or by telephone on 01224 631999 (or +44 1224 631999
from outside the UK).

For the avoidance of doubt, and notwithstanding the provisions in the above paragraph, this circular has
been sent to all Shareholders of the Company.
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Holders of Bonds, Preference Shares, Warrants and participants in the Aberdeen Share
Option Schemes

Participants in the Aberdeen Share Option Scheme will be contacted separately with information on
how these schemes will be affected by the Rights Issue.

Holders of Bonds, Preference Shares and Warrants will be notified of any adjustment to their
conversion, exercise or redemption price (where appropriate) by way of announcement at the
appropriate time.

Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders will find set out at the end of this document a notice of an Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company to be held at 10.30 a.m. on Wednesday, 31 August 2005 at Donaldson House,
97 Haymarket Terrace, Edinburgh EH12 5HD at which an ordinary resolution will be proposed for the
following purposes:

L to approve the Acquisition;

] to increase the authorised share capital to £154,000,000 by the creation of 665,000,000
Ordinary Shares; and

] in addition and without prejudice to all existing authorities, to confer on the Directors authority
under section 80 of the Act to allot New Ordinary Shares up to a maximum aggregate nominal
amount of £48.6 million in connection with the Rights Issue, representing approximately 67 per
cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of New
Ordinary Shares.

The Directors are seeking authority 1o issue up to 486,000,000 New Ordinary Shares in order to enable
holders of any further issues of Ordinary Shares under the terms of the Bonds, the Convertible
Preference Share Units and the Aberdeen Share Option Schemes to participate in the Rights Issue. The
authority to issue Shares under the Resolution will expire at the end of the Company’s annual general
meeting in 2006.

Other than in connection with the Acquisition, the Rights Issue, the exercise of options under the
Aberdeen Share Option Scheme and the issue of Ordinary Shares under the Bonds or the Convertible
Preference Share Units, the Directors have no present intention to issue any of the authorised but
unissued Ordinary Shares.

Only Ordinary Shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at the Extraordinary General Meeting.

Action to be taken
Extraordinary General Meeting

A Form of Proxy for use by Ordinary Shareholders at the EGM is enclosed with this document.
Whether or not Ordinary Shareholders propose to attend the EGM in person, they are requested to
complete the Form of Proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it as soon as
possible but in any event, so as to be received by the Company’s registrars, Lloyds TSB Registrars, The
Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex, BN99 6ZR no later than 10.30 a.m. on 29 August 2005. The return
of a Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at the meeting in person if you so
wish.

Rights Issue

No action is required at present in respect of the Rights Issue. Ii is intended that if the Resolution is
passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting, and the Directors decide to proceed with the Rights
Issue:-

(i)  Provisional Allotment Letters giving details of shareholders’ entitlements to New Ordinary
Shares will be posted to Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders (other than certain Overseas
Shareholders) on 31 August 2005; and

(ii) Qualifying CREST Shareholders’ (other than certain Overseas Shareholders) stock accounts
will be credited with their entitlements to Nil Paid Rights on 1 September 2005.
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The latest time for acceptance under the Rights Issue will, unless otherwise announced on a regulatory
information service by the Company, be 11.00 am. on 23 September 2005. The procedure for
acceptance and payment depends on whether, at the time at which acceptance and payment is made,
the Nil Paid Rights are in certificated form (that is, are represented by a Provisional Allotment Letter)
or are in uncertificated form (that is, are in CREST). The procedures are set out in paragraph 2.2 of
Part 1 of the Prospectus. Further details will also appear in the Provisional Allotment Letters that are to
be sent to Qualifying Non-CREST Shareholders (other than to certain Overseas Shareholders).

Qualifying CREST Shareholders should note that they will receive no further written
communication from the Company and accordingly such Shareholders should retain the
Prospectus which accompanies this document throughout the period of the Rights Issue for, inter
alia, details of the action they should take. Qualifying CREST Shareholders who sell or transfer all
of their Nil Paid Rights should forward the Prospectus which accompanies this document to the
purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank manager or other agent through whom the sale or
transfer was effected, for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

Qualifying CREST Shareholders who are CREST sponsored members should refer to their
CREST sponsors regarding the action to be taken in connection with the Prospectus which
accompanies this document and the Rights Issue.

If you are in any doubt about the action to be taken in relation to the Acquisition and the Rights
Issue or about the contents of this document or any accompanying document, then you are
recommended to consult your independent financial adviser (or, in the case of recipients outside
the UK, a stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other appropriately authorized
independent financial adviser).

Recommendation

Your Directors, who have received financial advice from JPMorgan Cazenove, consider that the
Proposals are in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. In providing its
financial advice to the Directors, JPMorgan Cazenove (which has given and has not withdrawn its
written consent to the inclusion of its name in this document in the form and context in which it is
included) has relied on the Directors’ commercial assessment of both the Acquisition and Rights Issue.

Your Directors unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of the Resolution being proposed at
the Extraordinary General Meeting, as they intend to do in respect of their own aggregate beneficial
holdings, amounting to 5,327,346 Ordinary Shares, representing approximately 2.20 per cent of the
existing issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

Yours faithfully

CLA Irby
Chairman
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PART 1
SUMMARY OF THE TERMS OF THE ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

1. Date and Parties

The Acquisition Agreement is dated 7 July 2005 and is between (1) Deutsche Asset Management and
(2) Aberdeen.

2. Acquisition and Purchase Price

Aberdeen will pay Deutsche Asset Management up to £200 million in cash on the Closing Date in
respect of the London Fixed Income Business, the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts and the OEIC
Business. A further deferred payment in respect of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business of between nil
and £45 million will be made on 31 March 2006'". The total adjusted consideration is not expected to
exceed £245 million plus payment on a pound for pound basis for any excess of the net asset value of
the Target Businesses at the Closing Date over £35 million. The net asset value of the Target
Businesses at the Closing Date is expected to be between £35 million and £60 million. Therefore, the
consideration is expected to be no greater than £270 million, on the basis that the net asset value of the
Target Businesses at the Closing Date.is no more than £60 million. The final amount payable by
Aberdeen will depend, in part, on the final run-rate management fees of the Target Businesses
compared with certain target run-rate management fees. The minimum amount payable for the Target
Businesses will be £111.5 million, including the net asset value payment.

3. Conditions and Closing
The Acquisition Agreement is conditional upon (inter alia) the satisfaction of the following conditions:

@ approval by the Deutsche Bank supervisory board (such approval having now been granted);
(iiy  the parties obtaining all necessary regulatory and competition consents;
(iliy  the approval of Shareholders at the EGM;

(iv) the aggregate run-rate management fees of the London Fixed Income Business and the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts being not less than £26.6 million as at the Closing Date;
and

(v)  certain conditions of the Underwriting Agreement being fuifilled.

In the event of conditions (iii) or (v) not being satisfied, Aberdeen has agreed to pay Deutsche Asset
Management a break fee of £2.9 million (including VAT if applicable).

The Acquisition is expected to close on or about 30 September 2005 subject to all the relevant
conditions being satisfied. In the case of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts, however, this may
be postponed until 30 November 2005 or later to enable relevant client consents to be obtained.

4. Warranties and Indemnities

Deutsche Asset Management has given to Aberdeen a tax covenant and various warranties,
representations and indemnities customary for this type of transaction. The liability of Deutsche Asset
Management pursuant to the warranties and the tax covenant is limited to the lesser of £245 million
and the adjusted consideration payable. Claims in respect of ordinary matters must be made within
18 months and in respect of taxation within 7 years of the Closing Date. Deutsche Asset Management
has also agreed to indemnify Aberdeen against any liabilities incurred by the Aberdeen Group or the
relevant Target Companies under any claims made in respect of certain specified litigation.

5. Key principles for Transitional Services Agreement

Under the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, Aberdeen has agreed with Deutsche Asset Management
the key principles which will be contained in the transitional services agreement (“TSA”) to be

(1) As set out in the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information on page 67 of the Prospectus, the Company’s prudent estimate of the
deferred payment in respect of the Equities/Multi-Asset Business is £38.9 million.
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entered into between the parties at or prior to the Closing Date including inter alia the following key
terms:-

5.1  Separation — the terms on which the parties will co-operate in the implementation of certain
pre-Closing separation projects (as set out in the Acquisition Agreement) and associated
migration plans, including the allocation of responsibilities between the parties and estimates of
resources required. In addition, the parties will agree to adopt a governance model to monitor
and co-ordinate such implementation.

5.2 Deutsche Services — the services which Deutsche Asset Management is to provide Aberdeen
from Closing (using all reasonable endeavours to provide such services to the same standard as
they were supplied to the Target Businesses immediately before Closing) for a perlod of not
longer than 18 months from the Closing Date.

5.3 Reverse Services — certain reverse services Aberdeen is to provide Deutsche Asset Management
from Closing for a period of not longer than 18 months from the Closing Date.

5.4  Third Parry Outsourcer — acknowledgement of Aberdeen’s intention to outsource to its
preferred third party service provider certain office functions required by the Target Businesses,
together with associated IT services.

5.5 Changes to Systems or Services — provisions (save for certain exceptions) that a service
provider under the TSA will not be obliged to change operational aspects of the services
provided, or replace or update systems.

5.6 Information Technology Risk Management — Aberdeen will agree to comply with Deutsche
Asset Management's standard IT risk management policies and procedures and the parties will
take all reasonable steps to prevent unauthorised access or interference with the other’s
IT systems.

5.7  Dependencies — identification of any dependencies that a service provider has on a service
recipient.

5.8  Third Party Contracts — the TSA will contain provisions for (a) assisting in obtaining the
relevant consent; (b) not knowingly causing the service provider to breach its obligations to the
third party; and (c) if either the third party’s consent is withheld, or the contract is terminated for
reasons beyond the reasonable control of the service provider, then the parties will identify
alternative means of continuing the provision of the affected service.

5.9  Provisions to be agreed — the TSA will also make provision inter alia in relation to a number of
further areas of the Target Businesses to be agreed between the parties which include, licences
of intellectual property rights; change management procedure; and limitations of liability.

6. Other Provisions

The Acquisition Agreement also contains provisions concerning appropriate indemnities (including in
relation to retirement benefits liabilities), the repayment of intra-group debt, the release of third party
guarantees, responsibility of payment of certain employee incentives and the prohibition of on-sale of
the Target Businesses by Aberdeen for a period of two years from the Closing Date.
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PART 2
RISK FACTORS

Before deciding whether or not to take up their rights under the Rights Issue or whether to invest in the
Company, prospective investors should carefully consider all the information set out in this document,
together with the risks normally associated with companies of a similar nature to the Company and, in
particular, those risks described below. If any of the following risks actually materialise, Aberdeen’s
business, financial condition and share price could be materially and adversely affected to the detriment
of Aberdeen and its Shareholders. Further risks and uncertainties which are not presently known to the
Directors at the date of this document, or that the Directors currently deem immaterial, may also have
an adverse effect on the business, financial condition or results of the Group.

1. Risks associated with the Group’s business
Split Capital Trusts

On 24 December 2004, Aberdeen announced that the near three-year-long investigation into the
marketing and management of split capital funds had been concluded with an omnibus settlement
between the majority of the firms involved in the sector, the FSA, the Jersey Financial Services
Commission and the Guernsey Financial Services Commission. The terms of the settlement entail no
admission of liability and effectively conclude the Group’s exposure to the regulators in respect of
these matters. Aberdeen contributed £35 million to a central fund. This fund will be used to provide a
cash distribution for retail investors in the zero dividend preference shares issued by split capital
investment companies. In total, approximately £143 million was committed to the central fund by
18 companies involved in the sector, including Aberdeen’s own contribution supported by a payment
made by Aberdeen’s insurers in full and final settlement of any liability those insurers might have
under the relevant insurance policies. Aberdeen issued an Uplift Plan for investors in Progressive (a
retail unit trust which, since its launch in August 2000, has invested primarily in zero dividend
preference shares of listed multi-class closed end collective investment vehicles) at an estimated cost of
£43.3 million. In the two years to 30 September 2004, the Group incurred legal and other external costs
of over £7 million in relation to these issues.

The Uplift Plan was offered to all investors who held units in Progressive which were issued by the
managers on or before 28 June 2002 and gave those investors the opportunity to receive the initial cost
of their investment on the redemption of their holdings on or around the fifth anniversary of their
investment. Eligible Tnvestors (as defined in the Uplift Plan) who had previously sold their holdings
“were also offered payments at a discounted rate.

Eligible Investors who accepted the offer of participation in the Uplift Plan have done so on condition
that they relinquish their rights to take any other action in relation to their holding in Progressive.
Eligible Investors who have chosen not to participate in the Uplift Plan may pursue a complaint via
FOS.

Acceptance by an investor of the Uplift Plan enabled Aberdeen to crystalise the extent of its liability to
that investor. By the time that the Uplift Plan closed to further acceptances on 3 June 2005 acceptances
had been received from Eligible Investors representing some 94.4 per cent. by value of those entitled to
participate.

Aberdeen announced on 26 February 2004 that it had received details from a FOS adjudicator of a
provisional assessment in respect of a case being examined by FOS in relation to a complaint brought
by one investor in Progressive. There have been further similar provisional assessments. The
provisional assessments, which are not binding on either party, set out the FOS adjudicator’s view on
these complaints. The provisional assessments proposed that the dispute between Aberdeen Unit Trust
Managers Limited and the complainants be resolved by the payment of compensation to the
complainants. After careful consideration of the provisional assessments, the Aberdeen Board believed
the provisional assessments did not reflect the weight of evidence which Aberdeen had supplied to
substantiate its position. Whilst remaining sensitive to the distress suffered by investors in Progressive
and wishing to provide support to them on a voluntary basis, the Aberdeen Board could not agree with
the FOS adjudicator’s opinion. Aberdeen is therefore exercising its right to have the cases referred to
an Ombudsman for determination. Aberdeen, on the basis of robust legal advice, will vigorously
contest any cases on which FOS may issue adverse findings.
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Were FOS ultimately to make a final decision against the Aberdeen Group, any compensation would
have to take into account the circumstances of individual cases. In this regard, given the advice of
Aberdeen’s solicitors, and the lack of information as to both the number and quantum of cases which
will be subject to any determination by FOS, the Aberdeen Board considers it impossible to make any
reasonable estimate of any potential liability of the Aberdeen Group over and above the cost of the
Uplift Plan.

On 28 June 2005, proceedings were issued against Aberdeen and Aberdeen Asset Managers Jersey
Limited (together the “Aberdeen Parties™) and a non-Aberdeen party, in the High Court in London by
Real Estate Opportunities Limited. In 2003, the board of REO announced, with respect to the Aberdeen
Parties, that REO had terminated its management contract with immediate effect and indicated that jt
held the Aberdeen Parties liable for damages in respect of losses incurred on REO’s income portfolio.
The Aberdeen Parties do not accept the validity of REO’s termination without notice. The Aberdeen
Parties believe that the claim is without merit. The Aberdeen Parties will vigorously defend the
proceedings and counterclaim for their accrued fees and the fees relating to the 12 months’ notice
period provided for in the management contract. It is not possible to quantify any exposure to damages
with respect to these proceedings.

In April 2004, the liquidator of the special purpose vehicle of Aberdeen Preferred Income Trust
Limited wrote to Aberdeen indicating that it was considering a claim. However, no further detail has
been forthcoming.

The speculation that legal proceedings may be brought against a range of parties who have been
involved in the Splits Sector continues. Other than as stated above, no notice of any legal proceedings
related to the Aberdeen Group’s involvement in the Splits Sector has been served against any member
of the Aberdeen Group and any such proceedings would be defended robustly.

2. Risks associated with both the Group’s business and the Target Businesses
Employees

The success of the Aberdeen Group and the Target Businesses depends, inter alia, upon the support of
its employees and, in particular, the executive directors and fund managers. The loss of key members of
the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ staff could have a material adverse effect on its
performance. In addition, the success of the enlarged Group following the Acquisition will depend
upon a number of key employees who are transferring to Aberdeen with the Target Businesses. The
success of the integration of the Target Businesses may be adversely affected if such key employees
were to leave.

Financial Markets

The income of the Aberdeen Group and of the Target Businesses is subject to change as a result of
fluctuations in the financial markets in which they operate which directly affect the level of funds under
management and which may adversely affect the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’
performance. Equity and bond markets have been extremely volatile over recent times. A sustained
further fall in equity and/or bond markets would reduce the Group’s revenues and significantly
diminish its prospects of obtaining new funds to manage.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations

A significant proportion of the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ turnover is generated
overseas and, because the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ reporting currency is sterling,
the fluctuations between local currencies, particularly the US dollar, and sterling may have an adverse
effect on the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ performance.

Regulation

The Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ operations are subject to financial regulations in
each of the jurisdictions in which they operate. Alterations to the regulatory requirements in any
jurisdiction may adversely affect the Aberdeen Group’s and the Target Businesses’ performance. In
addition, any breach of relevant regulatory requirements may result in regulatory sanction.
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Economic Environment

The future results of the Group and the Target Businesses will be dependent on factors outside the
Group’s control such as general economic conditions, competition and regulation. These factors could
have a substantial positive or negative effect on the future results of the Group and the Target
Businesses.

3. Risks relating to the Rights Issue

The value of an investment in the Company and the income derived from it, if any, may go down as
well as up and an investor may not get back the amount invested.

Market Price
The market prices of the New Ordinary Shares may not reflect the underlying value of the Group.

Disposal

The price at which investors may dispose of their New Ordinary Shares in the Company may be
influenced by a number of factors, some of which may pertain to the Company, and others of which
may be outside of its control. Investors may realise less than the original amount invested.

Payment of Dividends

While it is the intention of the Directors to continue to pay dividends to Shareholders, the ability of the
Company to pay any dividends in respect of the New Ordinary Shares will depend on the level of
income received, any dividends which have been declared on the Preference Shares and on the Group
continuing to meet bank covenants. Accordingly, the amount of the dividends paid to Shareholders
may fluctuate. Any change in the tax or accounting treatment of dividends or investment income

received by the Company, as the case may be, may also reduce the level of yields received by
Shareholders.

If a dividend on the New Ordinary Shares is not paid, or is paid only in part, the holders of the New
Ordinary Shares shall have no claim in respect of such non-payment or non-payment in part, as
applicable.

Borrowings

The amount of borrowings by the Group may increase the volatility of the New Ordinary Shares.
Should Aberdeen breach any of the covenants contained in its borrowings, it may be required to repay
such borrowings forthwith together with attendant costs including the costs of breaking any fixed
interest arrangements.

Market Fluctuation

The market price of the New Ordinary Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to,
among other factors, interest rates, inflation and variations in the Group’s performance. Developments
in, and changes in securities analysts’ recommendations regarding the fund management sector may
also influence and bring volatility in the market price of the New Ordinary Shares.

US Securities Laws

The New Ordinary Shares have not been nor will they be registered under the Securities Act or the
securities laws of any other jurisdiction. The New Ordinary Shares will be issued pursuant to an
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Rule 801 thereunder.
Subject to certain exceptions, the New Ordinary Shares may not be offered, sold, delivered, pledged or
otherwise transferred in any jurisdiction where such registration may be required.

Nil Paid Rights trading

The trading period for the Nil Paid Rights is expected to commence on 1 September 2005 and end on
23 September 2005. Aberdeen does not anticipate the Nil Paid Rights being traded on any exchange
other than the London Stock Exchange and Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. However,
an active trading market in the Nil Paid Rights may not develop on the London Stock Exchange or
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited during that period. In addition, since the trading price
of the Nil Paid Rights depends on the trading price of the New Ordinary Shares, the Nil Paid Rights
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may be volatile and subject to the same risks noted above under “‘market fluctuation” above. The
existing volatility of the Shares may also magnify the volatility of the Nil Paid Rights.

Non Guarantee of Tax Treatment

The information in this document is based on existing taxation legislation. There is no guarantee that
the tax treatment described in this document will continue to apply.

Completion of Acquisition

The Rights Issue is not conditional upon the completion of the Acquisition and therefore it is possible
that the Acquisition may fail to complete after New Ordinary Shares have been issued under the Rights
Issue. In the event that the Acquisition fails to complete after the issue of New Ordinary Shares under
the Rights Issue, whilst it is the Director’s intention to return funds to Shareholders in as cost effective
manner as practicable, the costs associated with a return of capital or other mechanism to effect a
return of capital may result in Shareholders recewmg significantly less than the value of their original
investment.

4. Risks associated with the Acquisition
Financial effects of the Acquisition

The financial effects of the Acquisition upon the Group will depend upon the level of clients retained
by the Target Businesses and the Company’s ability to manage costs in line with the revenues finally
secured. Clients of the Target Businesses are under no commitment to transfer the management of their
assets to Aberdeen. Materlal client losses prior to completion of the Acquisition would lead to a drop in
the amount of revenues transferred.

Outsourcing

Aberdeen intends to enter into outsourcing arrangements with BNPP SS under which the Target
Businesses’ back-office platform will be migrated to BNPP SS in accordance with Aberdeen’s stated
outsourcing policy. Failure to outsource the back-office platform identified for migration in accordance
with the planned timetable, and on similar terms to existing arrangements that Aberdeen currently has
in place with BNPP SS, could have an adverse effect on the speed and success of the integration
process. :
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PART 3

BASES AND SOURCES OF INFORMATION

The information set out below and contained in this document has been extracted without material
adjustment from the following:

1. The figure for the Target Businesses’ assets under management as at 31 May 2005 of
£46.3 billion on page 4 is unaudited and has been extracted from the Target Businesses’
underlying accounting records;

2. The figure for the Target Businesses’ run-rate revenues associated with those assets under
management as at 31 May 2005 of £119.3 million on page 4 is unaudited and has been extracted
from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records;

3. The Target Businesses’ losses before tax of £35.9 million and gross assets of £252.8 million
(excluding unit linked long term life assurance assets) for the year ending 31 December 2004 on

page 4 have been extracted from the financial information contained within Parts 6 and 7 of the
Prospectus;

4, The figures for the assets under management of the London Fixed Income Business (of
£16.0 billion and £14.7 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £28.6 million) on
page 5 are unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying
accounting records;

5. The net new business inflows in relation to the London Fixed Income Business of £2.0 billion
and £0.6 billion on page 5 are unaudited and have been extracted from a summary produced
from the Target Businesses’ accounting records;

6. The figures for the assets under management of the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts of
£11.7 billion and £10.3 billion and related annualised management fees of £30.5 million on
page 5 are unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying
accounting records;

7. The net new business inflows in relation to the Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts of
£0.2 billion and £0.2 billion on page 5 are unaudited and have been extracted from a summary
produced from the Target Businesses’ accounting records;

8. The figures for the assets under management of the OEIC Business and related annualised
management fees of £1.8 billion and £16.5 million on page 6 are unaudited and have been
extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records;

9. The figures for the net business inflows generated by the OEIC Business of approximately
£38 million in 2004 and outflows of approximately £20 million in the first five months to
31 May 2005 on page 6 are unaudited and have been extracted from a summary produced from
the Target Businesses’ accounting records;

10.  The figures for the assets under management of the UK and Global Equities Business (of
£3.3 billion and £3.3 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £7.9 million) on
page 6 are unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying
accounting records;

11.  The figures for the assets under management of the Multi-Asset Business (of £13.5 billion and

£13.4 billion) and related annualised management fees (of £35.8 million) on page 6 are
unaudited and have been extracted from the Target Businesses’ underlying accounting records.
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PART 4

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this document, unless the context otherwise requires:

“1994 Executive Share
Option Scheme”

“Aberdeen” or “Company”

“Aberdeen Group” or
“Group”

“Aberdeen Share Option
Schemes”

“Acquisition”

“Acquisition Agreement”

“Act” or “Companies Act”

“Admission”

“Admission and Disclosure

Standards”

“Articles”
“Australia”
“BNPP SS”

“Board” or “Directors”

“Bonds”

“Bridgewell Securities”

“Canada”

“certificated” or “in
certificated form”

“Closing Date”

“Convertible Preference
Share Unit”

the Aberdeen Asset Management PLC 1994 Executive Share Option
Scheme

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
Aberdeen, its subsidiaries and its subsidiary undertakings

the 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme, the Share Incentive Plan
and the LTIP

the proposed acquisition of the Target Businesses on the terms and
subject to the conditions set out in the Acquisition Agreement

the sale and purchase agreement dated 7 July 2005 between
(1) Deutsche Asset Management and (2) Aberdeen, as summarised
in Part 1 of this document

the Companies Act 1985 (as amended)

the admission of the New Ordinary Shares, nil paid, to trading on
the London Stock Exchange’s market for listed securities becoming
effective in accordance with, respectively, the Listing Rules and the
Admission and Disclosure Standards

the requirements contained in the publication “Admission and
Disclosure Standards™ dated May 2001 containing, amongst other

_ things, the admission requirements to be observed by companies

seeking admission to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s
market for listed securities

the articles of association of the Company
the Commonwealth of Australia, its territories and possessions
BNP Paribas Securities Services

the directors of Aberdeen, whose names appear on page 3 of this
document

£100 million 5.875% convertible bonds due 2007 issued by the
Company and £26.57 million 4.5% convertible bonds due 2010
issued by the Company

Bridgewell Securities Limited

Canada, its provinces and territories and all areas subject to its
jurisdiction and any political subdivision thereof

a share or other security which is not in uncertificated form (that is,
securities not held in CREST)

the 10th business day after the conditions in the Acquisition
Agreement have been fulfilled or waived or, in relation to the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts, if later, the 10th business day
after the condition concerning the clients of that business contained
in the Acquisition Agreement has been fulfilled

a unit comprising one Preference Share issued by the Company and
one Warrant issued by Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited
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“CREST”

“CRESTCo”

“Deutsche Asset
Management”

“Deutsche Bank”
“Enlarged Aberdeen Group”

“Equities/Multi-Asset
Business”

“Existing Ordinary Shares”

“Extraordinary General
Meeting” or “EGM”

“EGM Notice”

“Financial Services and
Markets Act”

“Financial Services
Authority” or “FSA”

“FOS”

“Fully Paid Rights”
“Japan”

“JPMorgan”
“JPMorgan Cazenove”
“LIBOR”

“Listing Rules”

“London Fixed Income
Business”

“London Stock Exchange”
[ LTIP”

“Main Market” or “London
Stock Exchange’s Main
. Market”

“Multi-Asset Business”

“New Ordinary Shares”

“New Zealand”
“Nil Paid Rights”

“OEIC”

the computerised settlement system (as defined in the Regulations)

to facilitate the transfer of securities in uncertificated form operated
by CRESTCo

CRESTCo Limited

Deutsche Asset Management Group Limited

Deutsche Bank AG

the Aberdeen Group as enlarged by the Target Companies and the
Target Businesses following completion of the Acquisition

the UK and Global Equities Business and the Multi-Asset Business

Ordinary Shares held by Qualifying Shareholders at the Record
Date

the extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be held at
10.30 a.m. on 31 August 2005

the notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting set out at the end of
this document

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended
the Financial Services Authority in the UK

the Financial Ombudsman Service

rights to acquire New Ordinary Shares, fully paid

Japan, its cities, prefectures, territories and possessions
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited

London interbank offered rate for sterling for six months

the listing rules and regulations made by the UKLA under the
Financial Services and Markets Act

the London-based business managing fixed income assets

London Stock Exchange plc
the Aberdeen 2005 Long Term Incentive Plan

the London Stock Exchange’s market for larger and established
companies

the London-based business managing multi-assets mandates

up to 486,000,000 new Ordinary Shares to be issued on a 3 for 2
basis to Qualifying Shareholders subject to the terms of the Rights
Issue

New Zealand, its territories and possessions

rights to acquire New Ordinary Shares in nil paid form to be
provisionally allotted to Qualifying Shareholders pursuant to the
Rights Issue

open-ended investment company
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“QEIC Business”
“Official List”

“Ordinary Shareholders” or
“Shareholders”

*Ordinary Shares”

“Qverseas Shareholders”

“Philadelphia Fixed Income
Contracts”

“Preference Shareholders”

“Preference Shares”

“Progressive”
“Proposals”

“Prospectus”

“Provisional Allotment
Letter”

“Qualifying CREST
Shareholders”

“Qualifying Non-CREST
Shareholders”

“Qualifying Shareholders”

“Record Date”
“Registrars”

“Regulations”

“REO”

“Resolution”
“Rights Issue”

“Rights Issue Price”

“run-rate management fees”

“Securities Act”
~ “Shareholders”

“Shares”

“Share Incentive Plan™

the London-based business managing OEICs
the Official List of the UKLA
the holders of Ordinary Shares

ordinary shares of 10p each in the share capital of Aberdeen

Shareholders whose registered address is outside the UK or who are
citizens or residents of countries other than in the UK

the Philadelphia-based contracts managing investment grade fixed
income assets

the holders of Preference Shares

non-cumulative non-voting perpetual preference shares of £100
nominal value each in the share capital of Aberdeen

Aberdeen Progressive Growth Unit Trust
the Rights Issue and the Acquisition

the prospectus issued by the Company and accompanying this
document, together with any supplements or amendments thereto

the renounceable provisional allotment letter to be despatched to
Qualifying Non-CREST Sharcholders by the Company in respect of
the Nil Paid Rights pursuant to the Rights Issue

Qualifying Shareholders whose Ordinary Shares on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on the Record
Date are in uncertificated form

Qualifying Shareholders whose Ordinary Shares on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on the Record
Date are in uncertificated form

holders of Ordinary Shares on the register of members of Aberdeen
at the close of business on the Record Date, as described on page 7

" of this document

26 August 2005

Lloyds TSB Registrars Scotland

the Uncertificated Securities Regulations (SI 2001/3755)
Real Estate Opportunities Limited

the ordinary resolution to be proposed at the EGM and set out in the
EGM Notice

the proposed issue by way of rights of New Ordinary Shares to
Qualifying Shareholders

63p per New Ordinary Share

in respect of the Target Businesses annualised, management fees as
recorded in the systems or the Target Businesses excluding
management fees from clients who have terminated their contracts

US Securities Act of 1933, as amended
the holders of Ordinary Shares

Preference Shares and/or Ordinary Shares as the context may
require

the Aberdeen Asset Management PLC Share Incentive Plan
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“Splits” or “Splits Sector” the UK split closed-ended investment fund sector

“stock account” an account within a member account in CREST to which a holding
of a particular share or other security in CREST is credited

“Subscription Price” 63p per New Ordinary Share

“Target Businesses” the asset management businesses of Deutsche Bank proposed to be

acquired by Aberdeen, comprising the London Fixed Income
Business, the OEIC Business and the Equities/Multi-Asset Business
all of which operate within the Target Companies and the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

“UK” or “United Kingdom” the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

“UK and Global Equities the UK equities business and global equities business providing and
Business” managing UK and global equities products

“UKLA” or “UK Listing the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as competent
Authority” authority under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

“uncertificated” or “in recorded on the register of members of the Company as being held
uncertificated form” in uncertificated form (that is securities held in CREST)

“United States” or “US” the United States of America, its possessions of territories, any state

of the United States of America and the District of Columbia or any
area subject to its jurisdictions or any political subdivision thereof

“Uplift Plan” the Uplift Plan formulated by the Company available to eligible
investors in Progressive

“Warrants” Warrants issued by Aberdeen Warrants (Jersey) Limited to subscribe
for Preference Shares in the share capital of that company and
comprising part of a Convertible Preference Share Unit

In addition, “subsidiary”, “subsidiary undertaking”, ‘“‘associated undertaking” and “undertaking”
have the meanings respectively ascribed to them by the Companies Act, disregarding for this purpose
paragraph 20(1)(b) of Schedule 4A to the Companies Act.
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PART 5

CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Information incorporated by reference

Details of the Rights Issue
Trend Information

Financial Information relating to the Aberdeen
Group

Financial Information relating to the Target
Companies

Financial Information relating to the
Philadelphia Fixed Income Contracts

Unaudited Proforma Financial Information
relating to the Aberdeen Group

The Company’s legal status, legislation under
which it operates, country of incorporation,
address and telephone number of its registered
office and principal place of business

Directors’ and other interests, including:
Directors’ Service Contracts; and
Major Shareholders of the Company

Summary of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of Aberdeen

Litigation of the Aberdeen Group and the Target
Businesses

Material Contracts in relation to the Aberdeen
Group and the Target Businesses

Working Capital of the Enlarged Aberdeen
Group

Statements in relation to Significant Change in
respect of the Aberdeen Group and the Target
Businesses

Advisers’ consent

Expert’s consent

Documents available for inspection
Definitions

Document Reference

Prospectus (pages 18 to 31)
Prospectus (page 36) _
Prospectus (pages 44 to 45)

Prospectus (pages 46 to 59)
Prospectus (pages 60 to 64)
Prospectus (pages 65 to 69)

Prospectus (page 73)

Prospectus (pages 76 to 81)
Prospectus (page 81)

Prospectus (pages 77 to 78)
Prospectus (pages 84 to 89)

Prospectus (pages 38 to 39 and 107)
Prospectus (pages 104 to 107)
Prospectus (page 107)

Prospectus (pages 107 to 108)
Prospectus (page 108)

Prospectus (page 108)

Prospectus (page 110)
Prospectus (pages 111 to 115)
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NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

ABERDEEN ASSET MANAGEMENT PLC
(Registered in Scotland No. SC82015)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an extraordinary general meeting of Aberdeen Asset Management
PLC (“the Company”) will be held at 10.30 am. on 31 August 2005 at Donaldson House,
97 Haymarket Terrace, Edinburgh EH12 5HD, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolution which will be proposed as an ordinary resolution.

THAT:

(A)  the proposed acquisition (““the Acquisition”) by the Company of Deutsche Asset Management
Life & Pensions Limited, Deutsche Asset Management Limited, Deutsche Asset Management
Investment Services Limited, DWS Investment Funds Limited, DWS Funds Management
Limited, Deutsche Asset Management (Ireland) Limited and certain other fund management
businesses and contracts of Deutsche Bank AG (including the Philadelphia based fixed income
contracts) upon the terms and subject to the conditions stated in the acquisition agreement dated
7 July 2005 between (1) Aberdeen Asset. Management PLC and (2) Deutsche Asset
Management Group Limited (“the Acquisition Agreement”) (a copy of which is produced to
the Meeting and initialled by the Chairman of the Meeting for the purpose of identification) as
described in the circular to shareholders dated 12 August 2005 be and it is hereby approved and
the board of directors of the Company (or any duly constituted committee thereof), be and are
hereby authorised to waive, amend, revise, vary or extend any of the terms and conditions on
which such acquisition is made as they may in their absolute discretion think fit (provided any
such waivers, amendments, revisions, variations or extensions are not of a material nature) and
to take such steps on behalf of the Company as maybe reasonably necessary or desirable to
complete and effect the Acquisition by the Company pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement;

(B) the authorised share capital of the Company be and is hereby increased from £87,500,000 to
£154,000,000 by the creation of 665,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each subject to the rights
and restrictions set out in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association; and

(C) in addition to and without prejudice to all existing authorities to allot relevant securities, the
Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 80
of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act™) to exercise all powers of the Company to allot relevant
securities (as defined in section 80(2) of the Act) of the Company up to a maximum aggregate
nominal amount of £48,600,000 in connection with an offer of such securities by way of rights
to holders of ordinary shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company (“Ordinary Shares™) in
proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their respective holdings of such securities
{“Rights Issue”) representing 67 per cent. of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the issue of the new Ordinary Shares pursuant to the Rights Issue provided that:-

(1)  this authority shall expire (unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general
meeting) at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company to be held
in 2006; and

(ii)  the Company shall be entitled to make, prior to the expiry of such authority, any offer or
agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after the expiry
of such authority and the Directors may allot securities in pursuance of such offer or
agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired.

By the order of the Board

Registered Office
10 Queen’s Terrace
Aberdeen ABIO LYG

Scott Edward Massie
Secretary

12 August 2005
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Notes:

1. The holders of Ordinary Shares are entitied to attend the meeting and vote. A member entitled to attend the meeting and vote may appoint
a proxy or proxies to attend and, to vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. A form of proxy is enclosed. To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or
a copy of such authority certified notarially or in some other way approved by the Board, must be lodged with the Company’s registrar,
Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BNY9 6ZR, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

3. Completing and returning a form of proxy will not prevent a holder of Ordinary Shares from attending and voting in person at the EGM
should he or she so wish.

4. Pursuant to the Uncertificated Securities Regulation 2001, entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting or any adjourned meeting and the
number of votes which may be cast thereat will be determined by reference to the register of members of the Company as at 10.30 a.m. on
29 August 2005 or, in the event that the meeting is adjourned, as at such time falling 48 hours before the time of any adjourned meeting.
Changes to entries on such register after this time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the
meeting or any adjournment thereof, as the case may be.
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Aberdeen Rsset Management PLC
12 August 2005

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
12 August 2005

Publication of Sharehclder documents and Notice of Bxtraordinmary General Meeting

hberdeen Raset Management PLC {the ‘Company'} has today published a sharsholder
circular and prospectus in connection with the proposed acquisition of certain
fund management buminesses and contracts of Deutache Bank AG arnd 3 for 2 Rights
Iasue Of up to 486,000,000 New Ordinary Shares at 63p per Share. Both documents
will be posted to shareholders today. The circular gives notice of an
Extraordinary Ceneral Meeting of the Company to be held at 10.30 a.m. om 11
Auguet 2005 at Danaldson House, 97 Haymarke: Terrace, Bdinburgh, £H12 5HD.

Copies of the above documents, each of which is dated 12 August 2005, have been
submitted to the UK Lieting Authority and are available for inspection at the
Document Viewing Pacility, which is situated at:

The Flnancial Services Authority
25 The North Colonnade

Canary Whart

Longon

€14 SHE

Tel: 020 767¢ 1000

Contacts

Maitlaad 020 7379 5151

Piona Pipexr

JPMorgan Cazenove 020 7588 282¢
John Paynter

lan Hannam

Richard Locke
James Wood-Collins

EXPECTED TIMETARLR

20058

Record Date for entitlements under the Rights Issuas close of business on 26 August
Lategt time for receipet of Forms of Proxy for the Bxtraoxdipary 10.30 a.m. on 2% August
Ceneral Meeting

Bxtraordinary General Meeting 10.30 a.m. on 31 August
Deapatch of Provisional Allotment Letters (to Qualifying as soon as practicable on 31 August
Non-CRRST Shareholders cnly)

Admiasion and commencement of dealings in New Ordinary Shareas,

nil paid, on the London Stock Bxthange 8.00 a.m. on 1 September

Nil Paid Righte cxedited to stock accounte in CREBST (Qualilying 8.00 a.m. on 1 September

ag soon as practicable after CREST sharsholders only)

Shares marked *'‘ex-rights'*' by the Londom Stock Exchange 8.00 a.m. on 1 September
Lateat recommended time and date for requesting withdrawal of 4.20 p.m. on 19 September

Nil Paid Rights or Pully Paid Rights fxom CREST (i.e. if your Ril
Paid Righte or Fully Paid Rights are in CREST and you wish to convert
them to uncertificated form)

Latest time and date for depositing rencunced Provisicnal 3.00 p.m. on
Allotment Letters, nil paid or fully paid, into CREST or for

dematerialieing Nil Paid Rights or Pully Paid Rights into a CREST

stock account

20 3eptember

Zatest time and date for eplitting Provieional Allotment 3.00 p.m. on 21 September
Lettera, nil paid or fully paid

lLatest time and date for acceptance and payment in full and 11.00 a.m. cn 23 Septender
reglatration ¢f renounced Provisional Allotment Lettera

Expected date on which New Ordinary Shares iasued pursuant to B.00 a.m. on 26 September
the Righta Ispue will be credited to CRBST stock accouats in

uncertificated form

Expected date for delivery of definitive share certificates for by 3 Ocrtober

New Ordinary Shares

Thie information is provided by RNB
The company news eervice from the London Stock Exchange
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Aberdeen Asset Management PLC is an international investment

management group, managing assets for both institutional and retail clients

from twenty-five offices around the world.

Our goal is to deliver superior and consistent fund performance across a
diverse range of asset management businesses.\We offer both traditional

and innovative products, supported by a high level of customer support.

Aberdeen 0151
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Performance

Aberdeen aims for strong

investment performance

with rigorous risk controls.
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Financial Overview

Financial highlights 2001

Turnover £182.1m
Pre-tax profit

(before goodwill amortisation & exceptional items) £48.2m
(after goodwill amortisation & exceptional items) £24.6m
Earnings per share

(before goodwill amortisation & exceptional items) 211 P
(after goodwill amortisation & exceptional items) 8.5p
Dividend per share 10.5p
Assets under management

At the year-end £34.7bn

£25.8bn*

Earnings per share

- *Pro forma excluding assets-previously managed for Scottish Provideat--

Dividends per share

Assets under management
(£en)
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Financial calendar
17 January 2003 Annual General Meeting
22 January 2003 Payment of final dividend
April 2003 Announcement of interim results

May 2003 li’ayment of interim dividend Aberdeen 0153
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International

We have an international perspective

in both asset management and

distribution. The Group employs

around 1,000 people worldwide,
with twenty five offices in fourteen
countries.
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Chairman's Statement

The past year has been very difficult for the Group
and for the whole investment management industry.
However, the broadly diversified range of our
activities, the result of successful acquisitions made
over several years, has mitigated some of the worst
effects of the unrelenting decline across major
equity markets.

The bear market has seen the FTSE World Index
fall by some 25 per cent over the past year and by
35 per cent over the last three years. Bonds and
property account for 58 per cent of our assets under
management and these proved to be more resilient
than equity markets; the IPD UK Monthly Property
Index had a positive return over the year of 10 per
cent and many areas of the bond markets produced
positive returns.

It is against this general background that profits

~‘--befo&%a-xérfiﬁﬁ;'gf‘)’ﬁdwﬁi amortisation.and

exceptionals this year amount to £41.7 million,
compared with £48.2 million earned in the previous
year and earnings per share amount to 16.5p this
year compared with 21.1p in 2001.

The impact of falling revenues and funds under
management has brought pressure on our balance
sheet. During the previous financial year, to 30
September 2001, we increased bank borrowings by
£202.6 million in order to help finance acquisitions,
which cost a total of £357.5 million, of which
£222.8 million was paid for in cash. This year has
seen modest acquisitions, the largest of which was
the purchase of Old Mutual’s Isle of Man life
assurance operation for £36.6 million. This
purchase was funded by a £100 million convertible
bond issue in January 2002, £43 million of which
was used to repay bank borrowings, which have
now been reduced to £122.7 million. We have
recently completed a strategic review of our

activities and the implementation of the decision to
divest the property division will further reduce our
gearing. The Board will keep under review whether
or not other asset disposals should be undertaken.

We started the year with £34.7 billion of assets
under management. During the course of the year,
following Abbey National's acquisition of Scottish
Provident, £8.9 billion of funds managed on behalf
of Scottish Provident were transferred out.

£2.2 billion of the reduction in assets under
management resulted from market movements, debt
repayments by split capital closed-end funds reduced
assets by £0.8 billion and net new business flows
added £0.9 billion, leaving assets under management
totalling £23.7 billion at the year end.

Dividend

The Board has decided to recommend a final .
dividend paymert-of 2.15p per share, makinga - - ~ -~- -
total for the year of 6.0p per share, comparec?with

10.5p in 2001. The decision to reduce the total

dividend to a sustainable level has been taken in the

light of current conditions in world markets, which

we expect to prevail through next year, and the

desire to conserve financial resources until there is a
marked recovery. In the coming year the interim

and final payments will be rebalanced on the basis

of the total dividend for 2002 to reflect a more

normal payment pattern.

Strategic Review

In October we completed a strategic review of our
operations. A key decision was to focus on our
core competencies in the management of equity and
fixed interest securities. This was taken particularly
in view of the emphasis clients are now laying on
investment performance and process disciplines,
irrespective of market conditions. As it stands, the
bear market has dented investor confidence, but the

Aberdeen 0155
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Chairman’s Statement — continued

long-term argument for investment in risk assets
remains valid, not least as governments around the
world encourage individuals to make provision for
their retirement. '

Aberdeen Asset Management is an independent
manager of third party assets. Our business
strategy is to offer high-quality investment
management services to discrete market segments
worldwide, defined by where we can compete
effectively and best leverage economies of scale.
We systematically evaluate our business mix in
order to ensure we can maintain sustainable
margins and thus healthy returns to shareholders.

Aberdeen Property Investors

Our strategic review led us to conclude that the
interests of shareholders will be best served by the
disposal of a majority interest in Aberdeen Property

- - ~Investors, our property asset management business,

through flotaticn on the London Stock Exchange.
Following our announcement of the intention to
pursue a flotation, we have received approaches
from a wide range of financial institutions
expressing interest in purchasing this division.
These are being given due consideration by the
Board.

Cost reduction programme

Against the background of falling equity markets,
we have kept our cost base under constant review
and have taken significant steps to bring it into line
with prevailing market conditions. As a
consequence, we have been able to maintain
operating margins, before goodwill amortisation
and exceptional items at 28.8% compared with
32.3% achieved in 2001. This has, however, meant
a headcount reduction in our equity and fixed
interest fund management divisions of 27 people
during the year and another 61 across marketing

6 Aberdeen Asset Management

and administration functions. Together with other
cost saving measures, this will result in an overall
reduction in costs on an annualised basis of some
£30 million. Our current staff base comprises 968
employees worldwide, of whom 262 work in our
property division. Nevertheless, we remain
committed to maintaining the highest standards of
customer service and risk control in all areas of our
business.

Split Capital Closed End Funds

The split capital closed end fund sector in the UK has
continued to suffer dramatically in the downturn. We
managed or advised 19 such funds during the period,
each with distinct investment objectives and
structures, out of an industry total of 138 funds. As
the largest of the 37 fund managers operating in the
sector, we have faced intense scrutiny.

-~Dhe UK -regutator-isTeviewing the whole sector. We

believe that at all times we have acted with complete
integrity and in accordance with all relevant
regulations and laws. These issues are, however,
extremely complex and come at a time of market
uncertainty and widespread negative comment.
Further comment on this item is included in note 29
to the accounts.

In conjunction with the boards of the split capital
closed end funds that we manage, we continue to
explore all positive measures to improve sector
confidence, in addition to measures to assist
individual client companies and funds. 1 would
like to state that we are distressed at the losses
suffered by investors in the split capital sector.
While these individuals make up a small
proportion of the investing public, we recognise
the impact that the steep decline in values, or
outright failure, of some trusts may have had on
their portfolios.
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Board Restructuring

The Board had grown considerably following
acquisitions over the last few years. As part of the
Strategic Review, we have restructured it in order to
streamline decision-making and 